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the company’s Financial Review and Strategic Review, each for the financial year
2001, which have been made available to the shareholders of the company.



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

INFINEON TECHNOLOGIES AG

Date: February 1, 2002 By:_/s/ ULRICH SCHUMACHER
Dr. Ulrich Schumacher
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer

By: /s/ PETER J. FISCHL
Peter J. Fischl
Chief Financial Officer




]
i

o
&

Conv

S

2
05

technologies




[Concentration Convergence Confidence]

Concentration

A process focusing on the essentials,
designed to make Infineon Technol-
ogies fit for the future. Looking ahead
to the future, we are focusing our
busir:ess operations on long-term
growing market segments. At the same
time, we are bundling our energies
in an even more streamlined and flex-

ible crganization.

Dear Reac’zrs

Convergence

A growing number of products and
technologies in the fields of electronics
and communications are becoming
eniwined, interconnected and inter-
linked — resulting in a whole new
range of applications. As a catalyst for
technological progress and cost reduc-
tions. Infineon Technologies is making
a significant centribution to the con-
vergence of our knowledge-based
society: good prospects for the future

of the company.

Confidence

Infineon Technologies is well posi-
tioned to take advantage of the next
upswing in the semiconductor market
—and to operate in the vanguard of
the industry. We have comﬁlete con-
fidence in our strengths and are
optimistic that our long-term strategy
will prove to be successful. And we
would like to pass this confidence on
to our employees, customers, partners,
and naturally to the shareholders of

Infineon Technologies AG.

Infineon Tachnologies is pablishing three separatz docuraents which are comple*ely independent from one another in order to provide detailed
information about the 2001 fiscal year (1.10.2000-30.9.2001) and the current status of the company. This approach enables us to fulfill the
varying demands placed upon us by our shareholders and business partriers in the international financial markets. It also provides a basis for us
to reduce the considerable costs which arise from producing and distributing the required and additional reports.

To begin with, we are publishing our “Annual Report 2001 in twe parts, consisting of the “Strategic Review 2001” and the “Financial

Review 2001". The “Financial Review 2001” features the consolidated financial statements of Infineon Technologies for the 2001 fiscal year, as
audited and certified by our independent auditing company KMPG. It also encompasses the Management Report, Financial Report, and Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements as well as the Report of the Supervisory Board and the Independent Auditor’s Report. Due to the fact
that Infineon shares are listed and traded in the USA, Infineon is publishing a third document, namely the “Annual Report on Form 20-F”. This
report will be submitted to the U.S. supervisory body SEC (Security and Exchange Commission), and also contains the consolidated financial
statements of Infineon Technologies as well as general information about the company, the contents of which are comparable to that included in
a stock market prospectus.

We will be happy to send you the other documents on request. Furthermore, the contents of all three printed documents will be
available on the Internet in the online information sections for the financial community at hitp://www.infineon.com/investor.



KEY FIGURES

KEY FIGURES
INFINEGN TECHNOLOGIES AG AND SUBSIDIARIES 1999 2000 2001 2001:2000 2001
T T

Fiscal year from October | to September 30; in million or percent w

Revenues

By Region:
Germany
Other Eurorpe
USA
Asia/Pacific
Others

By Business Group:
Wireline Communications
Wireless Solutions
Security and Chip Card ICs
Mernosy Preducis
Automotive and [ndustrial Electronics
Others?

Gross margin (% of revenuesj

Research and development expenses

Operating income (loss)

Net income (loss)

EBIT?

Eamings (loss) per share — basic and/or diluted
Dividend per share (in EUR)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Depreciation and amortization

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (net)

Total shareholders’ equity

Total assets

Equity ratio

Deht-equity ratio?

Net cash (as of September 30)°

Employees (as of September 30)

! Exchange rate: ] Euro = 0,9099 U.S.-Dollar (noon buying rate on September 28, 2001).

2 Consisting of “Other Operating Segments” and “Corporate and Reconciliation”.

¥ Earnings before interests, minority interests and Laxes.

4 Equivalent to short-term and long-term debt divided by total shareholders equity.

5 Equivalent to cash and cash equivalents plus marketable securities plus restricted cash less short-term and long-tenn debt.
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Forward-Looking Statements.

This report contains forward-looking statements, Statements that are not historical facts, including statements about our beliefs and expecta-
tions, are forward-looking statements. These statements are based on current plans, estimates and projections, and you should not place too
much reliance on them. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and we undertake no obligation to update any
of them in light of new information or future events. Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties. We caution you
that a number of important factors could cause actual results or outcomes to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking
statement.
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[Letter to the Shareholders]

Dr. Ulrich Schumacher

President and

Zhief Executive Officer

- Born 1958.

- Married, 3 children.

- Studied of electrical
engineering.

- Further education
in economics and
administration.

- Doctorate in engineering.
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Dear Shanchuddhe,

Following cur highly successful 2000 fiscal year, the 2001 fiscal year was a particularly
ifficult one for Infineon Technologies. The dramatic market dévelopmenks impacting
the semiconductor industry during the last 12 months combined with a far-reaching global
economic downturn were the decisive factors influencing our business iesults — and

posing major challenges to which we reacted with determination and resolve,

The semiconductor industry achieved a record growth rate in the year 2000,
expanding by 37 percent. At the same time, Infineon posted record results for the 2000
fiscal year with 2 revenue growth of 72 percent and an EBIT of 1.7 bil%ion Euro. How-
ever, the 2001 fiscal year was characterized by the most far-reaching market collapse in
the history cf the semiconductor industry. Instead of posting double-digit growth as
originally anticipated, the market for semiconductors actually declined by about 30 percent.
This dramatic slump was not foreseen by any market forecasts. Nevertheless, ongoing
discussions often tend to overlook the highly favorable mid-term and long-term future
growth perspectives for the semiconductor industry. It is important to note that the market
for chips has expanded by an annual average of 14 percent over the last forty years. The
semiconductor industry will continue to be a strong growth.sector and a catalyst for the

modernization of the business community and society in general in this Information Age.

The main reason for the downward spiral in the semiconductor market in the
past fiscal year was the significant decline in both price and demand in the most important
markets which generally drive growth, namely memory products and communications.
For the first time since the mid-1970s, the market for PCs is expected to decline in 2001 -
posting a drop of 4 percent. Weak demand has been accompanied by a significant drop
in prices for DRAM products. The average price for a 128-Megabit memory chio decreased
to a level only slightly above one U.S. Dollar in September 2001, compared to 15 U.S.
Dollass in September 2000. In addition, following years of unchecked growth, the first slump
in demand in the market for mobile communications occurred at the beginning of
2001. The investments committed by telecommunications companies towards expanding
their data and voice communications networks also declined, contrary to original fore-
casts. The level of these investments will drop 5 percent this year compared to an increase
of 37 percent in the year 2000. Finally, demand for security and chip card ICs also suffered

due to slow growth in the communications market.

This extensive market slump not only resulted in the largest downturn ever

recorded in the generally cyclical semiconductor business, but ir.evitably had a negative



[Letter to the Shareholders]

impact on Infineon’s business operations. Total revenues dropped about 22 percent to
5.7 billion Euro in the 2001 fiscal year, following record revenues of 7.3 billion Euro in
the 2000 fiscal year. The loss before interests, minority interests and taxes was 1 billion
Euro, whereas the annual net loss amounted to'591 million Euro. The loss per share in
2001 amounted to 5.92 Euro, compared to a profit per share of 1.53 Euro in the last
fiscal year. These negative developments in our company results are mainly the conse-
quence of an intensive price war taking place in the field of memory products — which
has led to a fierce competitive “shake-out” among DRAM manufacturers. This was also
accompanied by increasing pressure on prices in our communications segments in the
second half of the year. A case in point: the decline in the field of mobile communications

led to an 18 percent drop in tevenues in our Wireless Solutions Business Group.

Although manufacturers of cellular phones and netwark providers continue to
confront unfavorable market conditions, we managed to achieve a revenue growth for all
non-memory segments by almost 10 percent in the 2001 fiscal year. The Security and
Chip Card ICs Business Group increased revenues by 57 percent, whereas the Automotive
and Industrial Electronics Business Group expanded by 25 percent and our Wireline

Communications operations by 15 percent.

Concentration — Cost-Cutting Program “Impact”

Infineon reacted with determination to the biggest downturn in demand in the history of
the semiconductor industry. Back in July 2001, we developed and announced a com-
prehensive package of measures entitled “Impact” to cut costs and streamline our business.
The aim of “Impact” is to achieve cash savings (including capital expenditures) of over 1.5
billion Euro by the end of the 2002 fiscal vear. Following 2 thorough analysis, we identi-
fied far-reaching potential savings and implemented a series of measures. These include
considerable reductions in purchasing, information services, overhead, sales and marketing,
logistics and research and development. About 70 percent of savings are related to non-
personnel issues. At the same time, Infineon has adjusted its level of planned capital ex-
penditures to the difficult market situation. We are concentrating our efforts and invest-
ments on important innovations, on our core technological competencies and in conse-
quently raising productivity, for example through the production of chips on 300mm
silicon wafers in our Dresden manufacturing plant. Unfortunately, this program also entails
unavoidable adjustments in the size of our workforce. Globally, we will reduce the
number of employees by about 5,000. By the end of 2001, we will have cut a total of
2,400 jobs, of which 1,900 are abroad and 500 are in Germany.

200 g
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‘The resolute and successful implementation of the cost-cutting program “impact”
is a crucial step towards maintaining the innovative strength and productivity of Infineon
in a tough business environment, as well as ensuring a solid financial foundation at the
same time. Despite difficult market conditions, the successful secondary public offering
carried out in July 2001 raised net proceeds of about 1.5 billion Euro and contributed to
our targets. Furthermore, the success we had in changing the structure of our portfolio
also had a positive impact. In addition, we received more than 650 million Euro by
divesting our infrared components business and selling our share in the opto-semiconductor
joint venture. Through the measures described above, we are moving forcefully to counter-
act the prevailing market conditions. We intend to emerge strengthened from the current

diffizult corditions in the worldwide semiconductor market.

Canvergence - Technological Leadership in Increasingly Networked Markets
Despite the challenging market environment, Infineon once again maintained its
competitive edge in key target markets and further expanded its technological and cost

leadership.

In our Wireline Communications Business Group, we further strengthened our
leading position in the markets for fiber optic components, high-speed communications,
Internet access and LAN/WAN infrastructure. In particular, we increased our lead in the
market for fast optical data transmission networks at 10-Gigabit/second to 40-Gigabit/
second. In this segment, we further expanded our technological leadership role with
the acquisition of Catamaran Communications. Infineon continues to be in the techno-
logical vanguard in introducing high-speed VDSL broadband communications standards.

We have also achieved a leading position in building up the UMTS infrastructure.

In *hs Wireless Sclutions Business Group, we systematicaily expanded our
systenis corupetence for GSM and for future mobile communications standards. We now
rank among the very few providers of complete systems for mobile telephony, an essential
prerequisite for achieving speedy growth for next-generation GPRS and UMTS mobile
communications. Infineon is also in the technological vanguard when it comes to pro-

ducing chips for Bluetooth, the fast wireless transmission technology for short distances.

In the 2000 calendar year, Infineon was the world market leader in producing
chips for chip cards, with a market share of 34 percent. We are not only the technologi-
cal forerunner in existing markets such as mobile communications, Internet access,
electronic banking, eleztronic and mobile commerce, but there is also growing demand

for innovative security and authentication systems, including biometric systems such as
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our fingertip sensors. Our comprehensive systems expertise — with the most advanced
encryption technologies — as well as state-of-the-art security memory products and con-

trollers open up new growth markets.

The Autometive and Industrial Electronics Business Group developed quite
favorably. For the furst time, our revenues surpassed the level of 1 billion Euio, consoli-
dating our market leadership position as the second largest provider woildwide and the
number one in Evrope (excluding semiconductors used in car radios). With our cutting-
edge systems expertise, we have an outstanding basis for offering comprehensive solutions

for automotive electronics in the promising growth market of telematics.

As discussed before, the drastic decline in demand in the memory products market
l2d to a significant drop ir revenues and considerzble losses in ou: Meniory Products
Business Group. Nevertheless, Infineon is in an excellent competitive position, thanks to
aggressive downsizing in the structure size of chips, advanced production technologies
and our world leadership in manufacturing next-generation chips on 300mm wafers, an
approach which we will resolutely pursue. At the same time, we will expand our position
in the less volatile target markets for specia'ly-developed memory products and high-

performance chips.

Confidence — Well-Equipped for the Future

Infineon has reacted quickly and effectively to the challenging market conditions in

the global semiconductor market. On the basis of the cost reduction program “Impact”,
which is being currently implemented, combined with a sound financial business base,
we are well-equipped to successfully meet the challenges the future will pose. With our
broad customer base, our technologies as well as the high potential of our employees,

we a7z wel! orepared to benefit from the next upswing in the semiconducter industry.

*Our corporate motto ‘Never stop thinking’ will continue to guide our activities
well into the future. I am convinced that we will assert ourselves and persevere with long-
lasting success in an extremely dynamic market. On behalf of the entire Management
Board, I would like to express my sincere thanks to all employees for their dedicated

involvement and commitment, and to all shareholders for their confidence.

Sincerely yours,

U Schde

Ulrich Schumacher
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[The Fiscal Year in Review]

WORLD MARKET

SEMICONDUCTOR INDUSTRY  :: INFINEON TECHNOLOGIES

* The dates provided generally refer to the day and month a public announcement has been made and not to the actual time the
particular event took place.
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[The Fiscal Year in Review]

2001

WORLD MARKET =« SEMICONDUCTOR INDUSTRY = INFINEON TECHNOLOGIES

* The dates provided generally refer to the day and month a public announcement has been made and not to the actual time the
particular event took place.




{The Fiscal Year in Review]

The terrorlstiauac»s in'the USA
g]obal economnc downtum

; Accordmg to the latest ecor fomic forcms’_s ‘the gross domwtlc product‘of the.industrialized countries is. expected
to decline by a leve of I's percent in the ca]endar year 2001, compared’ toa growth rate of 37 percent inithe
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ince September 2000, share prices of all chip manufacturers have been on a sharp
S downslide. Infineon has been no exception. The downturn set in as it became clear
that growth expectations for technology niarkets and stocks had been too high. Falling
revenues and earnings in the semiconductor industry caused by the rapid decline in
consumer derrand - which was initially reflected by the “early warning systemn” of
memory chips for PCs, later o by chips for mobile communications and nefworking -
exerted even more downward pressure on the share prices of the semiconductor manu-
facturers. Moreover, the global economy deteriorated steadily in 2001: in particular
because of slower economic growth in the U.S., the cutbacks in capital spending among
businesses, especially in the telecommunications industry, and the slumg in semicon-

ductor prices due to overly high inventories.

The consequence: A 72 percent drop in share prices of chip manufacturers and thus of
the leading U.S. index, namely SOX (Philadelphia Semiconductor Index), starting at its
peak in March 2000 and decreasing until September 2001. At the same time, thevDAX,
which is the leading German index, dropped 46 percent, a clear sign of the downturn in

business confidence.

Dividend of 0.65 Euro per Share for the 2000 Fiscal Year
The excellent results achieved in the previous year made it possible for us to distribute a

one-time dividend of 0.65 Euro per share for the 2000 fiscal year in April 2001, amounting

in total to 407 million Euro. As announced at the time of Infineon’s Initial Public Offer--

ing in March 2000, future earnings will be applied to Infineon’s further development.

FISCAL YEAR 2000 © 2001
T T

Stock price performance (Xetra)
All-time high
All-ime low

Closing price (end of September)

Average daily trading volume

(thereof in Xetra)

Number of shares and market capitalization

Shares outstanding (weighted average)

Shares outstanding (as of September 30)

Matket capitalization (as of Septernber 30)

(Source: Blcomberg)
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HIGHER WEIGHTING IN MAJOR INDICES.

Successful Capital Increase despite Difficult Market Environment

The number of Infineon shares outstanding increased from 625.5 to 693 million in the
2001 fiscal year. In July 2001, 60 million shares were placed in a secondary public offering
at 25 Euro per sharz. Despite the difficult environment on the capital market, the offering
was successful with proceeds of almost 1.5 billion Euro. An additional 7.5 million shares
were used in 2001 for the acquisition of the companies Catamaran Communications,
Ardent Technologies and Ramtron. The capital increase has provided benefit to the Infineon

stock.as well. Due to the higher number of shares outstanding and the larger free float,

the stock’s weighting in major international indices was raised.

SHAREHOLDER STRUCTURE
(AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2001)

i FREE FLOAT | SIEMENS AG

SIEMENS SIEMENS
PENSION FUND [NEDERLAND N.V.
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[Concentration]

KEEP IN SHAPE FOR THE UPSWING.

tis a simple truism: no market in the wo:ld develops equally in a positive and negative
I way. Fluctuations in both directions are natural. Every single company has the re-
sponsibility to be optimally prepared for fluctuations, and to react quickly should the
need arise. Infireon takes this responsibility very seriously. Nevertheless: what to do
in the face of an unexpected market collapse? And one which took place more abruptly
than ever before! No company in the world can prepare for such a situation on a long-
term. basis — unless it accepts the inability to profit from sudden, positive develop-

ments on the marketplaze.

In any case, ene thing is sure: lamenting never got anyone aniwhere. “When
the going gets tough, the tough get going.” Infineon has acted. With “Impact”, we
have initiated a process of concentration not only as a measure taken to cut costs, but
also intentionally as a future-oriented program, enabling Infineon to emerge as strong as
possible from the current crisis. It must be said that every comparable semiconductor
company in the world is tacing a similar challenge. Itis not only a question of surviving

crises, but above all, to be optimally prepared for the following upturn.

Within a short time, Infineon reduced its IT expenditures, pruned investments
to a minimum level, restructured its overhead, concentrated its research and develop-
ment activities on promising fields, limited its purchasing, and also improved and acce-
lerated operational processes in specific departments such as logistics, distribution and
marketing. When it comes to Impact, one aspect is parﬁcu]arly crucial: our innovative
strength must not be endangered at all. Infineon will remain the technological leader
‘n man; market segments and a‘ms to assurme even greater cost leadership — goals in which
Infineon is continuously investing. A perfect example is our memory chip production:
our first 300mm facility in Dresden is ramped up, facilitating a 30 percent decrease in

production costs for state-of-the-art DRAMS.

This is precisely what concentration means: even in difficult times, to position
the company in such a way, that it can gain momentum without any delay when

the market recovers again. Infineon is doing everything in its power to be prepared.

~ page 15



[Chief Operating Officer]

2001

nfineon cannot do much

to influence the current

slackening in demand and

the price decline on the
semiconductor market.
However, we are taking

advantage of the lower

capacity utilization to make

our developmental, manu-

facturing end logistics pro-

cesses even quicker and

more cost-effactive. From

the production side, this will

provide the basis for being

able to react even more ftex-

ibly in the future to chang-

ing market conditions and

customer reqguirements.

ven before the launch of our fitness program “Impact”, we took steps to cut costs.
E Technclogies designed to reduce the size of chips were developed and realized in the
production process continuously, and as quickly as possible. At present, wu are taking
advantage of falling demand to accelerate cycle time and, therefore the processing of cus-
tomer projects. Furthermore, we are currently able to apply more capacity towards
moving development projects ahead as well as towards launching new products and

technologies.

Largest Wafers, Smallest Chips, Lowest Costs

In the 2001 fiscal year, Infineon succeeded in initiating pilot mass production in the world’s
first 300mm manufacturing facility, located in Dresden. This will serve as the basis for
Infinecn te derive an approximately 30 percent cost reduction for dynamic memory chips
(DRAMs) over a longer period. We will ramp up 300mm capacities in Germany as well
as in Taiwan and expand them depending on the further market development. Infineon’s
total costs for DRAM are at a highly favorable level compared to our competitors. Also
in the 2002 fiscal year, we aim to significantly reduce production costs. In October 2001,
we already integrated 0.14 micron technology in the 200mm production process — giving
us the smallest chip structures in the semiconductor industry. As soon as all DRAM pro-
duction lines have been completely converted, the 0.14 micron technology will help us

achieve an additional 30 percent cost reduction.

Moreover, in the 2002 fiscal year, we will convert our mass production of ICs
for cellular phones to our innovative 0.18 micron copper technology and move ahead
with the Jaunch of the 0.13 micron generation. This will enable us to considerably reduce
the production costs of these logic ICs. At the same time, we are increasing the efficiency
of the chips and reducing their power consumption. These improvements once again
underline Infineon’s technological and cost leadership in the development and produc-

tion of state-of-the-art semiconductor solutions.

Cycle Time, Speed and Flexibility Are increased
During the downturn in the semiconductor market in the year 2001, we took a series
of fundamental steps to further expand our market position when the next upswing

takes place:

#m For example, the learning synergies derived from Infineon’s integrated
developmental and production facilities at different locations are leading

to considerable cost savings and give us a competitive edge more quickly.



FASTER, CHEAPER, MORE FLEXIBLE.

i

101

We have been able to achieve bottom-line advantages by increasing the
flexibility of production capacities at all our locations, which makes it passible
to manufacture more products of the same kind parallel to each other as
well as to intensity our cooperation with leading contract manufacturing
companies — which specialisis like to call Silicon Foundries. These measures
enable us to adjust logic IC capacities more quickly to changes in demand
in the mobile communications, data networking, chip card and automotive

sectors.

A milestone in our strategy to increase flexibility is the decision tc carry cver
the developmental results of our two-year cooperation with the Silicon
Foundry firm UMC, in our joint vcnturt". UMCI. Together with UMC, we
are building a 300mm wafer plant in Singapore, to which Infineon will

also commit its manufacturing expertise.

A decisive factor is the level of customer satisfaction, which we are further
increasing by introducing a new, electronic logistics system to which our
customers will also have access. This is one example of how we are optimiz-
ing the entire delivery process, from contract order to actual delivery — in
order to be able to achieve maximal delivery power, delivery flexibility and

delivery loyalty.

Targeted Investments and Highly Motivated Employees

Planned capital expenditures of 900 million Euro in the 2002 fiscal year will be used

to maintain our technological edge and cost leadership, both in regards to the 300mm

productior process and to ccppar-based logic ICs production.

In particular, our developmental teams, which developed completely new or

improved production and assembly processes as well as the smallest of chip generations,

have catapulted Infineon to an outstanding starting point from which the company can

succeed during the next economic upswing. Furthermore, in the 2001 fiscal year, our

employees submitted more than 22,000 suggestions for improvements - to make business

processes faster or more cost-effective — which do not directly involve their own areas

of responsibility. Almost 18,000 ideas, 13 percent more than the year before, were put

in practice, resulting in an additional savings potential of 53 million Euro.

{Chief Operating Officer]

Dr. Andreas von Zitzewitz
Member of the
Management Board,
Chief Operating Officer (CO0)

- Born 1960.

- Married, 3 children.

- Studied electrical
engineering.

- Doctorate in electrical

engineering.

TOTAL INVESTMENTS
IN EURO MILLIONS

4,000

2000

+ INFINEON GROUP

BN THEREOF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT



[Chief Financial Officer]

' 2001

We have prescribed a
fitness and cost-cutting pro-
gram for Infineon called
Impact, which riot only leads
to quick, short-term eifects,
but ensures that the
company will benefit from
financial fesibility in the
iong run. At the end of the
23C1 fiscal year, Infinegn
attained a significantly posi-
tive net cash position. This
was due to the cost-cutting
measures as well as to the
proceeds derived from the
capitalincrease implemented

in july and the divestiture

of several businesses.

n the middle of 2001, it became evident that thé downturn in demand would continue.
I For this reason, we developed and initiated a cost reduction program called “Impact”. It
was designed to bundle all energies in order to identify potential savings throughout the
compar.y of =t least 1 tillion Euro and to quickly implement the necessary measures to
attain tais goal. Beforehand, we had already taken steps designed to counteract the market
downturn. For exainple, in April 2001, Infineon decided to reduce planned investments
in the 2001 fiscal year by 500 million Euro and to cut investments in the 2002 fiscal
year oy aa additicna! 1 billior: Eure In addition, starting inJune 2001, Infineon imposed

a hiring freeze to the greatest possible extent.

In order to maintain our cash flow at a stable level in the 2002 fiscal year, we
took the additional step of further reducing planned capital expenditures by 600 million
Euroto a current volume of 900 million Euro. Furthermore, we are plannihg to reduce
research and development expenses. Nevertheless, it is our intention to continue investing

in key strategic projects.

2.4 Billion Euro from Portfolio Optimization and Capital Increase

We restructured our operations portfolio in the 2001 fiscal year in order to more effec-
tively concentrate on our core business, from which Infineon raised 900 miltion Euro.
We received an additional 1.5 billion Euro in proceeds from the issuance of ordinary
shares in July 2001. These measures led to a positive net cash position of 568 million
Euro in the 2001 fiscal year. This resulted ina positive balance of accounts receivable

less debt at the end of the 2001 fiscal year, which was higher than originally expected.

- Equity Ratio at 71 Percent at Year’s End

Total assets at September 30, 2001, increased during the 2001 fiscal year by 10 percent
to over 9.7 billion Euro. Shareholders’ equity rose to 6.9 billion Euro. Therefore, the
equity ratio reached a level of 71 percent at the end of the 2001 fiscal year, 5 percentage
points higher than the year before.

Furthermore, we concluded separate agreements for short-term and long-term
credit lines with several financial institutions. From the existing credit lines, there were

approximately 1.6 billion Euro available on September 30, 2001.



[Chief Financial Officer]

SOLID NET CASH POSITION.

Job Reductions Are Unavoidable

. Unfortunately, the far-reaching cost-cutting program aiso entails unavoidable adjust-
ments in the size of our workforce. The number of employees worldwide will be reduced
by about 5,000. Moreover, staff a: cur production facilities in Regensburg and Munich
will be working reduced hours from October 2001 to March 2002. Expansion of operations
at Infineon’s state-of-the-art 300mm production plant in Dresden is expected to create
200 new jobs, and our priority is to offer newly-created positions to current employees
first. Full-time contracts are being converted to part-time contracts on a voluntary basis

at some Infineon locations.

We maintain our ongoing support to employees impacted by the job cuts, ir
order to help them optimize opportunities in finding employment elsewhere. Our consid-
erable assistance program includes training for job applications and interviews, along
with setting up appointments at recruitment companies or with employment offices. In
addition, employees have been granted permission to use PC technology to search for
new jobs or write applications. Infineon employees who lose their job will continue to

have access to the job markets of the entire Siemens Group.

Outstanding Risk and Opportunity Managerment System

We have initiated and implemented a risk and opportunity management system through-
out the company, which was examined and checked by KPMG, our independent auditing
company. It puts us in the position of identifying and evaluating market opportunities as
well as the risks involved. In this regard, it serves as the basis to quickly and effectively
respend to trends and take advantage of potential opportunities. The risk and opportunity
management system we have developed has become a key element of our business
operations. In the meantime, we have applied for a U.S. patent for the system and were

even granted public recognition in September 2001, when the company officially won

the “2001 European Risk Management Award”.

Peter }. Fischl
Member of the Management
Board, Chiaf Financial Officer

(CFO) and Labor Director

- Born 1946.
- Married, 2 children.

- Industrial clerk.
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[Chief Technology Officer] .

Infineon has further
expandedb its leading-edge
technological position, with
a research and development
budget of 1.2 billion Euro ir
the 2001 fiscal year. More
than 5,000 employees at

29 development centers
warldwida develop solutions,
products and processes,
whick continue to set new

standards for performance

and efficiency.

n many devices, an increasing number of applications emerging from different electronic
I markets are converging. The result has been a steady increase in the complexity of
semiconductor products. Infineon has successfully responded to this challenge. We take
advantage of our core competencies to combine them with technologies from varicus

fields of application in order to develop new, innovative systems solutions.

For example, our Wireless Solutions Business Group united the technologies of
GSM and EDGE standards for mobile telephony onto a single chip, and additionally
integrated the recording of MP3 music files. This combinaticn of communpications and
entertainment was further developed for the automotive sector. The most advanced
chips for telematics soluticns optimally integrate a variety of different systems such as

satellite navigation, Internet access, stereo equipment and voice recognition.

Milestones in the Development of Products and Partnerships
With its new developments in the 2001 fiscal year, Infineon once again achieved ground-

breaking milestones and formed a series of important partnerships.

mm We introduced a chip family designed to serve as an extremely compact
interface for future telecommunication functions. This ensures, for the first
time, the space-saving integration of voice transmission and quick data
transmission, in accordance with the ADSL standard, onto a single adapter
card. For even speedier transmission on an SHDSL basis, Infineon has

~ developed the very first single chip transceiver solution.

nes Infineon introduced the world's smallest single chip solution based on
cost-effective CMOS technology, as part of a product family for Bluetooth

applications.

s The Infotainment Controller TC1920 integrates a high-performance micro-
controller and signal processing functions together with a complete tele-
matic-specific periphery, as well as voice recognition and voice processing.
This enables the development of navigation platforms, Internet radio and

multimedia applications for automobiles.



{Chief Technology Officer]

RESEARCH FOR A FASCINATING FUTURE.

We are exploiting the synergies created from partnerships with other companies
to facilitate the quick, cost-effective transfer of technologies into our products. Now we
are also developing magnetic memory technologies (MRAM) with IBM, our long-time
partner. We have entered into a partnership with Toshiba to develop next generation
ferro-electric memories (FeRAM). Infineon is jcintly working on a complete Bluetooth

systems solution for automotive applications with Mecel.

World Record Research — Patents Ensure Competitive Edge

Records in speed and price ure key deterinining factors, partizularly for broadband
communications. In the 2001 fiscal year, Infineon’s research laboratories pioneered the
development of a 25 Cigzhertz for high-frequency cenverters and a 52 Gigahertz for
oscillators using inexpensive standard CMOS technologies. Neither frequency has ever
been achieved before — a feat which represents an important step towards manufacturing
extremely fast, cost-effective chips for high-speed data transmission. Thus, Infineon set

twe world records, which demonstrates the extensive innovative strength of the company.

In the 2001 fiscal year, we expanded our portfolio of registered patents or patent
applications by 11 percent, from a total of 28,000 to more than 31,000. This corresponds
to an average of a dozen new patentable applications developed every working day of
the year. We are particularly proud of this performance. At the same time, it is a com-

mitment: we want to continue offering highly innovative and marketable products and

thus ensure our technological edge.

10,000

Dr. S6nke Mehrgardt
Member of the
Management Board,
Chief Technology Officer (CTO)

- Born 19438,
- Married, 4 children.
- Studied Physics.

- Ph. D. in Natural Sciences.
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[Chief Sales and Marketirg Officer]

2001

All semiconductor market
segments have been impact-
ed by the current dramatic
economic downturn. For this
reason, we are increasingly
focusing our sales and mar-
keting efforts on securing
sales volume with our major
customers and further
expanding aur market share
through accelerated offer
procedures as well as price
flexibility. With the halp

of datahase marketing
campaigns and the focus on
distributors, we were able to
achieve a stronger presence

in the mass market.

page A7

ne of Infineon’s top priorities was securing sales volume with its largest customers
O within the framework of the challenging business environment prevailing in the
2001 fiscal year. We succeeded in achieving this goal in all five Business Groups.
The three top customers of the Automotive and Industrial Electronics Business Group
accounted for 40 percent of its total revenues. A small number of quickly expanding
customners significantly increased their relative importance within the major customer
portfolio of the Security and Chip Card ICs Business Group. Both the Wireline Com-
munications and Wireless Solutions Business Groups each did more than 50 percent of
their business with their top 8 and top 3 customers, respectively. The same applied to
the Memory Products Business Group, in which the 7 largest customers were responsible
for 50 percent of total sales. Infineon’s bit growth climbed by almost 70 percent compared
to the previous fiscal year, achieving a growth rate which was once again higher than

overall market growth.

Growing Sales Potential in Asia and North America

NAFTA (the North America free trade zone), the Asia-Pacific region and Japan now
account for almost 50 percent of Infineon’s total revenues. We succeeded in maintaining
our market share in the NAFTA and Asia-Pacific regions, although demand for semi-
conductors cooled off earlier and declined more extensively in comparison to the Euro-
pean market. We are continuing to consider these geographical areas as having increased

significance because of their very size and market potential.

In North America, we further intensified our customer relations with the
manufacturers of PCs and servers. In the market segment for wireline communications,
Infineon has positioned itself as a capable, high-performance competitor offering lead-
ing-edge technologies. In the automotive sector, American electronic component sup-
pliers are increasingly taking 2dvantage of our technical support and systems competence

in the fields of motor management, infotainment and electronics designed to raise the

level of comfort and security.




[Chief Sales and Marketing Officer]

PARTNER, NOT JUST SUPPLIER.

The Asia-Pacific Region is growing in importance as a sales market for the semi-
conductur industry. We are benefitting from the growth of this promising region by further
expanding our technological expertise as well as by forming strategic partnerships and
joint ventures. In Japan, we have made considerable progress in expanding our ties to
automobile componeut suppliers and to the telecominunications industry. Furthermore,
we achieved sales growth there of more than 100 percent for memory chips, an achieve-

ment which clearly demonstrates our competitiveness in comparison to local providers.

Partners for Sales and Logistics

in our direet sales activities, we natually concentrzte our efforts on the large customers
which operate on a global basis. However, the importance to Infineon of indirect distri-
bution channels and the cooperation with pure manufacturing companies, so-called
Electronic Manufacturing Services (EMS), have grown considerably. Their contribution

to Infineon's total revenues has climbed by 50 percent in the 2001 fiscal year.

Avnet, Insight and Pioneer/Eurodis rank among our largest distribution partners.
In the EMS market, companies such as Celestica, Flextronics, SCI and Solectron emerged
as key customers. They are increasingly assuming responsibility for the manufacturing
of mobile communications devices on behalf of well-known brand name electronics pro-
viders. Furthermore, EMS specialists are continually expanding their design expertise
for such devices. As a consequence of this trend, their interest in Infineon’s systems know-

how is growing within the framework of a constructive partnership.

Marketing: Globally Online and Regionally Focused

We have been able to expand our image and boost awareness of Infineon as a competent
pertner in all important regicns of the global semiconductor market. We are intensifying
the ongoing regional expansion of our sales and marketing activities, particularly in the
Asia-Pacific region and in Japan. We have been implementing 2 new communications

strategy in North America to increase our presence in key media.

We are attempting to meet the increasing information and interaction require-
ments of our custorners through web-based marketing measures, for example via eCRM
{electronic Customer Relationship Management) or Myinfineon.com, our customized
Internet portal. During the process of developing these Internet tools, we intensified our
entire data base marketing activities, including direct mailing campaigns, for example

via Design:)Link, a new customer magazine published quarterly.

Peter Bauer
Member of the

.Manragemenrt Bonard,

Chief Sales and Marketing
Officer (CMQ)

- Born 1960.

- Married, 2 children.

- Graduated in electrical
engineering.

- Certified engineer.
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The leading position Infineon Technologies maintains in the
semiconductor industry can mainly be attributed to the know-how
of its employees. Motivation, flexibility and knowledge form the
basis of our company’s long-term success and excellent future
perspectives in an industry marked by fierce giobal competition
and high technological dynamics.

The guiding principles that govern the

behavior of our management - which
we at Infineon consider to be exemplary -
take into account the environment we
operate in. Creative, innovative and uncon-
ventional approaches are the prerequisites
for developing new ideas and business
models. Entrepreneurial thinking, customer
orientatioh, tearn spirit and high achieve-
ment ideals are the values around which
our corporate image has been defined.
The capability to meet challenges with
perseverance and a clear focus are indi-
spensable for creating a highly-motivating
environment for employees and colleagues
that not only nurtures, but also creates an
incentive for the workforce to improve
its performance. The courage to make clear-
cut decisions and the resoluteness to
implement them are two factors that have
been crucial for soundly positioning our

company in the market.

Dual Career Planning and

Infineon University

We can only secure the long-term growth
of our company in a2 market as highly
volatile as the semiconductor market if
we are able to successfully compete for
talented and highly-qualified employees.
In order to achieve this goal, Infineon
has developed a whole set of attractive and
promising human resources instruments.
We have introduced dual career planning
in our extensive human resources deve-

lopment concept. Employees are offered



[Employees]

IT'S PEOPLE WHO MAKE A DIFFERENCE.

individual development perspectives not only at the management level, but also in regards
to specialized knowledge. Thus, we are able to better balance the interests of the com-
pany and of the employees. The project in progress — infineon University — has been
conceived to serve as a strategically important dialog and learning platform for our ein-
ployess. At special interest seminars, workshops and strategy meetings, we work on deve-
loping and fostering interdisciplinary and intercultural teamwork capabilities as well

as the efficient transfer of know-how, all of which are crucial factors for our company.

Market, Suzcess and Performance-crient2d Remunaration

As a global employer competing at the international level for the smartest brains in the
murket, we have developed a remuneration policy that is matketoriented and telkes success
ar.d achievement into account. The combination of fixed and vatiable salary components
creates additional motivation for employees who think and act entrepreneurially. The
linkage of variable income with strategic and operative company goals serves as an effective
management and control instrument. Furthermore, we have set up employee participation

programs, for example, an employee stock purchase program and a stock option plan.

The employee stock optien plan that has been in place since the company
went public, was changed in the 2001 fiscal year with the approval of'the Supervisory
Board and the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting. The aim was to establish a more interna-
tionally competitive program. One major innovation was the addition of a competitive
exercise price, which is in line with the German Stock Corporation Act. Another was
the enlargement of the group of eligible people to encompass about 10 percent of the
company's employee base. Our International Long-Term Incentive Plan offers our best
emgloyees « nlan that is eqivalent at al! sites worldwide, and which has been modelled

after a shareholder value oriented incentive system.

Staff Adjustments during Down and Upturn

In the highly volatile, dynamic international semiconductor sector, being able to perma-
nently adjust employee resources to changes in the market in time is a crucial factor.
For this reason, at Infineon we strive to carry out the measures required in a professional,
consistent, timelv and fair manner, in line with our management principles. This is
the only way in which we will be able to secure the long-term success and existence of

Infinean Technologies, both in times of downturns as well as during the next upturn.

Jirgen Buschmann
Senior Vice President,

Head of Human Resourcas

- Born 1952.
- Married, 1 child.
- Studied law.

- Assessor jur./Lawyer.
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{Campeon]

With high-tech products
designed for global voice
and data communications,
Infineon is paving the way
for the information and
knowledge-based society
of the 215t century. As a
technological pioneer, we
are focussing our effarts
to adap* our working envi-
ronment to these new
conditions. Cne example

is Campeon, our new

corporate headquarters.

The name Campeon is derived from Campus and our company name
Infineon. The university — the classical institution of knowledge processing —
serves as a model for our new corporate headquarters. Of course, it must

be adapted to the requirements of a high-tech company in the 21st century.

By the end of the year 2003, up to 7,000 of Infineon’s highly skilled knowl-
edge workers will be brought together in one place - instead of being
scattered at nine different locations throughout Munich. This concentration
on ane location will improve contacts among the employees within the com-
pany. Together with a simplification of work processes, the innovative archi-
tecture and design of the site, it will provide the basis for our employees to

more intensively exchange, multiply and further develop their know-how.

page 2o

P romoting the internal exchange of

knowledge is just one example of
Infineon’s future-oriented approach, which
moves above and beyond day-to-day
business operations. Infineon’s motto
“Never Stop Thinking” not only applies
to Campeon, our new corporate head-
quarters, but also to our social and political
involvement. For this reason, in January
2001 we opened a liaison office in Berlin
in order to establish a more open and
direct dialog with politicians and associa-

tions.



[Citizenship]

NEW ROOM FOR NEVER STOP THINKING.

Infineon is aware of its role in societal interaction: high-tech companies can
not simply trust the society and political sector to immediately understand their own
needs. Therefore, Infineon will engage in an even more active dialog, both in Berlin and
in Brussels, to promote increased understanding. The aim is to further improve the

general framework of high-tech companies in Cermany and Europe.

Our priority is to focus on relevant issues such as communications, education
and research, and on the people who will deal with them: namely our children. Appro-
priately, one of the guidelines cornceming our involvernent in public affaits is “Education
of the Future Generation” — a goal which we have been actively pursuing since 1999.
Amor.g other things, we promote the training, devslepment and further sducation of

young people who come from socially deprived families around the world.

Social Welfare Programs in Germany and the USA

Improving the future chances of succeeding generations was also one of the aims of the
broadcasting marathon hosted by RTL in December 2000 and designed to raise donati-
ons for charitable purposes. As the main sponsor of the event, Infineon was in a position

of supporting the TV station in successfully raising 4 million Euro for a good cause.

In cooperation with other companies, Infineon supported the nationwide
“Start Social” competitioh in Germnany in 2001. The program grants awards to the best
ideas involving projects aimed at solving social problems — and, even more important,
to those projects which are actually being implemented. In addition to granting financial
assistance to the initiators of private and institutionalized programs, Infineon also serves

s a mentor, providing practical advice and support.

Nobody has remained unmoved and unaffected by the events that occurred in
New York and Washington on September 11. Shortly after this tragedy took place, we
established a foundation in the USA with an initial capital of 250,000 U.S. Dollars. Its
first task was to hand over the donations given by the company and its employees to

the American Red Cross to help the victims and their families.
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[Business Excellence]

2001

We are continuously striving

to orient our business
processes to the advantage
of our customers, to learn
from what we do, and to
improve or even restructure
these processes when
necessary. This includes the
behavior of our manage-
ment, the personal develop-
ment and participation

of employees and the expan-
sion of partnerships along
the value chain - and last
but not least, our responsi-

bility towards the society.

xperience demonstrates that companies can only maintain their leadesship position
E in the long run by creating optimal synergies between excellent technologies and
excelient management. We strive towards Business Excellence. This condition is not a
status quo which should be achieved, but rather a continuous race ~ a path in which
we are called upon to evaluate our strategies and processes time and again. Moving in
the right direction towards Business Excellence, we orient ourselves on the recognized
model developed by the European Foundation for Quality Management (EFQM), based
in Brussels. The fact that our quality management fulfills the minimun: requirements
is demonstrated by our Euro norm ISO 9001 certification. Nevertheless, we continue

thinking ahead.

The European Quality Award “EQA” is the most respected and acclaimed
award for quality management awarded to a European company. This award has been
granted annually by EFQM since 1992 with the support of the EU Commission and
the European Organization for Quality.

Since Infineon was first established in 1999, we have participated in this
demanding and challenging competition. In the year 2001, despite unfavorable market
conditions, Infineon was named one of the finalists in the competition. For us, this
honor convincingly demonstrates the quick progress we have made on the path towards
Business Excellence — to other people Infineon already belongs to the best-managed

companies in Europe and can be considered as an operational model for other companies.

Act in en Environmentally-Responsible Manner. Cut Costs

Our environmentally-oriented policies are based on the principle of assuming natural
responsibility for the people we live with and for the environment we live in. And it is
based on the realization that the natural resources on our planet are far from being -
limitless. During all stages of the production process, we try to create as little waste as
possible. When waste prevention is not possible, we try to minimize the use of resources
through recycling. One example is industrial water, up to 40 percent of which we can

recycle. In the same vein, we recycle harmful chemicals and gases within closed systems.



[Environmental Protection}

KEEPING STANDARDS HIGH-GUARANTEED.

Such measures have had positive effects: reducing the use of those key natural
resources which are important to us, avoiding environmental damage and even achieving
synergies. The diminished volurne of valuable resources which need to be purchased,
helps us to produce more cost-effectively on a sustained basis. On the path towards the
golden goal of Business Excellence, we have also had our environmental management

system certified according to Euro norm ISO 14001

Pioneer in Lead-Free Semiconductors

Together with the other large European semiconductor manufacturers Philips and
STMiere, Infineon initiated a program in February 2001 that introduced a global standard
to define and evaluate lead-free semiconductor products. Lead is commonly used to
laminate the connecting pins of electronic components, so that they securely adhere to
the soldering points. In July 2001, we had already published our first draft proposal for
standards which foresaw a maximum level of 0.1 percent of lead remaining — referring

to the individual material.

Up until now, the main obstacle preventing the semiconductor industry from
manufacturing chips without using environmentally harmful lead was the lack of inter-
nationally uniform standards and methods to evaluate the quality and reliability of lead-
free technologies. The initiative we have taken in Europe will foster and accelerate the
introduction of even more environmentally-compatible production processes on a global

basis. At the end of the year 2001, the first samples of lead-free components should be

available.

We consider environmental
protection to be an aspect
of business management.
Our quality standards are
not limited to our products

and services, but extend to

all related processes, from

research and development

to production and distribu-

tion — also encompassing

the safety of our employees.
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[Convergence]}

INFINEON LEADS THE WAY INTO
THE NEW COMMUNICATIONS AGE.

! f you surf on the Internet and enter the word “convergence” in a search engine, you
will be able to download hundrzds of links — from websites preparing background
information tc companies offering convergence management and consulting - as well

as hundreds of texts from around the world which are dedicated to this trend.

But let us get to the heart of the matrer. What exactly is convergence? A literal
translution weuld be “to head for cach cther, to correspond”. In the technolegy sector,
one refers to communications channels and tools which merge together. In other words:
convergerce describes the tendency to come closer together, and possibly the fusicn
of media which originally developed separately from each other. Take the example of
cellular phones, which can now be used for accessing Internet services. Or the World
Wide Web, which can be accessed not only via PC but also by using TVs equipped with
multimedia functions or in one’s own car with the help of consumer electronics devices

enabled for mobile communications.

Therefore, it is not surorising that Medien Aktuell magazine wrote in February
2001 about a “progressive media concentration against the backdrop of convergence”.
Or when the focus of an article in Frankfurter Allgemeine Zeitung at the end of April 2001
was on the “co-pilot with many functions — navigation plus radio, telematics and telephone”,

a perfect example for convergence. There is-an unlimited number of media references.

The issue of security is once again in the limelight, especially after the events
of September 11, 2001. Aprlications such as secure data transmiszion over networks, elec-
tronic signatures and personal identification, all require different semiconductor technol-
ogies. Infineon is developing these very technologies and has long been selling the
appropriate semiconductor solutions. “Infineon supplies chips for Pentagon employee
identification cards” (Reuters, 30.10.2001). A reference which speaks for itself. Whether
in Germany, Great Britain, India or in the USA, everywhere you will confront the same
message: “Chip cards are just the ticket” (Financial Times, 18.4.2001). The years to
come will be the communications age of technological convergence — above and beyond
the inevitable development of the next mobile communications generations such as

GPRS and UMTS. And Infineon will significantly lead the way for this development.
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[Wireline Communications]

2001

Our success in the Wireline
Communications Business
Group largely depends on

our ability to meet the
curreat requirements of our
customers while simulta-
neously staying a step
ahead and anticipating their
constantly changing needs.

Our aim is to offer just thz

right product at the right time.

=T he Wireline Communications Business Group develops semiconductors and fiber
Toptic components integrated into local and global networks for the intermediation and
transmission of veice, data and video signals. In the 2001 fiscal year, the business group
managed to increase its revenues by almost 16 percent to 768 million Euro. The main
reason was the increase in saies of traditional telecommunications products used in voice
networks with analog and digital (ISDN) subscriber lines. The market launch of
modules designed for high-speed optical fiber networks also proceeded successfully. EBIT
decreased to a loss of 95 million Euro in the 2001 fiscal year, following a positive EBIT
of 47 million Euro the year before. These results include a total of 126 million Euro for
amorlization and impairment charges due to acquisition-related expenses as well as

additional costs of carrying unused capacity.

Success in New Markets

In the 2001 fiscal year, demand continued to rise for our semiconductor products used
by the telecommunications industry in connection with ISDN and analog fixed lines —
above all in emerging markets such as China, India and Brazil. We were able to penetrate
the local markets in the Asia-Pacific region and Japan with our new lOBaseS and VDSL
products. In the market for optical networking components, leading providers of data
networks, such as Alcatel and Cisco. have displayed extensive interest in our fiber-to-the-
home technology featuring bi-directional modules. Moreover, Infineon was successful
in the future-oriented 3G market, forming a new strategic partnership with Ericsson to

develop and supply semiconductors for UMTS mobile communications base stations.

Convergence of Communications Technologies
The demands placed on semiconductors for future-
oriented wireline networking technologies are
steadily increasing. This technological development
is being driven, among other factors, by a substantial
overall rise in data traffic, the increasing convergence
of voice and data services in a single netwérking
infrastructure, the rising level of competition among
telecommunications companies and the growing
integration of different home-based applications into

a single set-top-box.



[Wireline Communications]

FASTER THAN THE MARKET.

The consequence is that increasingly large amounts of data will have to be
transmitted over long distances ~ but will need to be safeguarded against unauthorized
access. Moreover, information with varying data rates {voice and video) and quality
requirements (voice and data) is now being transmitted simultaneously over one and the
same network. This “convergence of demands” requires an even greater “intelligence”

of networks.

Strategic Focus on Tomorrow's Markets

We are meeting the challenges posed by technological development by continuing to
Zecus on cur core competencies. They encompass optical fiber components and compo-
nents for high-speed data transmission up to 40-Gigabits/second, as well as mixed signal
irtegrated cizcuits and network processars for intelligent network nodes. For this reason,
we are investing in future-oriented high-growth segments such as enabling speedier
Internet access via DSL, Ethernet via telephone lines, optical and electrical components
for 10-Gigabit and 40-Gigabit network nodes along with complete systems solutions

to provide optical network access for users — namely the fiber-to-the-home technology.

For this reason, we continued to restructure the Wireline Communications
Business Group in the 2001 fiscal year. This included the divestiture of our Infrared
Components business and the Image and Video business. In April 2001, we also acquired
Ardent Technologies. The company has gained expertise as the basis to enter the
growing market for integrated circuits used in local area networks (LAN). We purchased
Catamaran Communications in July 2001 as a means of boosting our know-how in the
field of optical networking. Catamaran is the recognized leader in developing Framer
ICs for the high-growth 10-Gigabit/second segment as well as for the next generation of

40-Gig. bit/second components.

When one considers the VDSL technology we acquired in the year 2000 when
we purchased the Israeli company Savan Communications, one arrives at the conclusion
that Infineon is in an outstanding position. VDSL allows for broadband data transmission
covering the “last mile” in wide area netv/orks and local area networks to be implemented
using existing telephone lines. We are well-prepared to fulfill the future-oriented re-

quirements of our customers.

Gerhard Geiger
Chief Executive Officer,
Wireline Communications

Business Group

- Born 1947.

- Married, 2 children.

- Studied electrical
engineering.

- Certified engineer

(Technical University).
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[Wiretess Solutions}

2001

The next mobile communica-
tion generations will further
dzvelop the interaction of
cellular phones laptops and
PDAs - and serve as a cata-
lyst unleashing a run on
demand for advanced semi-
conductor platforms.
infineon has developed the

required technologies.
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D ue to a significant decline in demand for cellular phones, accompanied by a sharp
drop in prices for high-frequency and baseband semiconductors, total revenues

of the Wireless Solutions Business Group fell to 997 million Euro in the 2001 fiscal year,

18 percent lower ‘han the > year before EBIT was ata loss of 178 million Euro in. the

Infineon continues to maintain a good competitive standing in the field of
chip solutions for wireless communications, and is in an outstanding starting position to

benefit from the expected market upswing.

Outstanding Positioning

In the.market for mobile communications solutions, Infineon is one of the few provi-
ders able to offer the entire range of both high-frequency and baseband semiconductors
required for wireless applications. For example, we supply complete systems platforms
including software for modern-day GSM and GPRS cellular phones used in 2G and 2.5G
mobile communications networks. At present, we are developing chipsets for the UMTS
standard. Within a few years, UMTS will emerge as the third mobile communications
generation (“3G”) around the world and make mobile communications even speedier
and more flexible. Moreover, with a market share of approximately 70 percent, we have
become the leading supplier of chipsets built into wireless DECT telephones in Europe
and WDCT telephones in the USA. Our experience and innovative strength in these
fields have brought Infineon to the optimal starting point for the promising new mass

markets for Bluetooth, wireless LAN and GPS-enabled applications.

Exposed Market Position for GSM Chipsets

Nevertheless, global demand for GSM baseband chipsets continues to remain strong.
Up until the end of September 2001, Infineon had already sold more than 125 million
chipsets. In addition, we further increased our sales potential in Southeast Asia in the
2001 fiscal year on the basis of our GSM/GPRS systems solutions. The official licensing

of our GSM platform in China was of particular importance.

Focusing on Future issues
We have consolidated our technological leadership in regards to third-generation tech-
nologies, one of the main future-oriented issues impacting the mobile world of com-

munications. In connection with another future-oriented issue, namely “Short Range



[Wireless Solutions]

FROM CHIP PRODUCER TO SYSTEM PROVIDERS.

Wireless”, it should be noted that with its introduction of the new BlueMoon chipsets
to the market, Infineon is supporting an up and coming systems standard for the wireless
data transmission among elecironic devices located within short distances of each other.
Bluetooth modules developed by Infineon are already integrated into products from

market leaders such as Sony and Nokia.

Fit for 2.5G and 3G Applications
Te date, cellular phones are primarily used to handle simple telephone czlls and send
SMS messages. Due to the overly slow transmission of data, consumers rarely take
advzntage of the poszibility to access Internet services‘on cellular phones with integrated
WAP functionality. However, the market launch of 2.5G and 3G-enabled cellular phones
will lead to a massive increase in mobile data communications on the Internet. The new
generations of mobile communications technologies will transmit data at a speed up to
40 times higher than on a WAP-based network and up to 16 times higher than in ISDN
fixed line systems. They will also provide the basis for video broadcasts. Attractive fee
rates, based not on time spent on-line, but only on the data volume which has been down-
loaded and transmitted, will serve to further promote the utilization of GPRS, EDGE
(both 2.5G) and UMTS (3G) applications. We are talking about a type of mobile leased
line, which will only be billed when the user utilizes m-banking, Internet shopping or

added value services in connection with a given location.

We expect the upcoming revolution in cellular phone applications to proceed
in two phases because GPRS systemns are comparatively less efficient than UMTS
systems. Hovever, the main advantage GPRS systems offer is that they can be integrated
into an existing GSM infrastructure with a relatively moderate level of investments.
UMTS requires that the telecommunications companies create a new infrastructure -
and this entails extensive roll-out expenditures and longer lead time until comprehensive

geographical coverage is achieved.

. Wireless Selutions

Ulrich Hamann
Chief Executive Officer,

Business Group

- Born 1955.

- Married, 2 children.

- Studied electrical
engineering.

- Certified engineer.
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[Security and Chip Card iCs]

12001

As the market leader for semiconductors integrated into chip cards and O ur Security and Chip Card ICs

smart cards, we have extensive experience. For this reason, we are alsc the Business Group offers security con-
first contact point when it comes to achieving digital security in our trollers, security memeories and other

increasingly networked world of data. | semiconductor systems solutions. These __

PE~tTL TR

As technological leader, we cover almost the entire spectrum of semicon-

ductors for intelligent security hardware with

ez Chip Card ICs for identification purposes via card reading devices and
for secure storage of personal data;

= Security ICs to protect applications and data from unauthorized access
as well as for biometric authentication (fingerprint) in open network
systems;

mm Secure Memory ICs to protect digital right and therefore to prevent the

unauthorized reproduction of data;

Identification Systems ICs to electronically secure and simplify logistics

and purchasing processes in a contactless manner,
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solutions are used as identification and
security mediums in the fields of telecom-

munications, banking, health services,

. access control, software distribution, games

and multimedia. We are the world market
leader for ICs for chip cards and smart
cards, thanks to our competitive edge in
technologies combined with excellent
customer relations. Furthermore, in the
2001 fiscal year, we further improved
our position in the promising market for
digital security applications. All in all,
we succeeded in increasing revenues by .
57 percent to 588 million Euro in compa-
rison to the year before. However, EBIT
declined to 27 million Euro in the same
period. The main reason was the strong
pressure on prices, which was the result of
a decrease in market volume during the

course of the year.

Cooperations and Capacities N

We maintained our market leadership in
the lucrative but increasingly competitive
chip card market. We extended key partner-
ships with leading card manufacturerssuch -
as Gemplus, Giesecke & Devrient, OCS
and SchlumbergerSema. On the basis of
our launching of the world’s first 16-bit pro-
cessor/64-Kilobyte memory SIM chip cards
for high-end GSM platforms, we were able
to acquire new contracts and strengthen

our market position, above all in Asia.



[Security and Chip Card 1Cs}

UNDOUBTEDLY TOP IN SECURITY.

in May 2001, we established “Ingentix”, a joint venture with the Israeli com-
pany Saifun Semiconductors. Ingentix specializes in developing MultiMediaCard
memory products, for example for the PDA market or MP3 compatible devices. In the
future, special flash memory products based on Nitrided Read Only Memory (NROM)

technology will also be developed, manufactured and marketed.

Simultaneously, we have increasingly invested in capacities for digital security.
We have begun mass production of the biometric identification system FingerTIP,
which is being increasingly built into laptops as well as PC keyboards and mice. We are
also preparing ourselves to mare forzefully ernter the mass market of the globa! banking
ir.dustry. The decision on the part of credit card companies to replace the magnetic strips
on credit cards with chips opens up new market perspectives for Infineon’s crypto-con-

trollers, which have already passed their operational tests in series.

Security as a Growth Market

The issue of security has gained a new global dimension since the events of September 11,
2001. The convergence of varicus communications and data networks through the
Internet had already changed our lives beforehand. By means of the ongoing information
flow, it creates a level of comfort today to an extent which has never been achieved
before. The new opportunities may also lead to abuse. It is now easier to falsify identities
of to gain access to the personal data of others. As a consequence, people will increa-
singly be forced to accurately and reliably identify themselves in the virtual world - as
they have done in the past in real-life sitvations, for example at the bank counter or at

national berders.

In dealing with the issue of security, we do not restrict ourselves to developing
optimal digital solutions. Infineon is contributing its expertise towards making political
discussion more objective. We established the “Silicon Trust” network in the 2001 fiscal
year, which creates synergetic effects for customers and partners who work with Infineon's

security technologies.

We are confident that the market for secure, mobile and easy-to-use data appli-
cations will continue to expand considerably in the mid-term. As the world market leader

with superior technology, we intend to disproportionally benefit from this market growth.

Dr. Hermann Eul
Chief Executive Officer,
Security and Chip Card ICs

Business Group

- Born 1959.
- Studied electrical
engineering.

- Doctorate in engineering.
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[Memory Products] .

We are not only a technolo-
gical leader in memory chips,
but we also have the most
favorable cost structures in
production at our disposal.
When the naxt upswing

in the DRAM market takes
place, we want to rank
among the winners, and we
definitely will. This zlso

applies to our market share.

ur most important dynamic memory products are high-performance mainstream
O SDRAMs with capacities of 128-Megabit and 256-Megabit, as well as 512-Megabit
chips which will be manufactured in the future. Dependent on customer demand, we
will increasingly focus on markets with higher margins, such as high-end PCs and Inter-
net servers. For those markets, we produce an increasingly large number of high-speed
graphic memory chips (SCRAMs) and Double Data Rate (DDR) DRAM products.

Decline in Revenues in the 2001 Fiscal Year

Revenues of the Memory Products Business Group declined by 54 percent in the 2001 fiscal
year to 1.6 billion Eurc, although cur sales of memory products, when calculated in
terins of megabits, actually rose by almost 70 percent, as planned. The muin reason for
the downward develepment in revenues is the drastic reduction in prices fer DRAM
products. This was driven by a strong drop in worldwide demand for PCs and Internet
infrastructure. At the end of the 2001 fiscal year, the costs per unit for memory products
were at times only 10 percent of the price levels prevailing at the beginning of the year.
As a consequence of the drop in prices, the EBIT amounted to a loss of 931 million

Euro in the 2001 fiscal year, compared to a record EBIT the year before.

Key Customers Grant Top Rankings

Despite massive competition and price dumping in the 2001 financial year, Infineon
succeeded in maintaining its market share and intensifying its relations with many key
customers on the computer market. These efforts paid off in our achieving a high level
of customer satisfaction: we continue to be one of the top 3 suppliers for 6 out of 7 of
our key customers. The supplier listings of Dell and Hewlett Packard even rank Infineon
as their number one chip provider. Furthermore, Compaq bestowed its “Compaq Supplier

Partnersnip Award” on us in July 2001.

Expansion of Technological and Cost Leadership

Leading market positions in technological and cost leadership are essential to ensure
long-term success in the highly competitive DRAM market. In the field of mémory
chips, we already rank among the forerunners in the industry both in terms of technologies
and costs. For example, we create competitive advantages for ourselves by means of
innovative production approaches. We managed to achieve significant gains in productivity
due to the early conversion of our 200mm product line to the 0.17 micron technology

and to an outstanding yield in manufacturing.



[Memory Products]

READY FOR TAKE-OFF.

Further milestones will follow. In the 2002 fiscal year, we intend to further
increase output at our new 300mm DRAM production facilities in Dresden and Taiwan.
This successfully tried and tested, highiy-advanced DRAM preduction method will
lead to a Jong-term 30 percent cost reduction per unit, due to a 150 percent higher yield
achieved per wafer. Parallel to this, we will once again reduce the chip structure, this
time o 0.14 micron, which is the basis for the additional 30 percent reduction in costs

already attained in our 200mm volume proguction.

Not only production methods but also the chips themselves are continually
being improved. Our strategy is tc focus on market segments with predictably high growth
rates, those which will not be so strongly impacted by future cyclical price fluctuations.
Thesc include our 512-Megabyte and 1-Gigabyte DIDR-DRAM rnodules, svhich have been
favorably evaluated by large chipset manutacturers such as AMD, Serverworks and VIA.
The same also applies to the 288-Megabyte RDRAM module, which has been validated
by Intel for use in combination with its own processors. The Mobile-RAM introduced
by Infineon in July 2001 is an exahp]e of our innovative strength. It is a 128-Megabit
memory chip, characterized by a particularly low level of power use. Our customers can
integrate the Mobile-RAM in developing their next generation PDAs, smart phones and
digital cameras, in order to make these devices even more practical and easy-to-use, as

well as to maximize the lifespan of the built-in batteries.

Prepared for the Upturn‘

There is no doubt that an upswing in the market for memory products will once again
take place. However, the timing of such a market and price recovery depends on deve-
lopments in the global economy and in the overall political situation. Taking these factors
into consideration, the preconditions are favorable, which will erable memory chip
prices to rise considerably again following a potential reduction in production overcapacity.
In addition, following the last update at the turn of the millennium, a further upgrading

of both corporate and private hardware can be expected before long.

Regardless of how the market develops, Infineon can flexibly adjust its production

capacities to demand, and is well prepared for the next upturn in the DRAM market.

Harald Eggers
Chief Executive Officer,
Memory Products

Business Group

- Born 1950.
- Married, 2 children.
- Studied physics.
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[Automotivz and Industrial Electronics]

2001

Infineon is the world's
second largest producer of
chips for automotive elec-
tronics. By producing high-
performance semiconducters,
we are doing our share
towards making cars even
safer, more comfortable and
more econcmical in tarms
of fuel consumption - and
now, equipring them with

more multimedia functions.
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nfineon’s Automotive and Industrial Electronics Business Group primarily manufactures
I microcontroilers, smart power 1Cs and complete modules for autonotive and industrial
applications. We are one of the few companies which is in a position to develop full
systemns solutions tailored to the individual requirements of the automobile industry,
including steering, memory and sensory functions. This represents a major competitive

edge in this market segment.

When it comes to industrial electronics, we focus on high-growth, standardized
or application-sperific preduct applications, such as drives, chargers for mobile devices
PP P ! Y g

and voltage converters in PC motherboards.

EBIT More Than Doubled

In the 2001 fiscal year, revenues in the Automotive and Industrial Electronics Business
Group climbed 25 percent to 1.1 billion Euro. EBIT more than doubled from 69 million
Euro last year to 145 million Euro. On the one hand, this can be attributed to the steady
development of the automobile market in Europe and the USA. In addition, we managed
to increase our market share on the Asian market for industrial electronics — accompanied

by the strategic success of penetrating the Japanese market for Power ASIC/ASSP solutions.

Participation in Formula 1 Races - With AUDO

Thanks to the successful market launch of new 32-bit TriCore microcontroller generations
in the 2001 fiscal year, Infineon is in a favorable competitive position — and this in
the face of an increasingly large variety of infotainment and navigations systems. These
important new core products are now being used by many major suppliers of automotive
electronics as a platform for the design of new systems, which will be built into future

generations of automobiles.

Our sponsorship of Formula 1 racecars has resulted in a mutually beneficial
partnership: we gain recognition while our partner is able to take advantage of Infineon’s
latest technological advances. The AUDO microcontroller is the core component of
a sensor system which is still able to evaluate analog and digital signals such as pressure,
temperature, position and number of engine revolutions, without interruption, even at

speeds of up to 300 km/hour.

The highly valuable insights gained from our Formula | efforts are integrated

into ongoing product development work for mass producers. We are in the pole position



TAKING POLE POSITION IN TELEMATICS.

with this new generation of 32-bit microcontrollers, an achievement which has been
underlined by the “Innovation of the Year 2001" prize awarded to Infineon by the

specialized international trade magazine “EDN”,

More Volts for More Comfort and Lower Fuel Consumption

The focus of our current work is on developing electronic components for future 42-volt
electrical systems, a project done in cooperation on with DaimlerChrysler. In the future,
42-volt electrical systems will be the prerequisite for autometive systems which require
even more power and are based on sericonducter applications. Tapping a 3.5 times
higher voltage than today’s typical 12-volt solution opens up new perspectives — raising
the performance lirzits for electrical systems such as air conditioning, electronic motor
control and braking systems, further lowering fuel consumption and increasing driving

comfort even more.

Automotive industry experts estimate that at least one million vehicles will
be equipped with these 42-volt networking systems annually as of the year 2010, The
resulting potential convergence of all kinds of high-tech solutions will make applications
such as motor control, airbag sensors and distance warning devices available at lower
prices than ever before, also enabling new applications such as electronic steering. These
functions will be complemented by integrated active security systems, GPS information

services and mobile office communications including Internet access.

These new electronic applications are not designed to distract drivers but to boost
their attention span so that they can more intensively focus on what is happening on
th= roads. Far this reason, voice control systems will play an increasing role in automotive
electronics of the future. This means that key functions will be regulated by voice. At
the same time, information will need to he conveyed to the driver in an unmistakable,
clearly audible manner. As a consequence, two semiconductor segments — automotive

and communications - are being linked together and converging simultaneously.

In conclusion, the information age has also penetrated the long-product cycle
semiconductor market for automotive electronics. This means that an increasing number
of new semiconductor products will have to be produced in large quantities in shorter
intervals than ever before. Infinecn has the necessary, state-of-the-art production capaci-
ties and technologies at its disposal, and thus is extremely well prepared for this market

development.

‘Automotive and Industrial

Dr. Reinhard Ploss
Chief Executive Officer,

Electronics Business Group

- Born 1955.

- Married, 1 child.

- Studied process
engineering.

- Doctorate in engineering.

AUTOMOTIVE AND INDUSTRIAL
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[Confidence]

WELL-EQUIPPED FOR THE FUTURE.

C urrent macroeconomic uncertainties complicate the task of making reliable predic-

tions about future market developments and Infineon’s business operations in the

2002 fiscal year. Following the dramatic downturn in the semiconductor industry in the

2001 calendar year, leading market analysts expect moderate, single-digit growth for 2002.
It is anticipated that the strong pressure on prices, tough competition and surplus pro-
duction capacity momentarily wili continue. Neverthe]éss, the semiconductor industry
ranks among the most important future-oriented industrial sectors in Europe and in the
entire world of technology. The semiconductor market, traditionally subject to intense
cyclical fluctuations, has expanded by an average of 14 percent annually over the last forty
years. It will temaln o high-growth market and catalyst for the ongoing niodernization

of business and society in general during the Information Age.

Infineon has moved ahead in fulfilling those prerequisites which are essential to ensure
its sustained market success: _

s We have reacted quickly and in a decisive manner to the challenging con-
ditions prevailing on the global market by ihitiaﬁng our cost-reduction pro-
gram “Impact”, and have a solid base of financial resources at our disposal.

sm We have successfully taken advantage of our independence as a public
company to imolement strategically vital acquisitions and to resolutely
optimize our portfolio structure.

We are well positioned in our growth segments, and rank among the market
leaders in them.

We are investing in technological and cost leadership and in the markets of
tomorrow. We are making our presence felt, are forerunners in innovations,

. and are securing crucial competitive advantages.

Our broad-based technological portfolio and the successful expansion of our
systems competence make us well-equipped to meet the growing requirements of our
customers for tailor-made solutions — from system and software design for cellular phones

to security applications and comprehensive solutions for telematics tn automobiles.

Furthermore, we are continually working to make our company processes even
quicker and more flexible - to provide the basis for rapid adjusting to market changes.
This is complemented by our striving for cost leadership and the ability to adapt production
capacities to market conditions within a short period. Last but not least, this prevides the
basis, in our opinion, for our being in a position to benefit as much as possible from the

growth dynamics of the next upturn in the semiconductor market.

infineon Technologies is
shaping microelectronics
by creating innovative
products, leading-edge
solutions and services for
the benefit of our cus-

tomers and shareholders.

The group picture

shows the members of the
Management Board of
Infineon Technologies AG
(from left to right hand side):
Peter ). Fischl (Finances),
Peter Bauer (Sales and
Marketing), Dr. Ulrich
Schumacher (Chairman),
Dr. Andreas von Zitzewitz
(Operations) and Dr. Sénke
Mehrgardt (Technology).
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[Financial Summary, 1996-2001]

SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
INFINEON TECHNOLOGIES AG AND SUBSIDIARIES

1998
T

1999 2000
T T

2001
T

Summary consolidated statements of operations data

L YEAR ENDED SEPTE!
EPT WHERE OTHERWISE STATED

Net sales

By Region:
Germany
Other Europe
USA
Asia/Pacific
Others

By Business Group:
Wireline Communications
Wireless Solutions
Security and Chip Card [Cs?
Memory Products
Automotive and Industrial Electronics
Cthers?

Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Research and development expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Restructuring charge*

Other operating income {expense), net

Operating income (loss)

Interest income (expense), net, inclusive of subsidies

Equity in eamings (losses) of associated companies

Gain on associated company share issuance’

Other income, net

Minority interests

Income (loss) before income taxes

Income tax benefit (expense)

Net income (loss)

Basic eamnings (loss) per share

Diluted earnings (loss) per share®

EBIT?

By Business Group:
Wireline Communications
Wireless Solutions
Security and Chip Card ICs?
Memory Products
Automotive and Industrial Electronics
Others3. 8
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[Financial Summary, 1996-2001]

SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA
INFINEON TECHNOLOGIES AG AND SUBSIDIARIES . 1997 1998 1999
T T

e YEAR ENDEG 'SEPTEMBER 3
Summary consolidated balance sheets data St ONS;EXCEPT WHERE OTHERWISE STATE

Cash and cash equivalents

Marketable securities

Inventories e

Toetal current assets

Property, plant and ecuipment, net

Long-tenm investments, net

Restricted cash

Total assets

Short-term debt, including current portion of long-term debt

Long-term debt, excluding current portion

Shareholders’ equity

Summary conrolidated statements of cashi flows data

Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Depreciation and aniortization

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

The IFX Share (as of September 30)°

Dividend per share (EUR)!0

Closing price Xetra Traaing System (EUR
Closing price New York Stock Exchange (USD)

Shares outstanding (in million)

Market capitalization (EUR m)

Market capitalization (USD m)

Key Figures

Equity ratio

Debt-equity ratio!!
Net Cash (as of September 30)!2

Employees {period end in total figures)
Total
By Region:

Gernmany
Other Europe
USA
Asia/Pacific
Others
By Function:1?
Production
Research and Development
Sales and Marketing
Administrative
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2001

! Columns may not add up due to rounding; figures according to U.S. GAAP (United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles);
n/a = not applicable.

2 Prior to the 2001 financial year, the Security and Chip Card ICs segment did not meet the requirements of a reportable segment and was
reported as part of the Other Operating segment. For the 2001 financial year, the Security and Chip Card ICs segment is identified as a
repoitable segment and due to its continuing significance, is reported separately, with prior period segment information restated for
comparative purposes.

* Consisting of “Other Operating Segments” and “Corporate and Reconciliation”. Effective October 1, 2000, our Other Operating segment
includes the results of certain activities previously reported under Corporate and Reconciliation, the Image and Video and Infrared Components
businesses (previously reported under Wireline Communications) as well as the gains on their disposals. The segment results fur the 1999
and 2000 financial years have been reclassified to be consistent with the reporting structure and presentation of the 2001 financial year and
to facilitate analysis of our current and future operating segment information. The Other Operating segment also includes our opto compenents
business that is conducted through a joint venture with Osram, a Siemens subsidiary. We sold our interest in the joint venture to Osram in
August 2001.

4 Consists of amounts attributable to the Impact cost saving project in 2001 and to the fabrication facility located in the North Tyneside area
of northern England, which was shut down in 1998.

5 In the years 2000 and 2001, ProMOS shareholders approved the distribution of employee bonuses in the form of shares. As a result of this
distribution; our proportional share of ProMOS’ shareholders’ equity increased by 53 million Euro in 2000 fiscal year and by 11 million Euro
in 2001 fiscal year. The increase is retlected as non-operating income in the 2000 and 2001 financial year.

6 Earnings per-share data for the 1996 to 1999 financial years assume that 600 million shares, the number of shares outstanding immediately
prior to our initial public offering in‘March-2000, were outstanding for all periods presented. For the 2000 financial year, the weighted
average nuniber of our company’s shares outstanding was £13,852,876, ur €15,121,185 oa a fully diluted basis. For the 2001 financial year,
the weighted average number of our company’s shares outstanding was 640,566,801 on a basic and fully diluted basis.

7 We define EBIT {earings before interest and tax) as earnings before interests and minority interests and taxes.

® In the 200] financial year, we revised our method of reporting excess capacity costs for segment reporting purposes. Previously, all excess
capacity costs, if any, were allocated to the segments based on the variance between originally forecasted purchases and actual purchases.
We have revised the method to allocate excess capacity costs to a foundry model, whereby such allocations are reduced based upon the lead
time of order cancellations. Any unabsorbed excess capacity costs will be included in Corporate and Reconciliation. This change did not
affect prior periods. We believe that this method beiter reflects the responsibilities of the segment management and is consistent with the
practices of independent foundries and more appropriately reflects the segment operating results.

Certain items are included in Corporate and Reconciliation and are not allocated to the segments. These iriclude corporate headquarters’
cost, certain incubator and early stage technology investment costs, non-recurring gains and specific strategic technology initiatives.
Additionally, legal costs associated with intellectual property are recognized by the segments when paid, which can differ from the period
originally recognized by Corporate and Reconciliation. For the year ended September 30, 2001, Corperate and Reconciliation includes
unallocated excess capacity costs of 27 million Euro, restructuring charges of 117 million Euro and corporate information technology
development costs and charges of 71 million Euro. )

¥ Initial Public Offering (IPO) on March 13, 2000, in Frankfurt and New York.

14 As the Company did not exist as a separate legal entity prior to March 30, 1999, we can present dividend information only subsequent to
that date.

' Equivalent to short-term and long-term debt divided by total shareholders’ equity.

12 Equivalent to cash and cash equivalents plus marketable securities plus restricted cash less short-term and long-term debt.

I* Emplovee numbers by function tracked since Infineon’s formation as an independent company.
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INFINEON TECHNOLOGIES AG

Established April 1,1999
Headguarters St.-Martin-Str. 53, 81669 Munich,
Germany

Phone: +49(0)892 34-0
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Beriin and Frankfurt am Main
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independent Auditors

Stock Listing

On March 13, 2000, our company successfully completed its initial
public offering of its securities in Germany and in the United States.
Since then, Infineon shares have bzen officially listed on the
Prankfurt Stock Exchange (ticker syinbol: “II'X", Gerraurn securities
code number 623100) and is traded in Germany via Xetra and on
the stock exchanges in Berlin, Bremen, Dusseldorf, Frankfurt,
Humburg, Hanover, Munich and Stuttgart. Optiens on the share
trade on the German-Swiss options exchange Eurex and on other
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Exchange (NYSE) under the ticker symbol “IFX” in the form of
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one share. The depositary for the ADSs is Morgan Guaranty
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TECH GLOSSARY

i
3G — Third Generation, stands for new networking technologies used
in mobile communications.

ASIC ~ Application Specific Integrated Circuit. Logic IC constructed
for a specific application and implemented on an integrated circuit.

BLUETOOTH - Technology for wireless voice and data transmission
over short distances.

Chip Card - Plastic card with built-in memory chif or microprocessor,
can be combired with personal ider.tification number (PIN).

CDMA - Code Divisicn Multiple Access. Process used in mobile
communications systems, allowing several users simultaneous access
to a transmission channel. Advantage: optimal utilization of available
transmission bandwidth.

CMOS - Compiemerntary Metal Oxide Semiconductor Technclogy.
Technology used to produce microchips with low power usage and
high level of integration.

DEC™ - Digital Enhanced Cordless Telecommunications. Uniform
European standard-for wireless digital communications systems.

DRAM - Dynamic Random Access Memory. Widely-used memory
chip technology based on high level integration and consequently low
price. Examples of DRAM chips: SDRAM, DDR DRAM, Rambus or
in logic ICs embedded DRAM. (See “RAM”)

Ethernet — Network for high-speed communications for application
limited to local areas (ccvering several 10s of meters to 10km:).

Flash Memory ~ A kind of non-volatile memory. Its contents are pre-
served, even if the power supply is switched off.

GPRS - General Packet Radio Service. New generation of mobile
communications of the 2.5 Generation for higher data transmission
capacities (up to 115 KB/s) in GSM networks.

GPS - Global Vositioning System. Radio-based location identification
and positioning process via direct receptiun of radio signals.

GSM - Global Systeia for Mobile Communication. The most widely
used digital mobile communications standard in the world.

IC/ICs - Integrated Circuit(s). Electronic component parts on the
basis of sumiconductor materials such as silicon; numerous, with each
other connecied conmponents such as transistors and diodes can be
integrated into an IC.

ISDN - Integrated Services Digital Network. On-line type of connec-
tions, integrating telecommunications services such as telephone, fax
or data transmissions into one single network.

LAN - Local Area Network {(Local network). Data communications
network limited to an extremely limited physical space, for example
within one building.

MAN - Metropolitan Area Network. Data communications network
for a relatively limited area, for example a city.

Megabit (Mbit) — About one million bits. A bit is a unit for measuring
information or for calculation purposes, which assumes one of two
values, for example “right”/“wrong” or “0”/“1™.

Megabyte (MB) — About one million bytes. A byte is a unit of measure-
ment for information unils in data processing devices. A byte corre-
sponds to 8 bit.

Memory - Synonym for RAM and ROM (see “RAM”, “ROM”). Can
apply to every device, which stores data in machine-readable form.

Microcontroller — A microprocessor integrated into a single IC com-
bined with memory and interfaces, functioning as an embedded
system. The most complex logical integrated circuits can be imple-
mented in a microcontroller and controlled per software.

Micrometer/Micron - Metric linear measure, corresponding to the
millionth part of a meter. Symbol: pm (Micron). Example: the diameter
of a single hair of a person is 0.1 micrometer.

PDA ~ Personal Digital Assistant. An electronic address book, appoint-
ment calendar ard notebook, most recently available in combination
with cellular phones; synchronized with the PC.

RAM — Random Access Memory (Direct access memory). Data memory
known as main or primary memory, containing programs and data from
external memory sources. It loses data without power supply. Examples:

SRAM and SGRAM. (See “DRAM”)

ROM - Read-only Memory. Digital, non-volatile data memory, in
which data can be permanently stored even without power supply.

Semiconductor ~ A crystalline material, which demonstrates electrical
conductivity upon warming, increasing the level of conductivity with
rising temperature. Semiconductors are, for example, silicon, germa-
nium or gallium-arsenide. The term is also applied to ICs made of
this material.

Silicon ~ Material with semi-conducting characteristics. Silicon is
widely used in the semiconductor industry as a basic raw matena]
(silicon wafers).

Tetematic - Invented term derived from Telecommunication and
Informatic. Generic term for the integration of voice, data and visual
communications technologies.

UMTS - Universal Mobile Telecommunications System. Designed

to be the future global digital standard for mobile communications.
UMTS enables data transmission of up to 2 Mbit/s — 200 times the
rate of current systems.

Votatile Memory — Memory which loses the information stored in it
when power supply is switched off.

Wafer - Disc made of a semiconductor material such as silicon, with
a diameter of up to 300 mm. In the production of ICs, it is cut out of
a single crystal and forms the substrate of integrated circuits.

WAN - Wide Area Network. Data communications network for a
large geographic area..

xDSL - x Digital Subscriber Line. Generic term for various technical
concepts for broadband, digital data transmission via existing copper
telephone lines. Depending on the configuration, the “x” stands for
ADSL, SDSL or VDSL.
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[Concentration Convergence Confidence)

Concentration

A process focusing on the essentials,
designed to make Infineon Technol-
ogies fit for the future. Looking ahead
to the future, we are fecusing our
business operations on long-term
growing market sepments. At the same
time, we are bundling our energies
in-an even more streamlined and flex-

ible organizatior.

DEAR READERS:

Convergence

A growing number of products and
technologies in the fields of electronics
and communications are becoming
entwined, interconnected and inter-
linked - resulting in a whole new
range of applications. As a catalyst for
technological progress and cost reduc-
tions, Infineon Technologies is making
a significant contribution to the cor-
vergence of our knowledge-based
sotiety: good prospects for the future

of the company.

Confidence

Infineon Technologies is well posi-
tioned to take advantage of the next
upswing in the semiconductor market
- and to operate in the vanguard of
the ‘industry. We have complete con-
fidence in our strengths and are
optimistic that our long-term strategy
will prove to be successful. And we
would like to pass this confidence on
to our employees, customers, partners,
and naturally to the shareholders of

Infineon Technologies AG.

Infineon Technologies is publishing three separate documents which are completely independent from one another in order

to provide detailed information about the 2001 fiscal year (1.10.2000-30.9.2001) and the current status of the company.

This approach enables us to fulfill the varying demands placed upon us by our shareholders and business partners in the

international financial markets. It also provides a basis for us to reduce the considerable costs which arise from producing and

distributing the required and additional reports.

To begin with, we are publishing sur “Annual Report 200!” in two parts, consisting of the “Strategic Review 2001”

and the “Financial Review 2001”. The “Financial Review 2001” features the consolidated financial statements of Infineon

Technologies for the 2001 fiscal year, as audited and certified by our independent auditing company KMPG. It also encom-
passes the Management Report, Financial Revort, and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as well as the Report
of the Supervisory Board and the Independent Auditor's Report. Due to the fact that Infineon shares are listed and traded in
the USA, Infineon is publishing a third document, namely the “Annual Report on Form 20-F”. This report will be submitted
to the U.S. regulatory agency SEC (Securities and Exchange Commission), and also contains the consolidated financial state-

ments of Infineon Technologies as well as general information about the company’s business.

We will be happy to send you the other documents on request. Furthermore, the contents of all three printed
documents will be available on the Internet on the online information sections for the financial community at

http://www.infineon.com/investor.
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Dr. Eng. h.c. Yoiker Jung

Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Dear Shareholders,

The Mar.agement Board has informed the Supervisory Board in detail about the devel-
opment ¢f business and the financiz) situation of the company and its separate business
units and about financial and investment planning at the respective meetings during the
period under review. Additionally, it has submitted full quarterly reports to us and has
also reported in writing about events of particular significance. Furthermore, the Chair-
man of the Supervisory Board has kept himself informed about important developments

and decisions by the Management Board in individual meetings.

The discussions by the Supervisory Board have been dominated in particular
by the situation in the semiconductor market, which has deteriorated during the course
of the fiscal year. In addition to reductions in demand for PCs and mobile phones, the
sudden and widespread unwillingness throughout the world to invest in communicati-
ons infrastructure has put pressure on the business and the performance of almost all of

Infineon’s business units, particularly Memory Products.

As a reaction to this, the investment budget was reduced in the first months
of the fiscal year in consultation with the Supervisory Board and was further adjusted
as the year progressed. Additionally, the Management Board prepared an extensive cost
reduction program placed before the Supervisory Board on July 25, 2001 and implemented
it without delay. The main objective of this program is to make a rapid and noticeable
improvement in the profits and liquidity position. At the same time, proper attention is
also being given to the securing of the technological base as a foundation for the long-
term successful development of the company. We received a progress report about the
implementation of the program at an extraordinary meeting in September and confirmed
that the Management Board should continue to bring all input factors rapidly and fully

into line with the difficult market circumstances.



IReport of the Supervisory Board to the Generai Meeting)

In order to finance the investment program, the Supervisory Board approved an
increase in capital of 60 million shares, which brought in total proceeds of approximately

1.5 billion Euro for the company in July 200].

Meetings of the Supervisory Board and of the Committees
Seven meetings of the Supervisory Board took place during the year under review.
Resolutions were passed by the Supervisory Board both at the meetings and also by

circulation of written proposals.

The Executive Committee did not need to meet during the year under review
but it passed resolutions on changes to the articles of association by circulation of written
proposals within the limits of the authority granted to it under the rules of procedure

of the Supervisory Board.

The Investment and Finance Committee met five times during the year under
review; furthermore, resolutiops concerning transactions requiring approval were passed
by circulation of written proposals. The muin iterns at the meetings of the Committee
were the preliminary examination of the financial statements, discussing the audit report
with the auditor, ongoing monitoring of the investment planning and preparing for the

Supervisory Board to approve the implementation of the increase in capital.

There was no occasion to convene the Mediation Commitiee formed pursuant

to Section 27(3) of the German Codetermination Act (Mitbestimmungsgesetz).

Membership of the Supervisory Board

Mr Stefan Radloff’s term of office on the Supervisory Board came to an end when he
left the company on January 31, 2001. The Supervisory Board thanked him for his
co;nmendab]e work over many years for the company and on the Supervisory Board.
Mr Michael Ruth was legally appointed in January as his successor as :nember of the

Supervisnry Board and representative of the executives of the company.

Financial Statements

The financial statements of Infineon Technologies AG to September 30, 2001, the con-
solidated financial statements of the group prepared in accordance with the provisions
of U.S. GAAP applying the exemption provision of Section 292a of the Cerman Com-
mercial Code (HGB), and the combined report of Infineon Technologies AG and of the
group have been audited by the auditors, KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft AG
Wirtschaftspriifungsgesellschaft, Berlin and Frankfurt/Main, and endorsed with an

unqualified auditors’ certificate. We have also examined these documents ourselves.

page 3



{Report of the Supervisory Bt‘)ar'db to the General Meeting)

KPMG'’s reports on the audit of the financial statements and of the consolidated
financial statements of the group prepared in accordance with the provisions of U.S. GAAP
were presented to all members of the Supervisory Board and were discussed in detail
initially at the meeting of the Investment and Finance Committee on November 9, 2001
and at our reeting to approve the statements on November 30, 2001 in the presence of
the auditors. At this meeting, the Management Board alsc reported in detail on the
scope, main points and expenses of the audit of the statements. We found no grounds for
objection and agree with the result of the audit. The Supervisory Board has approved

the financial statements prepared by the Management Board and they are therefore final.

The report on relationships with affiliated companies prepared by the Manage-
ment Enard and examined by the auditors nursuant te Section 312 of the German Stock
Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz) was granted an nnqualified certificate by the auditors,
confirming that the facts stated in the report are correct, that in the legal transactions
mentioned in the report the company’s performance was not misrepresented, and that
any possible disadvantages were not offset, and that there is no reason to evaluate the
measures outlined in tlie report in any other way than the way in which they have been
evaluated by the Managenent Board. We have also examined the report ourselves and
the final rzsult of our examination is that we have no objections to the concluding state-

ment of the Management Board and agree with the result of the auditors’ examination.

The Supervisory Board would like to thank the Management Board and all
employees of Infineon Technologies AG for their commitment and achievement during
the 2001 fiscal year. The Supervisory Board would, furthermore, like to thank the works

councils for.their constructive contribution.
Munich, November 2001
On behalf of the Supervisory Board

7

Volker jung
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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2001

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED-
FINANCIAL DATA

AS OF AND FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
. ENDED SEPTEMBER 301
19962 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
1 I

Selected consolidated
statement of operations data

(IN EURO MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) |

Net sales

Cost of goeds sold

Gross profit

Research and development expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Restructuring charge?

Other operating income (expense}, net

Operating income (loss)

Interest income (expense), net,
inclusive of subsidies

Equity in earnings (losses)
of asscciated companies

Gain on associated company share issuance?

Other income, net

Minority interests

Income (loss) befors income taxes

Income tax benefit (expense)

Net income (loss)

Basic and diluted income (loss) per share®

Basic and diluted income (loss) per ADS5

Dividends declared per share6

Dividends declared per ADS6




[Seleéted Consolidated Financial Data]

AS OF AND FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED ENDED SEPTEMBER 30!
FINANCIAL DATA 19962 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
T i ] T T T

{IN EURO MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)
Selected consolidated balance sheet data

Cash and cash equivalents

Working capital (deficit) excluding cash and
cash equivalents

Total assets

Short-terin debt, including current
portion of long-term debt

Long term debt, excluding current porlion

Shareholders’ equity

Szlected consolidated operating data

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash provided by (used in)
. operating activities

Depreciation and amortization expenses

t Columns may not add due to rounding.

? Unaudited.

¥ In 2001, this charge relates to the implementation of our Impact cost reduction program. In 1998,
this charge consists of amounts attributable to the wafer fabrication facility located in the North
Tineside area of northern England, which was shut down.

* In both 2000 and 2001, ProMOS shareholders approved the distribution of employee bonuses in the
form of shares. As a result of this distribution, our interest was diluted, while our proportional share
of ProMOS shareholders” equity increased by 53 million Euro and 11 million Euro, respectively,
which increases are reflected as non-operating income.

5 Eamings per share data for the 1996 to 1999 financial years assume that 600 million shares, the
number of shares outstanding immediately prior to our initial public offering in March 2000, were
outstanding for all periods presented. For the 2000 financial year, the weighted average number
of our compauny’s shares outstanding was 613,862,876 or 615,121,186 on a fully diluted basis. For
the 2001 financial year, the weighted average number of our company’s shares outstanding was
640.566,801 on both a basic and a fully diluted basis.

© As our company did not exist as a separate legal entity prior to March 20, 1999, we can present
dividend information only subsequent to that date.
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[Operating & Financial Review)

OPERATING & FINANCIAL REVIEW 2001

ms Severe market collapse in semiconductor industry and weak economic
situation worldwide

e Dramatic decrease in prices for memory products

ra Substantially reduced demand for wireless communications products
due to difficult market conditions

mm Significant revenue declines in the second half of our 2001 financial year
resulting in operating losses in all segments except for Automotive and
Industrial Business :

mm Continuing growth in our Automotive and Industrial Business

e Measires to reduce costs by more than 1 billion Euro being implemented

e Continued investment in research and development and in ramping
up the production of semiconductors using 300mm technology

wm Further portfolio optimization through strategic invesiments and the
disposal of non-core assets

me Successful equity offering of 1.5 billion Euro despite difficult capital mar-

ket environment



[Operating & Financial Review)

WEAK WORLD ECONOMIC SITUATION AND DRASTIC DECLINE {N SEMICONDUCTOR PRICES

In 2000, world economic growth registered 3.9 percent, the highest growih rate during
the last ten years. However, the economic downturn that began in the United States in
autumn 2000 spread tc the European and Asian economies during calendar year 2001.
The technolozy sector, and ir. particular the semiconductor and telecommunications
markets, which have traditionally been highly dependent on the overall health of the
economy, were particularly affected. The dramatic events of September 11, 2001 in
New York and Washington have added further impediments to turning around an already

weak global economy.

The extent of the downturn affecting the *echnology sector was initially under-
estimated. In autumn 2000, leading semiconductor market research firms (such as
Gartner Dataquest) predicted an increase in total semiconductor sales worldwide of
more than 25 percent for calendar year 2001. As of September 2001, however, Gartner
Dataquest predicted a decline in worldwide semiconductor sales during calendar year
2001 of 26 percent, to 168 billion U.S. Dollar. The market for non-memory products —
logic [Cs, analog, discrete and optical components — is now predicted to decrease by
21 percent during the same period. The mobile communications business has been hit
particularly hard, with worldwide sales in 2001 expected to decline by 30 percent com-
pared with 2000. Total sales in the memory chip market, which includes DRAM, SRAM,
and non-volatile memories (such as flash memories) and which represented approximately
28 percent of the total semiconductor market in calendar year 2000, is predicted to
decline by 43 percent in calendar year 2001. According to Gartner Dataquest, the spot
price market for 128-Mbit DRAM declined 90 percent from 15 U.S. Doilar in Septem-
her 2000 to 1.45 U.S. Dnilar at the end of September 2001
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[Operating & Financial Review]
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2001

WORLD ECONOMIC GROWTH IN PERCENT
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[Operating & Financial Review]

Marked Decrease in Sales and EBIT

In financial year 2001, we recorded total sales of 5,671 million Euro, which represents a
decrease of 22 percent from 7,283 million Euvro in total sales in the 2000 financial year.
Our net loss after tax amounted to 591 million Euro in the 2001 financial year, compared
to net income in the prior year of 1,126 ruillion Euro. In fiscal 2001, we suffered a loss
per share of 0.92 Euro, compared to earnings of 1.3 Eurn per share in our 2000 finan-
cial year. The loss before interest, minority interests and taxes totaled 1,024 million Euro
for the 2001 financial year, compared to earnings before interest, minority interests and
taxes (EBIT) of 1,670 million Euro in the 2000 financial year. Significant declines in
demand ~nd product prices, which continued to decline in many sectors throughout
the financial year, have negatively influenced EBIT and sales of all segments, with the

exception of Autemotive and Industrial.

TOTAL SALES IN EURO MILLIONS™

—-—— 7,283

6.000
—— 5,671
4,500
—— 4237

3.000
———

1.500
———

1999 2000 2001

* as of the financial year ended September 30.
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[Operating & Financial Review]

2001

EBIT — EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE INTEREST,
MINORITY INTERESTS, AND TAXES
IN EURO MILLIONS
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NET INCOME (LOSS)
PER SHARE DILUTED IN EURO
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———— 1.83
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-2.00
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~ Extensive Cost Reduction Program Being Implemented
Due to the continued weakness of the technology sector, in July 2001 we announced
an extensive cost reduction program called Impact. The program is projected to reduce

operating costs by more than 1 billion Euro.

To this end, we are undertaking a review of the business processes and cost
structures in all of our business units and have taken steps toward substantial cost reduc-
tions. These steps include the reduction of our worldwide workforce by approximately
5,000 employees. From October 2001 onwards, we have also introduced reduced work
hours at our production sites in Regensburg and Munich. As part of the initiative, we
took a restructuring charge of 117 million Euro during our fourth quartter of financial

vear 2001

In addition, we scaled back capital expenditures during the 200! financial year to
2.3 billion Euro from the previously planned 2.8 billion Euro. We have also reduced our

planned capital expenditures for the 2002 financial year to approximately 900 million Euro.

Our current plans also call for lower total research and development spending
in financial vear 2002 to better reflect the market weakness. However, it remains our
plan to continue to invest in strategic projects. Only through continued investrnent
throughout all market cycles we can hope to capitalize on the opportunities of the next

upturn.
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Continued Investments in Research and Development

Research and development (R&D) expenses, including in process R&D charges, which
were primarily for the development of next-generation products in Infineon’s target
markets such as advanced DRAM technologies, 10- and 40-Gbit optical networking,
2.5G (GPRS) and 3G (UMTS) nicbile communications, and other new technologies,
totaled 1,129 million Euro in the 2001 financial year. We also invested heavily in the
further development of our process technologies for semiconductor manufacturing and

expanded our portfolio of universally applicable processor modules.

Our ability to stay at the forefront of the semiconductor industrv depends on
the products and services developed by our own R&D departments, as well as work con-
ducted in partne-rship with other leading semiconductor and technology corpanies.
Such partnerships allow us to share both the costs and the risks of development, while

also enabling us to bring new technologies to market faster.

New Strategic Investments

At the start of the 2001 financial year, we acquired the business activities of Sican
GmbH, one of the biggest independent European design houses for communications
ICs, for 10 million Euro. The acquisition will enable us to develop and sell system-
on-chip solutions for secure wireless and wireline communications. Sican’s business
complements the activities of our Wireless, Wireline, and Security and Chip Card ICs

segment.

In March 2001, we acquired an approximate 20 percent interest in Ramtron
International Corporation, located in Colorado Springs, USA, in exchange for ordinary
shares valued at 21 million Euro, plus 11 million Euro in cash. We also entered into a
separate cross-license agreement with Ramtron, which provides us with a license of
Ramtron’s FRAM technology, and gives Ramtron access to certain of our technologies

relating to the fabrication of FRAM memories.
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In October 2000, we agreed to acquire Ardent Technologies, located in Sunny-
vale, USA, for ordinary shares valued at 39 million Euro. Ardent extends our expertise
in local area networks (LAN) switching technclogies. This acquisition positioned us to
expand our product portfolio in the area of high-integration Fast Ethernet and Gigabit
Ethernet switching devices and to broaden the product offering of our Wireline Com-
munications segmexnt in the market for semicanductors used in LAN. Hewever, as a result
of our re-evaluation of the internet-based LAN switching market following a dramatic
decline during the second half of 2001, we subsequently terminated a significant number
of the Ardent employees and abandoned most of the acquired technologies, resulting in

an impairment charge of approximately 1+ millior Euro.

J= July 2001, to strengthen the optical ne*werking r:ap'abilitier. of our Wireline
Communications segment, we acquired the network specialist Catarmaran Communica-
tions Inc., located in San Jose, California, for ordinary shares valued at 246 million Euro.
Catamaran is an emerging leader in integrated circuits for the next-generation 40-Gbit/s

segment and the fast growing 10-Gbit/s segment of the optical networking market.

INVESTMENTS /DIVESTITURES
IN EURO MILLIONS

{EXCLUDING MARKETABLE SECURITIES;
INCLUDING SALE OF OPTO JOINT VENTURE)

3,000

2,000
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———

PROPERTY, PLANT
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Strategic Alliances

In March 2001, together with United Microelectronics Corporation (UMC) and another
investor, we established the UMCi joint venture to construct and operate a 300mm wafer
fabrication foundry facility in Singapore. In April 2001, we invested approximately

59 million 'J.S. Dollar and will be required to make additional investments of our tech-
nclogy and cash contributions totaling 481 million U.S. Dollar over the next two vears, in
exchange for a 30 percent interest in the UMCi joint venture. The UMCi joint venture will

provide foundry services and we have agreed to purchase a specified production volume.

In May 2001, we formed the Ingentix verture together with Saifun Semicon-
ductors Ltd., Israel. Ingentix, which is located in Israel and Germany, will develop,
manufacture and market flash memory products based on Saifun’s patented Nitrided
Read Only Memory (NROM) technology. Ingentix will initially focus on developing
MultiMediaCard storage products. We received a 51 percent interest in Ingentix in

exchange for a cash contribution of 17 million U.S. Dollar.

Divestitures
In order to focus on the strengthening of our core business activities, we continue to
evaluate our portfolio of businesses and as a result have sold non-core businesses and

investments for cash in the aggregate of 911 million Euro in fiscal 2001

In October 2000, we sold our image and video consumer electronics business
for 250 million Euro in cash to Micronas Semiconductor Halding AG, Zurich, resulting

in a pretax gain of 202 million Euro.

In July 2001, we agreed to sell our infrared components business for approxi-
mately 120 million U.S. Dollar in cash to Vishay Intertechnology Inc. in a two-step
transaction. The initial sale of a portion of the business was completed in August 2001,
resulting in a pretax gain of 26 million Euro. The remaining iriterests and cash of

42 million U.S. Dollar are expected to be exchanged in 2002.

In August 2001, we sold our 49 percent interest in the Osram Opto Semicon-
ductors GmbH & Co. OHG joint venture for 565 million Euro in cash to our joint venture
partner, Osram GmbH, Munich, a Siemens subsidiary. In accordance with U.S. GAAP,
as a transaction between entities under common control, the excess of the sales price
over the carrying basis of our investment net of taxes of 392 million Euro is reflected as

an equity transaction and does not affect our consolidated statement of operations.
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Continued Optimization of our Manufacturing Capacity and Procurement

Due to the cyclical nature of the semiconductor market, there is a constant challenge
to match operating capacity to market Jemands. During the 2000 financial year, most
of our production facilities were operating at full capacity. In contrast, the increasingly
weak market conditions experiernced during the 2001 financial vear have resulted in most
non-memory preduction facilities, including our ALTIS joint venture, operating at less
than full capacity. Without significant increases in demand, these facilities will continue

to operate at lower utilization resulting in higher unit production costs.

Due to ou- belief in the positive long-term growth prospects of the memory
business, we are continuing our plans for production using 300mm technology and we
expect to complete the expansion of our new Dresder production facility in the first
half of calendar year 2002 and to ramp up production immediately thereafter. It will
be one of the first production facilities of its kind worldwide to manufacture semicon-
ductors on production scale using 300mm technology. This technology will be used for
DRAM production for the time being and should eventually enable us to significantly
reduce our per-unit production costs. However, due to current conditions, we have
delayed equipping our Richmond manufacturing facility with 300mm technology and

do not expect to do so until fiscal year 2003.

We use leading-edge technologies and advanced materials in our products to
ensure their performance, quality and reliability. The competitive demand for increas-
ingly smaller chip structures, coupled with the need to constantly improve our produc-
tion yields, means that we must quickly adopt the latest advances in process technology.
Our worldwide purchasing team procures materials and processes from a network of key
suppliers. The purchasing team promotes the development of technologies and materials,
coordinates demand and availability and optimizes costs. Most of our suppliers operate
globally, and we monitor their performance on a regular basis. To improve our own
efficiency, we are continuously improving our use of electronic tools for business-to-

business transactions.

Secondary Public Offering

In July 2001, in a difficult capital market environment, we completed a secondary
public offering of 60 million newly issued shares, in the form of ordinary shares on the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange and American Depositary Shares (ADSs) on the New York
Stock Exchange. With an offering price of 25.00 Euro per share, the net proceeds to us

were approximately 1.48 billion Euro.
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200

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The table below sets forth information about our net sales by segment and geographical

region, as well as our earnings (loss) before interest, minority interests and taxe. by segment:

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 301 1999 2000 2001
T 1 1

Net sales by segment:

Wireless Communications

Wireline Communications?

Automotive and Industrial

Memory Products

Securitv and Chip Card ICs?
Other3

Corporate and Reconciliation

Total

EBIT* by segment:

Wireless Communications

Wireline Communications®

Automotive and Industrial

Memory Products

Security and Chip Card ICs?2
Other ?

Corporate and Reconciliation’®

Total

Net sales by geographic region:

Germany
Other Europe
United States
Asia/Pacific
Other

Total
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I Columns may not add due to rounding.

2Prior to the 2001 financial year, the Security and Chip Card ICs segment did not meet the
requirements of a reportable segment and was reported as part of the other operating segment.

For the 2001 financial year, the Security and Chip Card ICs segment is identified as a reportable
segment and due to its continuing significance, is reported separately, with prior period segment
information restated for comparative purposes.

3 Lffective October 1, 2000, our Other operating: segment includes the results of certain activities
previously reported under Corporate and Reconciliation, the image and video and infrared compo-
nents businesses (previ~usly revorted under Wireline Comnunications) as well as the gains on their
disposals. The segment results for the 2000 financial year have been reclassified to be consistent
with the reporting structure and presentation of the 2001 financial year and to facilitate analysis of
our current and future operating segment information. The Other operating segment also includes
our opto components business that is conducted through a joint venture with Osram, a Siemens
subsidiary. We sold our interest in the joint venture to Osram in August 2001.

4 We define EBIT (earnings before interest and tax) as earnings before interest, minority interests,
and taxes.

5 In the 2001 financial year, we revised our method of reporting excess capacity costs for segment
reporting purposes. Previously, all excess capacity costs, if any, were allocated to the segments based
on the variance between originally forecasted purchases and actual purchases. We have revised the
method to allocate excess capacity costs to a foundry model, whereby such allocations are reduced,
based upon the lead time of order cancellations. Any unabsorbed excess capacity costs will be included
i Corporate and Reconciliation. This change did not affect prior periods. We believe that this
method better reflects the responsibilities of the segment management and is consistent with the
practices of independent foundries and more appropriately reflects the segment operating results.
Certain items are included in Corporate and Reconciliation and are not allocated to the segments.
These include corporate headquarters’ cost, certain incubator and early stage technology invest-
ment costs, non-recurring gains and specific strategic technology initiatives. Additionally, legal costs
associated with intellectual property are recognized by the segments when paid, which can differ
fren the period originally resognized by Corporate and Reconciliation. For the year ended
September 30, 2001, Crrporate anc Reconciliation includes unallocated excess capacity costs of
27 million Euro, restructuring charges of 117 million Euro and corporate information technology
development costs and charges of 71 million Euro.

page 19



[Operating & Financial Review)

2001

RESULYS OF OPERATIONS IN PERCENT

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30" 19967 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001
1 | | i T

Net sales

Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Research and development expenses

Selling, general and
administrative expenses

Restructuring charge

Other operating income
{expense), net

Operating ircome (loss)

Interest income (expense), net,
inclusive of subsidies

Equity in earnings (losses) of
associated companies

Gain on associated company
share issuance

Other income, net

Minority interests

Income (loss) before income taxes

Income tax benefit (expense)

Net income (loss)

U All numbers in percent.
Columns may not add due to rounding.
2 Unaudited.
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2001 FINANCIAL YEAR COMPARED WITH 2000 FINANCIAL YEAR

Net Sales

Net sales decreased by 22 percent to 5,671 million Euro for the 2001 financial year from

7,283 rnillion Euro for the 2000 financiai year. The dectease in net sales was primarily
due to significantly Jower net sales in our Memory Products division. Memory Products

represented 28 percent of total net sales for the 2001 financial year, a decline from

48 percent in the prior year, mainly due to the dramatic price erosion of memory 1Cs.

With the exceptior: of the Automotive and Industrial segment, all business segments
experiznced significant declines in revenues and earnings during the second half of
fiscal 2001 due to price erosion and order cancellations. On a constant currency basis,

ret sales in the 200] financizl year would have been approximately 5,490 million Euro.
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2001

NET SALES 2000 BY SEGMENT IN. EURO MILLIONS

MEMORY PRODUCTS

SECURITY AND CHIP CARD {CS

OTHER™

WIRELINE COMMUNICATIONS

AUTOMOTIVE AND INDUSTRIAL

WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS

NET SALES 2001 BY SEGMENT IN EURO MILLIONS

MEMORY PRODUCTS

SECURITY AND CHIP CARD ICS

OTHER*

WIRELINE COMMUNICATIONS

AUTOMOTIVE AND INDUSTRIAL .

WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS

* Includes Other operating segments and Corporate and Reconciliation.
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The net sales of our different segments during the 2001 financial year compared with
the prior year were as follows:

mm Net sales in the Wireless Communications segment decreased 18 percent
compared to fiscal year 2000. All major product areas, including baseband
and high-frequency ICs as weil as discrete high-frequency ICs, were impact-
ed. Our Wireless Communications s€gment was impacted by the weakness
in the mobile handset market, which was primarily attributable to the high
level of inventories at key customers, order cancellations, and decreasing
prices. A delay in the market ramp-up for new transmission standards like
GPRS and Bluetooth also had a negative impact ¢n our Wireless Commu-
nications segment. The weakness in customer order levels continued in the
fourth quarter, but did n;:;t deteriorate beyond the level seen in the third

quarter.

mm Net sales of the Wireline Communications segment grew by 16 percent.
This growth reflects higher sales for traditional telecom products (ISDN
and analog technology) and fiber optic products as well as the ramp-up of
high-speed access products (VDSL/10Base$). In emerging markets like
China, Brazil, and India, volumes for traditional voice application products
increased significantly. While overall sales of the Wireline Communications
segment increased compared to the prior year, the segment experienced
declining net sales during both the third and fourth quarters due to order

cancellations and price pressures.

Net sales of the Automotive and Industrial segment grew by 25 percent
even in a difficult automotive market. This growth was mainly due to higher
demand for electronic solutions for the automotive industry, such as auto-
motive power and smart power, especially in Germany. Strong demand for
industrial and high-power semiconductors also contributed to this increase.
The rate of growth in the net sales of the Automotive and Industrial seg-
ment was affected by general economic conditions in the second half of
fiscal 2001, in particular the fourth quarter, which experienced only single

digit growth over the comparable period of the prior year.
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mm Net sales of the Memory Products segment declined by 54 percent while

the overall Mbit volume increased substantially during fiscal 2001. We

“completed the conversion of all our remnaining 64-Mbit DRAM production

lines to the production of 128-Mbit DRAM and we ramped up commercial
production of 256-Mbit DRAM chips. The decrease in net sales was due
principally to significantly lower DRAM prices, reflecting adverse market
conditions compared with the prior year. The price of memory ICs declined
steadily throughout the year to levels that at financial year end were in
some cases only 10 percent of the price at the beginning of the financial
vear. Price declines were experienced in both 128-Mbit and 256-Mbit
chips, with the price differential between the chips decreasing substantially
throughout the vear. Also contributing to the decline in net sales were
delays in our development of a new hard disk drive controller IC. These
negative impacts were only partially offset by volume increases that were
driven by improved manufacturing efficiency, conversion to smaller die-
sizes for existing products, and a shift in our product mix towards higher

density products.

Net sales of our Security and Chip Card ICs segment grew by 57 percent.
This increase was mainly driven by higher sales of GSM-components com-
pared with the prior period. The Security and Chip Card ICs business

was impacted in the second half of the 2001 financial year by order cancell-
ations from mobile handset customers, since a substantial portion of the
business is dependent upon the mobile handset sector. As a result, net sales

declined substantially in the fourth quarter.

Net sales of our Other operating segment in the 200l financial year, reflec-
ting mainly our sales of opto products, were relatively consistent compared
to the prior year. Our sales of opto products are expected to continue under
the same terms and conditions that existed prior to the divestiture of our

interest in the Opto joint venture with Osram.
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On a regional basis, sales in Europe represented 53 percent of total sales in
the 2001 financial year, compared to 45 percent in the prior year, reflecting mainly
increased sales of non-memory products in Germany. We recorded 47 percent of our
sales in 2001 outside Europe, compared to 55 percent in the prior year, which was mainly

due 1o lower sales of memory products in the USA and Asia/Pacific regions.

Only one customer, the Siernens group, accounted for more than 5 percent
of our net sales in each of the fiscal years 2001 and 2000. Sales to the Siemens group
comprise both direct sales to the Siemens group, which accounted for 14 percent and
!0 percent, of net sales in the two vears respectively, and sales made for resale to third
parties, which accounted for 2 percent and 4 percent of net sales in the two years, res-
sectively. Seles to the Siemens group are made primarily by our Wireline and Wireless

Communication segments.

Cost of Goods Sold

~ Cost of goods sold increased by 19 percent to 4,904 million Euro for the 2001 financial
vear trom 4,110 million Euro for the 2000 financial year. As a percentage of net sales,
cost of goods sold increased from 56 percent in fiscal 2000 to 86 percent in financial
vear 2001. The increase in cost of goods sold relative to sales in fiscal 2001 is primarily
due to decreased DRAM selling prices coupled with a substantially higher level of
megabit volume as well as write-downs of inventory of approximately 358 million Euro

and the cost of operating facilities with excess capacity.
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2001

The increase in the cost of goods sold as a percentage of net sales also reflects:

page 26

a substantial relative increase in the cost of goods sold of the Wireless
Communications segment primarily due o the costs of operating facilities
with excess capacity, sales price erosion due to market conditions and

the write-down of inventory.

a relative increase of cost of goods sold for the Wireline Communications
segment due to substantial declines in volumes in the second half of the
2001 financial year, the costs of operating facilities with excess capacity,
inventory write-downs, and lower sales of high-margin products compared
to the prior period. These negative effects could not be fully offset by

increased sales volumes during the first half of the vear.

relatively constant cost of goods sold in the Automotive and Industrial
segment. The costs for transitioning our production processes to 8-inch
wafers have been partially offset by the reduction of die-sizes and focus

on high-margin products as well as significantly higher sales volumes.

a substantial relative increase in the cost in goods sold of the Memory
Products segment. Positive effects of higher sales volumes compared to the
previous year and the full conversion of production to 0.17 micron technol-
ogy have been more than offset by the deterioration of prices for memory

products as well as the costs of inventory write-downs.

a relative increase in cost of goods sold in our Security and Chip Card ICs
segment due to the write-down of inventory, costs for excess capacity, and
increased price pressure for chip card 1Cs towards the end of the fiscal

year, which were partially offset by the effects of increased sales volumes.
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We report as cost of goods sold the cost of inventory purchased from our
ProMOS joint venture fabrication facility and from ALTIS Semiconductor, our joint
venture with IBM. Our purchases from these facilities and associated and related
companies amounted to 1,040 million Euro in the 2001 financial year and 1,183 million

Euro in the 2000 financial year.

Depreciation and amortization expense was 1,122 million Euro in the 2001 finan-
cial year and 834 million Euro in the 2000 financial year. This increase reflects our
continued investment in state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities and equipment in the

latte: part of the 2000 financial year and during the 2001 financial veur.

R=zearch and Development Expenses )

Research and development expenses comprise primarily the expenses of R&D-related
personnel, licenses, equipment, and software as well as masks and R&D-related
semiconductar-specific basic material used in development. R&D expenses increased
by 16 percent, to 1,189 million Euro, in the 2001 financial year from 1,025 million Euro
in the 2000 financial year. Research and development also includes 69 million Euro
of in-process R&D acquired in connection with businesses éurchased during the

2001 financial year.
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2001

" The majority of R&D expenses were incurred in connection with product
development projects for our key markets. Additional amounts were spent for the
development of CPUs for our products and development libraries for basic circuits. As a
percentage of net sales, R&D expenses increased from 14 percent in the 2000 financial
year to 2| percent in the 2001 financiul year, which rcflects the combined effect of the

following:

mw a relative increase in the R&D expenses of the Wireless Communications
segment as a percentage of its net sales, as we increased R&D spending
at lower levels of sales, focusing on areas such as Bluetooth, GPRS, and

UMTS mobile phone chipsets as well as system and software design.

w2 relative increase in the R&D expenses of the Wireline Communications

segment due to increased spending in VDSL/10BaseS access technologies
and other high-speed Internet access technologies, compared with the prior

. year. R&D expenses in the 2001 financial year include charges of 69 million

Euro for purchased in-process R&D in connection with the acquisition of

Ardent and Catamaran.

mm a decline in R&D expenses of the Automotive and Industrial segment
relative to the segment’s net sales mainly due to increased sales levels.
Technology development efforts in this segment are focused on advanced
32-bit architecture applications such as TriCore and power ICs for auto-

motive and power management applications.

rm o relative increase in R&D expenses of the Memory Products segment
as a result of lower net sales and the strong efforts of development in
areas such as RLDRAM for network and server applications as well as for

Mobile-RAM for high-performance applications.
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mm a relative decrease in R&D expenses in our Security and Chip Card ICs
segment as a percentage of net sales, attributable to the increase in sales
compared to the prior year. The main efforts for R&D were in the area of

the 32-bit controller family.

We recognized government subsidies for cur R&D activities as reductions in
R&D expenses in ihe amount of 71 million Euro in the 200! financial year and 41 million

Eurc in the prior year.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES
IN EURO MILLIONS
-l 1189
1,000 1,025
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800
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2001

Selling, General and Administrative (SG&A) Expenses

SG&A expenses comprise both selling expenses and general administrative expenses.
Aggregate SG&A expenses increased by 17 percent to 786 million Euro during the 2001
financial year compared to 670 million Euro in the prior year. As a percentage of net
sales, SG&A expenses increased from 9 percent in the 2000 financial yea: to 14 percent

in the 2061 financial year, which mainly reflects the effect of the decline in revenue.

Selling expenses amounted to 451 million Euro in the 2001 financial year
and 387 million Euro in the 2000 financial year, an increase to 8 percent from 5 percent
of net sales, as our sales infrastructure was expanded, particularly outside Europe, to
support anticipated higher levels of future growth. In addition, higher sales activities in

areas like the high-speed Interret access contributed to the relative increase.

During the 2001 financial year, we renegotiated compensation arrangements
with substantially all of the Siemens group sales organizations. As a result, we now
include ir selling expenses the sales commissions paid to Siemens group sales organiza-
tions where they assist in making sales directly to third-party end customers. Previously
we had granted them a discount in the price charged for the products. Additionally, we
purchased certain sales organizations from Siemens, which now represent us in these
respective markets. Higher expenses for marketing, branding campaigns and sponsoring

were incurred on a corporate level.

The balance of SG&A expenses in each year comprises overhead, personnel
and advisors’ fees and other administrative expenses. General and administrative expenses
increased in the 2001 financial year from 4 percent to 6 percent of net sales, reflecting
a decrcase in sales, higher personnel and administrative costs related to various projects

as well as the setup of infrastructure for new business in the group.
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NET SALES 2000 BY REGION IN EURO MILLIONS
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Restructuring

In the quafter ended September 30, 2001, in response to continued weakness in the
techiology sector worldwide, we approved plans to restructure our organization and
reduce costs under a comprehensive program called “Impact”. We are implementing
changss to streamline our procurement and logistics processes as well as reduce infor-
mation technology, research and development, overhead and maunufacturing costs.
These changes are intended to improve operational efficiencies and improve the entire
management of the product procurement and order fulfillment cycles. We plan to elimi-
nate approximately 5,000 jobs from the total number of people we employed worldwide
as ¢f Junz 30, 2001. As cf September 30, 2001, we had signed termination cgreements

for approximately 2,000 positions.

In connection with the Impact project we have recorded restructuring charges
of 117 million Euro in the fourth quarter of the 2001 financial year. This charge is com-
prised of 57 million Euro relating to involuntary employee terminations, 43 million Euro
relating to the termination of a worldwide information technology project (including
previously capitalized expenditures of 27 million Euro), and 16 million Euro of other exit
costs (principally lease termination and write-offs). We expect to complete the remain-
ing headcount reductions and other exit activities associated with the restructuring by

September 30, 2002.

Additionally, we recognized impairment charges of 14 million Euro in the fourth
quarter of the 2001 financial year associated with the acquisition of Ardent. Subsequent
to our acquisition of Ardent, the market for internet-based LAN switching products
declined significantly and as a result, we terminated a significant number of the Ardent
employees, abandoned certain technology acquired, and reduced the planned future
R&D expenditures for the Ardent business as a whole. As a result of reductions in pro-
jected future cash flows, we had independent valuations performed and wrote the remain-

ing intangible assets down to their estimated fair value.

Other Operating Income, Net

Other operating income, net, amounted to 199 million Euro in the 2001 financial year,
which reflects the one-time gains from the sales of our image & video and infrared
components businesses of 202 million Euro and 26 million Euro, respectively, reduced

primarily by goodwill amortization of 23 million Euro.
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Earnings before Interest, Minority Interests, and Taxes (EBIT)

As a result of the above-mentioned factors, we recorded a loss before interest, minority
interests, and taxes of 1,024 million Euro in the 2001 financial year, compared to
earnings before interest, minority interests, and taxes of 1,670 million Euro in the 2000

financia! year.

We recorded foreign currency transaction gains of 34 million Euro in the 2001
financial year compared with gains of 184 million Euro in the prior year. A large portion
of our manufacturing, selling, general and administrative, and research and develop-
ment expenses are incurred in currencies other than the Euro, primarily the 11.S. Dollar
and Japanese Yen. Fluctuations in the exchange rates of these currencies to the Euro

affect our costs and profitability.

Equity in Earnings of Assaciated Companies

Our equity in the earnings of associated companies is reflected primarily in the results
of our Memory Products segment. Equity in the earnings of associated companies
decreased to 25 million Euro in the 2001 financial year from 101 million Euro in the
2000 financial year. Our share of earnings of our ProMOS joint venture decreased to
17 million Euro in the 2001 financial year from 81 millien Euro in the 2000 financial

vear, principally as a result of the weakened DRAM market conditions.

interest Expense, Net

The company recorded interest expense of 1 million Euro in the 2001 financial year
compared to interest income of 75 million Euro in the 2000 financial year. Interest
expense is reduced by governmental interest subsidies relating to our manufacturing
facilit'es of 0.4 million Euro in the 2001 financial year and 62 million Euro in the 2000
financial year. Interest expense increased due to higher average levels of short-term debt,
while interest income decreased due to substantially lower balances of marketable securi-

ties compared with the prior year.

Income Taxes

We recorded an income tax benefit of 429 million Euro in the 2001 financial year,
compared with income tax expense of 612 million Euro in the 2000 financial year,
representing effective income tax rates of 42 percent and 35 percent, respectively.
The effective tax rate in the 2001 financial year mainly reflects tax deductible losses
in jurisdictions with higher tax rates and the impact of certain asset sales, which were

not subject to trade tax. The effective tax rate in 2000 is attributable to higher levels
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of taxable income in jurisdictions with lower tax rates. Additionally, in October 2000,
the German government enacted new tax legislation, which, among other changes,
will reduce our company’s statutory tax rate in Germany from 40 perceut on retained
earnings and 30 percent on distributed earnings to a uniform 25 percent, effective for
our finarcial year ending September 30, 2002. The impact of the various revisions in
the new tax legislation, a benefit of 28 million Euro, primarily reflecting the effect of
the tax rate reduction on our deferred tax balances, has been accounted for during the

2001 financial year, the year of the enactment of the legislation.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Cash Flow

Cash provided by operating activities decreased to 211 million Euro from 2,080 million
Euro in 2000, mainly reflecting the net loss in the 2001 financial year. Significant
non-cash items impacting operating activities included an increase in depreciation
and amortization totaling 1,122 million Euro in the 2001 financial year compared to
834 million Euro in the 2000 financial year and an increase in deferred taxes mainly
attributed to capitalized net operating loss carry-forward. Significant changes in operat-
ing items included a 67! million Euro reduction in accounts receivable offset by a
reduction in accrued expenses of 322 million Euro resulting primarily from our payment
of income taxes associated with the 2000 financial year, and an increase in accounts

payable primarily associated with the construction of our Dresden facility expansion.

Investing activities in the 2001 financial year consisted of investments of
2,282 million Furo in property and equipment relating primarily to the extension of
the Dresden, Villach, and Richmond facilities. Additionally, we made investments of
214 million Euro in associated and related companies. Cash provided from investing
activities related to proceeds from our sales of non-core businesses of 346 million Euro

and net sales of marketable securities of 474 million Euro.

Net cash provided by financing activities totaled 1,846 million Euro in the
2001 financial year compared to 719 million Euro in the 2000 financial year. Net cash
provided includes 1,475 million Euro of net proceeds from our secondary public
offering in July 2001, 565 million Euro proceeds from the sale of our interest in the opto

joint venture to Osram GmbH, a subsidiary of Siemens, and an increase in long-term
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debt of 128 million Euro. Cash used in financing activities primarily related to our
payment of a 407 million Euro dividend in April 2001 related to our 2000 financial year.
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year increased to 757 million Euro from

511 million Euro at the end of the 2000 financial year.

FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 1999 2000 2001
T T

Cash Flow
Net cash provided by operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash provided by financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents at period end

NET CASH PROVIDED/USED

IN EURO MILLIONS
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Financial Condition
As of September 30, 2001, Infineon’s total assets amounted to 9,743 million Euro, an

increase of 10 percent (in financial year 2000: 8,853 million Euro).

Cash and cash equivalents increased to 757 million Euro from 51! million Euro
at the end of financial year 2000. The increase reflects principally the use of cash in
investing activities, offset by the receipt of the proceeds from our secondary offering and
from the divestitures of certain non-core businesses. Inventory increased by 5 percent to
882 million Euro, mainly due to unanticipated shortfalls in sales volume, partially offset
by write-downs of 358 million Euro. Third-party and related-party acceunts receivable
were reduced by 49 percent to 927 million Euro (in financial year 2000: 1,825 million
Eure), principally as a result of collections and reduced sales. Our non-currert assets
increased by 37 percent to 6,867 million Euro from 5,018 million Euro at the end of
financial year 2000, consisting mainly of fixed assets, long-term investments, and deferred

income taxes.

Liabilities decreaséd by 7 percent to 2,843 million Euro (in financial year 2000:
3,046 million Euro). Accounts payable increased by 24 percent to 1,050 million Eure

(in financial year 2000: 849 million Euro), mainly relating to. the construction of our
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Dresden facility expansion. Furthermore, long and short-term debt increased by 102 mil-
lion Eurc to 368 million Euro. Accrued liabilities declined by 41 percent to 426 million
Euro (in financial year 2000: 719 million Euro), due to the payment of income taxes

from fiscal year 2000.

Our sharcholders’” equity increased by 19 percent to 6,900 million Euro (in
financial year 2000: 5,806 million Eurs). This reflects primarily the receipt of the net
proceeds of approximately 1,475 million Euro from our secondary public offering and
the net proceeds of 392 million Euro from the sale of our interest in the opto joint ven-
ture to Osram GmbH, reduced by the pavinent of a dividend of 407 millior Euro and
a net operating loss of 591 million Euro. At September 30, 2001, shareholders’ equity as

a percentuge of total assets was 71 percent (ir firancial year 2000: 66 percent).

The net cash position — meaning cash and cash equivalents, plus marketable
securities and restricted cash less total financial debt - was reduced by 306 million Euro

to 568 million Euro (in financial year 2000: 874 million Euro).
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NET CASH/NET DEBT IN EURO MILLIONS
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Capital Requirements

We expect to invest approximately 900 million Euro in capital expenditures in the 2002
financial year, mainly to improve productivity and upgrade technology at our existing
facilities. Due to the lead times between ordering and delivery of equipment, a substantial
amount of capital expenditures typically is committed well in advance. Approximately
650 million Euro of the expected capital expenditures will be made in the Memory Pro-
ducts front-end and back-end processes, including our Dresden facility. We expect to make

approximately 150 million Euro of capital expenditures in our non-memory facilities.

The construction of our Dresden production site for manufacturing semicon-
ductors using 300mm technology, which we started in the 2000 financial year, is expected
to involve capital expenditures of approximately 1.4 billion Euro in total. Furthermore,
we intend to convert our 200mm production facility at Dresden to the production of logic

ICs. This will require capital expenditures in excess of 500 million Euro through 2004.

In April 2001, we invested approximately 59 million U.S. Dollar and will be
required to make additional investments of our technology and cash contributions
totaling 481 million U.S. Dollar over the next two years, in exchange for a 30 percent

interest in the UMCI joint venture.

In October 2000, we acquired Motorola’s interest in the Semiconductor300

joint venture and have taken on new investors in the joint venture. Under our agreements
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with the new investors, each of them has the right to sell its interest in the joint venture
to us and we have the right to purchase their interests, beginning in 2003. Upon the
exercise of these options, the purchase price we would have to pay would be an amount
equal to the capital contributed by these investors, plus interest. As of September 30,

2001, this amount would have been approximately 196 million Euro.

As of September 30, 2001, we had approximately 119 million Euro of debt
scheduled to become due within one year. We believe we will be in a position to fund
these payments through existing cash balances, cash flows from operations, borrowings,

und ihe rerewal of debt in the ozdinzry course of business.

Prior 1o our formation as 3 separate legal entity, we received most of nur non-
operating funding from Si¢cmens. Siemens indicated that it would ceasc making invest-
ments, advances, and other funding available to us after October 1, 1999, and we have
generally been responsible for establishing our own sources of funding since that date.
In April 2001, Siemens made an exception to its policy and extended to us a short-term
loan in the amount of 450 million Euro, which we understand was done in connection

with the dividend we paid in April 2001. We repaid this loan in September 2001.

We have established independent financing arrangements with several financial
institutions, in form of both short and long-term credit facilities, which are available for
anticipated funding purposes. These facilities (including a revolving credit facility of
729 million Euro) aggregate 1,733 million Euro, of which 1,576 million Euro was avai-
lable at September 30, 2001, and are comprised of three components: The first compo-
nent represents short-term facilities, which are subject to firm commitments by financial
instit-itions for working capital, guarantees, and cash pooling purposes; these agaregate
937 million Euro, of which 842 million Euro was availabl: at September 30, 2001. The
second component represents additional short-term facilities, which are not subject to
firm commitments by financial institutions for working capital purposes; these aggregate
329 million Euro, of which 329 million Euro was available at September 30, 2001. The
third component represents long-term facilities, with a maturity date of at least one year,
which are subject to firm commitments by financial institutions for working capital and
project finance purposes; these aggregate 467 million Euro, of which 405 million Euro

was available at September 30, 2001.
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In March 2001, we executed a mandate agreement with a financial institution
for the arrangement of a 450 million Euro syndicated credit facility, relating to the con-
struction of the Dresden 300mm manufacturing facility. We anticipate that the credit
facility will be supported by partial guarantees from governmental entities and subject
to specified financial covenunts. We have received commitment letters fror the guaran-
tors and financial institution, and the closing of the facility is subject to the execution
of documentation satisfactory to the financial institution as well as customary closing

procedures.

We kave 2 729 million Euro ryndicated multicurrency revolving credit facility
The amount of the facility is divided into two equal tranches. The first iranche of
375 million Euro expires in March 2004. The second tranche of 354 million Euvro
expires in March 2002. Drawings under each tranche may be denominated in Euro or
U.S. Dollar and will bear variable market rates of interest based on applicable reference
rates plus a margin. This margin may vary based on the extent of the facility’s utilization
and the level of senior debt to earnings before interests, taxes, depreciation, and amorti-
zation (“senior debt ratio”). At September 30, 2001, there were no amounts outstanding

under this facility.

The facility includes customary covenants, including covenants regarding
the maintenance of a minimum tangible net worth, a senior debt ratio, and an interest
coverage ratio. We were granted a waiver on the violation of certain financial covenants
through December 31, 2001. We and the syndicate of financial institutions are currently
negotiating amendments to the financial covenants as well as an extension of the
354 million Euro component of the facility, which expires in March 2002. There can
be no assurance that these negotiations will be satisfactorily concluded. Accordingly,
the revolving credit facility may not be available to us subsequent to December 31, 2001,
unless these negotiations are satisfactorily concluded and the financial covenants are

amended.

We plan to fund our working capital and capital requirements in part from
cash provided by operations, available funds, bank loans, government subsidies, and,
depending on market conditions, the issuance of debt or additional equity securities.

We have also applied for governmental subsidies in connection with certain capital



[Operating & Financial Review]

expenditure projects, but can provide no assurance that such subsidies will be granted
in a timely fashion or at all. We cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain addi-
tional financing for our research and development, working capital or investment re-

quirements or that any such financing, if available, will be on terms favorable to us.

Further to our formation as a separate legal entity, we have agreed to indemnify
Siemens against any losses it may suffer under a small number of guarantee and financ-
ing arrangements that relate to our business, but that could not be transferred to us for
legal, technical or practical reasons. These arrangements, as of September 30, 2001,
represert an aggregate amourt of 313 million Euro, principally relating to contingent

liabilities for government grants previously received.

Siemens AG has guaranteed the indebtedness of ProMGS Technologies in the
amount of 145 million U.S. Dollar. Infineon provided Siemens with a backup guaran-
tee. ProMOS is currently taking measures, including the preparation of debt and equity
offerings, which are intended to provide funding for its capital expenditures and debt
refinancing. The completion of these measures could result in the recognition of in-
come of amounts previously deferred, subject to such guarantee. We cannot, however,

make anv assurances regarding the outcome of these measures.

On September 7, 2001, our ALTIS joint venture executed a bridge loan facility
with a financial institution in the amount of 450 million Euro, with a maturity date of
December 28, 2001, of which 370 million Euro was outstanding at September 30, 2001.
ALTIS is in negotiations with a syndicate of financial institutions to refinance the bridge
facility prior to its maturity date. Pursuant {o this facility, the shareholders of ALTIS, IBM,
and Irfineon have guaranteed the r2payment in equal shares of any amounts cutstanding
under the bridge facility if a refinancing is not completéd by December 28, 2001. At
September 30, 2001, Infineon’s share of this guarntee was 185 million Euro. There can

be no assurances that the negotiations to refinance the bridge facility will be successful.
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Employees
The following table indicates the composition of our workforce as of September 30, at
the end of the financial years indicated. The 2001 figures only reflect the effect of our

announced workforce reduction us through September 30, 2001.

SEPTEMBER 30 1999 2000 2001
¥ 1 T

Per region

Germany

Europe
United States
Asia/Pacific
Other

Totel

Per function

Production!

Research and Development!
Sales and Marketing!
Administrative!

Total

! We have only tracked emplovee numbers by function since our formation as an independent
company.
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EMPLOYEES PER FUNCTION AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
TOTALING: 33,813
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Environmental Matters

The manufacturing of our high-end microelectronic components requires complex

and technically sophisticated processes at our modern production facilities. We use only
the latest equipment and production technologies. As early as possible in the planning
phase we consider ergonomic, respectively safety aspects and environmental aspects of
the processes utilized at the design and production levels for our facilities. We believe
that such a coordinated procedure is necessary in order to continually {mprove the

environmental performance of our company.

We design our products and plan their production in order to meet proactively
changing legal requirements. Working closely with our customers, we intend to begin
thie production and delivery of lead-free components in January 2004, which is earlier

than required by law.

All of our production facilities worldwide have been subject to the environ-
mental certification since 1999. We utilize the international standard DIN EN [SO 14001.
Newly acquired production facilities are integrated into the environmental management
system. Our environmental program addresses not only the production of semicon-
ductors but also the implementation of safety and environmental issues in the workplace.
Already in 1995 - before the climate conference at Kyoto in December 1997 — we had
begun to work on the reduction of greenhouse gases at our new production facilities. By
implementing these technical measures we will help to minimize global enviromental

damage.

Campeon

We are currently in the design and planning phase for the construction of a new head-
quarte:s facility near Munich. We have entered into an agreement with Moto Objekt
Campeon KG under which that company will finance and build a campus-style corpo-
rate headquarters and research and development center for our use on the outskirts of
Munich. We expect to occupy the center under an operating lease arrangement towards

the end of 2003. We can provide no assurance that this project will be completed.
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Subsequent Events

On November 28, 2001, the European Commission announced an inquiry into whether
proposed subsidies (aggregating 219 million Euro) applied for, but not yet received, by
us with the Federal Republic of Germany and another governmental entity relating to
tne expansion of the Dresden manufacturing facility are in accordance with European
Union directives. We recognize such subsidies only when received. We believe that
our application for such subsidies is appropriate and that the ultimate resolution of the
inquiry will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of

operations.

Through November 29, 2001, we have received commitment letters and agreed
or Jocumeniation for a 450 million Eure syndicated credit facility relating to the expan-
sicn of the Dresden manufacturing facility. The credit facility is supported by a partial
guarantee of the Federal Republic of Germany and another governmental entity. We do
not believe-that this guarantee will be impacted by the European Commission inquiry
described above. The proceeds of the credit facility are to be utilized to fund advances
previously made by the Company to construct a new 300mm manufacturing facility at
Dresden. The credit facility containsbspeciﬁed financial covenants, provides for annual
payments of interest and matures on September 30, 2005. The credit facility is subject

to customary closing procedures.

On November 29, 2001, we received commitment letters for 580 million Euro
from a syndicate of financial institutions participating in our existing revolving credit
facility, authorizing an amendment to the facility. The amendment extends the maturity
date of the short-term tranche of the facility (previously 354 million Euro) from its
originzl maturity date of March 2002 to November 2002, Additionally, the amendment
provides for revised financial covenants. The ameiuidment is subject to execution of
documentation satisfactory to the financial institutions and customary closing procedures.
We are further negotiating with the remaining financial institutions in the existing
syndicate, and if necessary, additional financial institutions, for commitments to partici-
pate in the syndicated facility to increase the total amount of the facility to its original

amount of 750 million Euro.
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Outlook
Following the dramatic deterioration in the semiconductor industry experienced in the
200! financial year, market conditions remain difficult in light of the slowdown in the

U.S. economy and the global impact of the terrorist attacks in September 2001.

The market development in the next six months remains uncertain and will
be impacted by these factors. These factors will affect overall product demand, the
intensity of competition in an already very competitive market environment, continued

pricing pressure, and excess manufacturing capacity.

The current macroeconomic uncertainties and current market conditions
make it difficult to forecast results for the full 2002 financial year. In light of the difficult
semiconductor market environment, we expect to incur operating losses during such
time as selling prices for memory products persist at their current low levels and adverse
market conditions continue to affect other parts of our business. However, through the
combination of the successful implementation of our Impact restructuring program, the
reductions in planned capital expenditures, available funds and financing possibilities,
as well as the continued strategic sales of non-core assets as opportunities arise, we believe
we have sufficient liquidity and financial flexibility to absorb the effects of the current
market conditions. Furthermore, with the measures taken to improve productivity and
our competitive technological advantages, we are well positioned to take advantage of

any recovery in the semiconductor market.
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STATUTORY SECTION

Risks and Opportunities

The semiconductor sector is a highly cyclical business which presents both significant
opportunities and substantial risks. Although the industry has experienced an average
annual growth rate over a twenty-year period which surpasses that of most “old economy”
businesses, this average includes both exceptionally strong growth years and periods of
substantial contraction. The risks associated with the cyclical nature of this industry are
compounded by the need for large-scale capital investments in order to sustain market
leadership as well as the sector’s rapid pace of technological change. The downturn in
2001 in the demand for goods and services in the technology sector — in particular for
semiconducters -- and the resulting pressure on the stock prices of technology companies

both illustrate the degree of volatility faced by the semiconductor industry.

The Infineon Risk and Opportunity Management System

We have establisl.ed a risk and opportunity management system enabling us both to
exploit the many significant opportunities manifesting themselves in our markets and to
anticipate and identify risks associated with or arising from them. This system has been
evaluated by our external auditors and encompasses all of our operations. This scope
and depth of reporting help to enable corporate management to take quick and effective
action whenever situations so require. In September 2001, we received the 2001 Euro-

pean Risk Management Award for this Enterprise Risk Management System.

This system, for which a U.S. patent application is pending, is a key component
of our operations. The system is composed of a range of individual monitoring and
management precesses embedded inte our core processes. [t commences at the level of
strategic planning and continues through the manufacturing and sales operations,
including the processing of receivables. As an extension of the forecasting processes con-
ducted by the business groups, the sales organization, the manufacturing clusters, and
the central functions, the risk and opportunity system is used to identify and evaluate
possible deviations from expected developments. Beyond the identification and evalua-
tion of major developments that may effect the business, the system is also used to prior-

itize and implement activities to enhance opportunities and mitigate or reduce risk.
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Risk and opportunity reports are issued on a regular basis by all of our business
units; these reports form the core of the risk management system. The reports are exam-
ined and evaluated by the chief operating decision makers maintained for this purpose
as part of their monthly process. Along with analyses of our markets and of the companies
competing in ihem as well as the fruits of benchinarking processes, the rcports are

drawn upon heavily by our top management when formulating decisions.

We have undertaken a number of measures to minimize its exposure to major
risks arising from its individual operations. Efforts to implement risk reduction and
mitigaticn :neasures are an integral part of the Infineon risk and opportunity manage-
ment system. Not all the risks mentioned above, however, can be equally and effectively
addressed by internal measures, as many of the identified risks have external root causes
~ for example market risks. Although we will strive to identify and implement measures
to deal with risk, not all of these measures may have the intended effect, either because
a risk may be outside the scope of our influence or because an individual measure is not

properly designed or implemented.

To help protect against the occurrence of product-related risks, we have estab-
lished a network to monitor the quality of our operations and those of our important
suppliers. We have secured ISO 3000 and QS-9000 certifications for all of the facilities
surveyed by this network.

We have procured insurance coverage to limit the impact of damaging inci-

dents or certain other events posing possible perils to our assets, finances or earnings.

Tax, fair trade, patent, envircnmental, and stock exchange regulations could
also involve risks. To mitigate these risks, we rely upon the counsel of professionals,

including both our own employees and independent providers.
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Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk
The folluwing discussion should be read in conjunction with notes 2, 28, and 29 to our

consolidated financial siatements.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The table below provides information about our derivative financial instruments that
are sensitive to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, as of September 30, 2001.
For foreign currency exchange forward contracts related to certain sale and purchase
transactions and debt service payments denominated in foreign currencies, the table
presents the rotional amourts and the weighted average contractual foreign exchange
rates. At September 30, 2001, our forward foreign currency contracts had terms of up to
one vear. Qur cross currency interest rate swap cxpire:s in 2005. We do not enter into

derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.

Our policy with respect to limiting short-term foreign currency exposure gener-

ally is to econnmically hedge 75 percent of our estimated net exposure for a minimum

period of three months in advance. Part of our foreign currency exposure remains due to

ditferences between actual and forecasted amounts. We calculate this net exposure on
a cash flow basis considering balance sheet items, actual orders received or made, and

all other planned revenues and expenses.
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AVERAGE
CONTRACT CONTRACTUAL FAIR VALUE
AMOUNT FORWARD SEPTEMBER 30,
o BUY/(SELL)!  EXCHANGE RATE 2091
T T

Foreign currency forward contracts:
U.S. Dollar

U.S. Dollar

Japanese Yen

Japeznese Yer

Singapore Dollar
British Pounds Sterling
British Pounds Sterling

Other currencies

Cross currency interest rate swaps:

U.S. Dollar

I Euro equivalent ir: thousands, except for average contractual forward exchange rates.

Effective October 1, 2000, we adopted the provisions of Financial Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities”, as amended (“SFAS No. 133”). SFAS No. 133 requires all derivative instruments
to be recorded on the balance sheet at their fair value. Gains and losses resulting from
changes in the fair values of those derivatives are accounted for depending on the use
of the derivative instrument and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting. Generally,
our economic hedges are not considered hedges under SFAS No. 133. The adoption
of this statement did not have a reporting impact on our financial statements as of
Octcber 1, 2000, because under our economic hedging strategy we report all derivatives

at fair value in our financial statements, with changes in fair values recorded in earnings.
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Interest Rate Risk Management

We are exposed to interest rate risk mainly through our debt instruments. During the
2001 financial year, our significant debt instruments were econoniically hedged by assets
with the same maturity and same interest rate provisions, so our exposure to interest rate
risk was limited to our otl:er debt instruments. These are of minor size and had short
maturities. The carrying value of these other debt instruments approximated their market
value because their interest rates approximated those that could be obtained in the
relevant market. A substantial increase in interest rates could increase our future interest

expense and could therefore lead to increased costs of financing our capital expenditures.

Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to commadity price risks through cur dependence on various materials.
We seek to minimize these risks through our sourcing policies and cperating procedures.
We do not utilize derivative financial instruments to manage any remaining exposure to

fluctuations in commodity prices.
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INFINEON TECHNOLOGIES AG

Infineon Technclogies AG is the parent company of the Infineon group and carries out
the group’s management and corporate functions. Infineon Technologies AG has major
group-wide responsibilities such as finance and accounting, human resources, strategic
and product-oriented research and development activities as well as worldwide corporate
and marketing communications. The responsibility for managing the flows of supplies,
products, and services among the group companies is also handled by Infineon Technol-
ogies AG. Infineon Technologies AG also has its own production facilities in Berlin,

Munich, and Regensburg.

Infinson Technologies AG prepares its financial statements on a stand-alone

basis in accordance with the requirements of the German Commercial Code (HGB).

Infineon Technologies AG had revenues on a stand-alone basis of 6,697 mil-
lion Euro in the 2001 financial year (2000: 7,626 million Euro). It had a net loss of
435 million Euro, compared to a net income of 520 million Euro in previous financial
year. Infineon Technologies AG handles the settlement of accounts for and with its
subsidiaries, which produce and sell products. As a result, Infineon Technologies AG’s
sales on a stand-alone basis were higher than those of the Infineon group as a whole
in 2001.

At the end of the 200! financial year, Infineon Technologies AG’s financial
position showed a significant increase in non-current assets and a decrease in the volume
of receivables, reflecting reduced sales during the latter part of the year. Shareholders’
equity increased to 7,259 million Euro (2000: 6,276 million Euro), primarily as a result
of the capital increases. At September 30, 2001, Infineon Technologies AG’s equity ratio
was 81 percent (2000: 75 percent).

Dividend

The annual general meeting of shareholders on April 6, 2001 approved a dividend of
0.65 Euro per share with respect to the 2000 financial year,. resulting in a pretax distri-
bution of 407 million Euro to shareholders. The Management Board proposes to carry

forward the net loss for the 2001 financial year.
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Report on Relationships with Affiliated Entities

Siemens AG and Siemens Nederland N.V. held an aggregate of 50.4 percent of the share
capital of Infineon Technologies AG at the end of tire 2001 financial year, Siemens
Pension Trust e.V. holds an additional 13.5 percent of our share capital. The companies
have not entered into cither profit-and-loss transfer or subordination agreements.
For that reason, in accordance with § 312 of German Stock Corporation Act, Infineon
Technologies AG's Management Board has issued a so-called “control report”. It details

the company’s relationships with affiliated entities.

The control report states thal Infinenn received an appropriate amount of pay-
_ment or other consideration in every transaction it entered into with affiliated companies,
and that it did net suffer any disadvantages from measures undertaken with, for and by
such companies. Management therefose believes that such transactions and measures
were in the best interest of the company, based upon the Management Board’s analysis

of the conditions prevailing at the time such actions were taken.

The control report has been examined by the independent auditors of Infineon

Technologies AG, who have issued an unqualified opinion with respect thereto.
Munich, November 2001

THE MANAGEMENT BOARD

Sl

Dr. Ulrich Schumacher, CEO

Peter Bauer Peter J. Fischl

Rl Miksp

Dr. Sénke Mehrgardt Dr. Andreas von Zitzewite
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DISCLAIMER

You should read this discussion of our consolidated financial condition and results of
operations in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the related
notes and the other financial information included in our financial report. Our audi-
ted consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a number of
assumptions, as more fully explained in notes 1 (Description of Business, Formation and
Basis of Presentation) and 2 (Summary of Siznificant Accounting Policies) to our audi-

ted corsolidated financial statements appearing in our financial report.

This report combines the operating and financial review of Infineon
Technologies AG, the parent company of the Infineon group, with the operating and

financial review of the Infineon group as a whole.

This operating and financial review contains forward-looking statements.
Statements that are not statements of historical fact, including expressions of our beliefs
and expectations, are forward-looking in nature and are based on current plans, estimates
and projections. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made,
and we undertake no obligation to update any of them in light of new information or
future events. Forward-looking statements involve inherent risks and uncertainties. We
caution you that a number of important factors could cause actual results or outcomes

to differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statement.



findependent Auditors’ Report}

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Supervisory Board and Shareholders of infineon Technologies AG:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Infineon Technologies
AG and subsidiaries as of September 30, 2000 and 2001, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the
three year period ended September 30, 1999, 2000 and 2001. These consolidated financial
statements are the responsibility of the company’s management. Qur responsibility is to

express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements bazed on our audits.

We condncted cur andits in accordanice with German and United States gener-
ally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits

provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Infineon Technologies AG and
subsidiaries as of September 30, 2000 and 2001, and the resuits of their operations
and their cash flows for the years in the three year period ended September 30, 1999,
2000 and 2001. in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the
Urited States.

Munich, Germany
October 25, 2001, except for note 31, which is as of November 29, 2001

KPMG DEUTSCHE TREUHAND-GESELLSCHAFT
AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT
WIRTSCHAFTSPRUFUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
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[Consolidated Statements of Operations]

—ER

INFINEON TECHNOLOGIES AG

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1999, 2000 AND 2001 NOTES 1999 . 2000 2001
N T T T

Net sales:

Third patties

Related parties

Total net sales

Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Research and development expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses

Restructuring charge

Other operating expense (income), net

‘Opcrating (luss) income

Interest income (expense), net, inclusive of subsidies

Equity in earnings of associated companies

Gain on associated company share issuance

Other income, net

Minority interests

Income (loss) before income taxes

Income tax benefit (expense)

Net income (loss)

Earnings (loss) per share, basic and diluted

Euro thousands, except for per share data.

For the year ended September 30, 1999, Euro balances have been restated from the Deutsche Mark into Euro using the official exchange rate fixed
as of January 1, 1999 (Note 2).

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements (see page 62 ff.).
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[Consolidated Balance Sheets]

INFINEON TECHNOLOGIES AG
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 AND 2001 NOTES 2000 2001

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Marke!able securities

Accounts receivable, net

Related party receivables

Inventories

Deferred income taxes

Othier current assets

Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

L ~ng-terma jrvestments, nat

Restricted cash

Deferred income taxes

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Current lisbilities:
Short-term debt and current maturities

Accounts payable

Related party payables

Accrued liabilities

Deferred income taxes

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxes

Other uabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity:
Ordinary share capital

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Euro thousands.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements (sce page 62 ff.).
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[Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity]

- EB

INFINEGN TECHNOLOGIES AG ISSUED ADDITIONAL
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ORDINARY SHARES PAID-IN

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1999, 2000 aND 2001 SHARES AMOUNT CAPITAL
i

T T

Balance as of October 1, 1998
Net loss prior to April 1, 1999
Net inceme after April 1, 1999

Other comprehensive income (loss)

Totai comprehensive incoine
Retention of North Tynside by Siemens AG (Note 1}
Net investments by and advances from Siemens AG prior to April 1, 1999

Contribution to capital and issuance of shares on initial formation
as of Apnl 1, 1999

Additional capilal contribuiions

Balance as of September 30, 1999

Net incoine

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Issuance of ordinary shares
Proceeds from initial pubiic offering, net of offering expenses
Proceeds from private placement
Acquisition of Savan

Deferred compensation, net

Increase of basis in long-term investment attributable to the issuance of
shares by associated company

Equity transactions with Siemens Group

Balance as of September 30, 2000 SRR 625;501',_56
Net loss L ‘ ‘

Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive loss

Dividend payment

Issuance of ordinary shares
Proceeds from public offering, net of ¢ fering expenses
Acquisition of Ardent
Acquisition of Catamaran
Investment in associated company

Ordinary shares held by associated company

Deferred compensation, net

Sale of joint venture interest to Siemens Group

Equity transactions with Siemens Group

Balance as of September 30, 2001 R 692,382,575'




[Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity]

INVESTMENTS BY FOREIGN CURRENCY ADDITIONAL UNREALIZED
RETAINED AND ADVANCES FROM TRANSLATION MINIMUM PENSION GAINS/LOSSES

EARNINGS SIEMENS AG ADJUSTMENT LIABILITY ON SECURITIES TOTAL
T i

asp e,

Y

1,192,192

(590,581)

194999

Euro thousands, except for per share data.

For the year ended September 30, 1999, Euro balances have been restated from the Deutsche Mark into Euro using the official exchange rate fixed
as of January 1, 1999 (Note 2). :

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements (see page 62 fF.).
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[Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows]

INFINEON TECHNOLOGIES AG
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1999, 2000 AND 2001

Net (loss) income

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

Acquired in-process research and development

Deferred compensation

Provision for doubtful accounts

Wiite-down of inventory

Cain on sale or transfer of marketable securities

Gain on sale of businesses

Gain on associated company share issuance

Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Equity in eamnings of associated companies

Minority interests

Deferred income taxes

Other non-cash items

Cianges ir. operating assets and liabilities:
Related party receivables - trade

Accounts receivable

[nventories

Other current assets

Related party payables - trade

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Other current liabilities

Other assets and liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities
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[Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows]

INFINEON TECHNOLOGIES AG

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 1999, 2000 AND 2001 ] 1999 2000 2001
T 1 I

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of marketable securities available for sale

Proceeds from sale of marketable securities available for sale

Proceeds from sale of businesses

Investment in associated and related companies

Purchases of intangible assets

Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Prozeeds from sales of preperty, plant and equipment

Dividends received from equity investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net change in short-term debt

Net change in related narty financiai receivables and payables

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

Principa! repayments of long-term debt

Proceeds from issuance of redeemable interest in associated company

Net change in restricted cash

Increase in investments by and advances from Siemens AG

Proceeds from issuance of shares to minority interest

Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares

Dividend payment

Sale of joint venture interest to Siemens Group

Capital contributions from Siemens Group

Net cash provided by financing activities

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Euro thousands.

For the vear ended September 30, 1999 Euro balances have been restated from the Deutsche Mark into Euro using the official exchange rate fixed as
of January 1, 1999 (Note 2).

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements (see page 62 ff.).
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[Notes to the Consolidated Finzncial Statements)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(EURO IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT WHERE OTHERWISE STATED)

(1) DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS, FORMATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Description of Business

Infineon Technologies AG (“Infineon” or the “Company”) designs,
develops, manufactures and markets a broad range of semiconductors
and complete systems solutions used in a wide variety of microelec-
tronic applications, including computer systems, telecommunications
systems, consumer goods, antomotive products, industrial automation
and control svstems and chip card applications. Infineon’s products
include standard commodity components, full-custoin devices, semi-
custom devices and application specific components for memory,
analog, digital and mixed-signal applications. Infineon has operations
and investments located in Europe, Asia and America. Infineon’s
customers are mainly located in Europe, Asia and North America.
Infineon is a majority owned subsidiary of Siemens Aktiengesellschaft
(“Siemens”). The fiscal year end for Infineon and its subsidiaries is
September 30.

Formation

Infineon was formed as a legal entity as of April 1, 1996 {the “For-
mation”) through the contribution by Siemens of substantially all of
its semiconductor-related investments, operations and activities (the
“Ccatributed Businesses”).

The substantial portion of the assets and liabilities relating to the wafer
fabrication facility located in the North Tyneside area of Northern
England {“North Tyneside”) was not legally transferred to Infineon at
the Formation. However, the results of its operations through Novem-
ber 30, 1998 (the date its operations ceased) are included in the
accompanying statement of operations for the year ended September 30,
1999, because North Tyneside was operated and managed as part of
the Contributed Businesses. Infineon has no legal right or obligation
with respect to the remaining assets and liabilities of North Tyneside
and, accordingly, such assets and related obligations are excluded
from the accompanying balance sheet effective November 30, 1998.
In September 2000, Siemens sold North Tyneside to a third party
with no recourse to Infineon.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accord-
ance with United States Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(“U.S. GAAP”). For all periods prior to the Formation, this reflects the
combined historical financial statements of the Contributed Businesses
as if Infineon were a separate entity, and therefore may not necessarily
reflect what the results of operations, financial positions and cash flows
would have been had Infineon operated as a separate independent
company, nor are they an indicator of future perfcimance.

Infineon Technologies AG is incorporated in Germany. The German
Commercial Code (“Handelsgesetzbuch” or “HGB”) requires the
Company to prepare consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the HGB accounting principles and regulations (“German
GAAP”). Pursuant to HGB Section 292a the Company is exempt from
this requirement if consolidated financial statements are prepared and
issued in accordance with a body of internationally accepted account-
ing principles (such as U.S. GAAP). Accordingly, the Company presents
the U.S. GAAP consolidated financial statements contained herein.

All amounts herein are shown in thousands of Euro (or “€”) except
where otherwise stated. The accompanying balance sheet as of Sep-
tember 30, 2001, and the statements of operations and cash flows for
the year then ended are also presented in U.S. Dollar (“$”), solely for
the convenience of the reader, at the rate of € 1 = $ $.9099, the noon
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buying rate on September 28, 2001. The U.S. Dollar convenience
translation amounts have not been audited.

Certain amounts in prior year consolidated financial statements and
notes have been reclassified to conform to the current year presentation.
Net operating results have not been affected by these reclassifications.

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

'i'he following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed
in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements.

Basis of Consolidation

The accompanying financial statements include, prior to the Formation,
the accounts of Infineon and the Contributed Businesses on a com-
bined basis and, after the Formation, the accounts of Infineon and its
significant subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. Investments in compa-
nies in which Infineon has an ownership interest in excess of 20 percent
but which aze not controiled by Infineon (“Associated Companies”)
are principally accounted for using the equity method of accounting
(see note 11). The equity in earnings of Associated Companies with
different fiscal year ends are principally recorded on a three month
lag. Other equity investments (“Related Companies”) in which Infineon
has an ownership interest of less than 20 percent are recorded at
cost. The effects of all significant intercompany transactions are elimi-
nated.

The Infineon group consists of the following number of entities:

CONSOLIDATED
SUBSIDIARIES
1

ASSOCIATED

COMPANIES TOTAL
T

September 30, 2000
Additions

Transfers

Disposals

Others

September 30, 2001

Additionally, the consolidated financial statements include 33 (2000: 25)
subsidiaries and 9 (2000: 9) Associated Companies that are accounted
for at cost and recorded under investments in Related Companies, as
these companies are not material to the respective presentation of the
financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.
The effect of these companies for all years presented on consolidated
assets, revenues and net income (loss) of the Company was less than
one percent.

Reporting Currency

On October 1, 1999, Infineon adopted the Euro as its reporting currency,
and therefore the accompanying financial statements are presented

in Euro. Accordingly, previous Deutsche Mark (“DM?) financial state-
ments for each period presented prior to October 1, 1999 have been
restated into Euro using the official DM/€ exchange rate fixed as of
January 1, 1999 of € 1 = DM 1.95583. Due to the fixed DM/ exchange
rate, Infineon’s restated Euro financial statements depict the same
trends as would have been presented if it had continued to present its
financial statementis in DM. Infineon’s financial statements, however,



will not be comparable to the Euro financial statements of other
companies that previously reported their financial statements in a cur-
rency other than DM, because of currency fluctuations between the
DM and other currencies.

Foreign Currency Translation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries with functional cur-
rencies other than the Euro are translated using period-end exchange
rates, while the revenues and expenses of such subsidiaries are trans-
lated using average exchange rates during the period. Differences
arising from the translation of assets and liabilities in comparison with
the translation of the previous periods are included in other compre-
hensive income (loss) and reported as a separate component of share-
holders’ cquity.

The exchange rates of the more important currencies used in the prep-
aration cf the accompanying financial staternents are as follows:

EXCHANGE RATEAT  ANNUAL AVERAGE
SEPTEMBER 30, EXCHANGE RATE
2000 2001 2000 2001

Currency

US. $ 1$=
Jepanese Yen 190 JPY =
British Pound 1GBP =

Singapore Doliar 1 SGD

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents represent cash, deposits and highly liquid
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Restricted Zash
Restricted cash includes collateral deposits used as security under
borrowing arrangements and deposits held in escrow for others.

Marketable Securities

The Company’s marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale
and are stated at fair value as determined by the most recently traded
price of each security at the balance sheet date. Unrealized gains and
losses are included in accumulated other comprehenisive income, net
of applicable deferred taxes. Realized gains or losses and declines in
value, if any, judged to be other than temporary on available-for-sale
securities are reported in other income or expense. For the purpose
of determining realized gains and losses, the cost of securities sold is
based on specific identification.

Invantories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market, cost being gener-
ally determined on the basis of an average method. Cost consists of
purchased component costs and manufacturing costs, which are com-
prised of direct material and labor costs and applicable indirect costs.

Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment is valued at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Spare parts, maintenance and repairs are expensed as
incurred. Depreciation expense is generally recognized using an
accelerated or straight-line method. Construction in progress includes
advance payments for construction of fixed assets. Land and construc-
tion in progress are not depreciated. The cost of construction of cer-
tain Jong-term assets includes capitalized interest, which is amortized
over the estimated useful life of the related asset. For the years ended
September 30, 2000 and 2001 capitalized interest was € 2,820 and

(Euro in thousands, except where otherwise stated)

[Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements]

€ 27,166, respectively. For the year ended September 30, 1999, interest
capitalized was not significant. The estimated useful lives of assets are
as follows:

YEARS
1

Buildings

Technical equipment and machinery

Otl.er plant and office equipment

Leases

The Company is a lessee of property, plant, and equipment. All leases
where Infineon is lessee that meet certain specified criteria intended
to represent situations where the substantive risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the lessee are accounted for as
capital leases pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS")
No. 13, “Accounting for Leases.” All other leases are accounted for as
operating leases.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets primarily consist of purchased intangible assets such
as licenses and purchased technology, which are recorded at acquisition
cost, and goodwill resulting from business acquisitions, representing
the excess of purchase price over fair value of net assets acquired. In-
tangible assets arc amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated
usefui lives of the assets ranging from 3 to 10 years. Pursuant to SFAS
No. 141 “Business Combinations” in connection with SFAS No. 142
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, goodwill arising from business
combinations accounted for as a purchase after June 30, 2001 is no
longer amortized.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

The Company reviews longlived assets, including intangible assets,
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recover-
ability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of
the carrying amount of an asset to future net cash flows expected to
be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired,
the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which
the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets.
Estimated fair value is generally based on either appraised value or
measured by discounted estimated future cash flows. Considerable
management judgment is necessary to estimate discounted future
cash flows.

Financial Instruments

Infineon operates internationally, giving rise to exposure to changes in
foreign currency exchange rates. Infineon uses financial instruments,
including derivatives such as foreign currency forward and option
contracts, to reduce this exposure based on the net exposure to the
respective currency. On October 1, 2000, the Company adopted SFAS
No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activi-
ties” as amended by SFAS No. 137 and SFAS No. 138, which provides
guidance for accounting for all derivative instruments, including
certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for
hedging activities. Derivative financial instruments are recorded at
their fair value and included in other current assets or other current
liabilities. Changes in fair value are recorded in current earnings or
other comprehensive income, depending on whether the derivative is
designated as part of a hedge transaction and the type of hedge trans-
action. The adoption of SFAS No. 133, as amended, did not have an
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impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
The fair value of derivative and other financial instruments is discussed
in note 28.

Revenue Recognition - Sales

Revenue, net of allowances for discounts and price protection agree-
ments, is recognized upon shipment or delivery of finished products

to customers depending on the terms of the agreement, when the
risks and rewards of ownership are transferred. Prior to January 2001,
sales to the Siemens sales organizatioas for resale to third parties and
sales directly to Siemens are recognized upon shipinent when the risks
and rewards of ownership are transferred. For sales to the Siemens sales
organizations, revenue is recognized net of a discount that represents
the sales organization’s commission. Such discounts are reflected as
reductions in net sales and not as selling expenses (note 18).

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) released Staff
Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) 101 “Revenue Recognition in Financial
Statements” which provides guidance on the recognition, presentation
and disclosure of revenue in financial statements filed with the SEC.
Effective July I, 2001, the Company adopted the provisions of SAB 101,
which did not have an impact cn the Compeny’s financial position or
results of operations.

Revenue Recognition - License and Technology Transfer Fees
License and technology transfer fees are recognized when eamed and
realizable. Lump sum payments are deferred where applicable and
recogruzed over the period the Company is obliged to provide additional
service. Multi-element arrangements where objective fair values of
specific elements do not exist are combined and amortized over the
applicable periods.

Government Grants

Tax-free government grants are deferred and amortized to income in
the period in which the related expenses are incurred. Taxable grants
for investments in property, plant, and equipment are deducted from
the acquisition costs of the related assets. Other taxable grants reduce
the related expense (see notes 16 and 21).

Product-related Expenses

Expenditures for advertising, sales promotion and other sales-related
activities are expensed as incurred. Provisions for estimated costs
related to product warranties are made at the time the related sale is
recorded. Research and development costs are expensed as incurred.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted
tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates
is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment
date. Deferred income taxes in Germany are calculated using the
“undistributed earnings” tax rate.

Stock-based Compensation

The company accounts for stock-based compensation using the in-
trinsic value method pursuant to Accounting Principle Board (“APB”)
Opinion 25, “Accounting for Stock Issiied to Employees”, and las
adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation”.

page 64

Issuance of Shares by Subsidiaries or Associated Companies

Gains or losses arising from the issuances of shares by subsidiaries or
Associated Companies, due to changes in the Company’s proportionate
share of the value of the issuer’s equity, are recorded as non-operating
income or expense pursuant to SAB Topic 5:H, “Accounting for Sales
of Stock by a Subsidiary”.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the accompanying financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
amounts ard liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
reported amounts of revenues and 2xpenses during the reporting period.
Due to current econornic conditions and events, it is possible that
these conditions and events could have a significant effect on such
estimates made by management. |

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations”,
and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS
No. 141 requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for
all business comnbinaticns initiated after June 30, 2001 zs well a5 all
purchase method business combinations completed after june 30, 2001.
SFAS No. 141 also specifies criteria intangible assets acquired in a
purchase method business combination must meet #o be recognized
and reported apart from goodwill, noting that any purchase price
allocable to an assembled workforce may not be accounted for sepa-
rately. SFAS No. 142 will require that goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives no longer be amortized, but ins.cad tested
for impairment at least annually in accordance with the provisions

of SFAS No. 142. SFAS No. 142 will also require that intangible
assets with estimable useful lives be amortized over their respective
estimated useful lives to their esimated residual values, and reviewed
for impairment in accordance with SFAS No. 121, “Accountitg for
the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to Be
Disposed of”.

The Company is required to adopt the provisions of SFAS No. 141
immediately and expects to adopt SFAS No. 142 effective October I,
2001. Furthermore, goodwill and intangible assets determined to
have an indefinite useful life acquired in a purchase business combi-
nation completed after June 30, 2001, but before SFAS No. 142 is
adopted in full will not be amortized, but will continue to be evaluated
for impairment in accordance with the appropriate pre-SFAS No. 142
accounting literature. Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in
business combinations completed before July 1, 2001 will continue to
be amortized and tested for impairment in accordance with the
appropriate pre-SFAS No. 142 accounting requiremenis prior to the
adoption of SFAS No. 142.

SFAS No. 141 will require, upon adoption of SFAS No. 142, that the
Company evaluate its existing intangible assets and goodwill that were
acquired in a prior purchase business combination, and to niake any
necessary reclassifications in order to conform with the new criteria in
SFAS No. 141 for recognition apart from goodwill. Upon adoption

of SFAS No. 142, the Company will be required to reassess the useful
lives and residual values of all intangible assets acquired and make
any necessary amortization period adjustments by the end of the first
intertm period after adoption. In addition, to the extent an intangible
asset is identified as having an indefinite useful life, the Company will
be required to test the intangible asset for impairment in accordance
with the provisions of SFAS No. 142 within the first interim period Any
impairment loss will be measured as of the date of adoption and
recognized as the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle
in the first interim period.



In connection with SFAS No. 142's transitional goodwill impairment
evaluation, SFAS No. 142 will require the Company to perform an
assessment of whether there is an indication that goodwill (and equity-
method goodwill) is impaired as of the date of adoption. To accom-
plish this, the Company must identify its reporting units and determine
the carrying value of each reporting unit by assigning the assets and
liabilities, including the existing goodwill and intangible assets, to those
reporting units as of the date of adoption. The Company will then
have up to six months from the date of adoption to determine the fair
value of each reporting unit and compare it to the reporting unit’s
carrying amourt. To the extent a reporting unit’s carrying amount ex-
ceeds its fair value, an indication exists that the reporting unit’s good-
will 1nay be impaired and the Company inust perform the second step
of the transitional impairment test. In the second step, the Company
must compare the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill,
determined by allocating the reporting unit’s fair value to all of its assets
(recognized z2nd unrecognized) and liabilities in a manner similar

to a purchase price allocation in accordance with SFAS No. 141, to its
carrving amount, both of which would be measured as of the date of
adoption. This second step is required to be completed as soon as pos-
sible, but no later than the end of the year of adoption. Any transitional
tnipairiment loss will be recoganized as the cumulative effect of a change
in accounting principle in the Company’s statement of operations.

As of the date of adoptien, the Company expects to have unamertized
goodwill in the amount of € 295,522, unamortized identifiable intan-
gible assets in the amount of € 141,001, all of which will be subject

to the transition provisions of SFAS Nos. 141 and 142. Amortization
expense related to goodwill was € 1,227, € 8,225, and € 23,038 for the
years ended September 30, 1999, 2000, and 200]. Because of the ex-
tensive effort needed to comply with adopting Statements 141 and 142,
it is not practicable to reusonably estimate the impact of adopting these
Statements on the Company’s financial statements at the date of this
report, including whether it will be required to rzcognize anv transi-
tional impairment lo: ses as the cumulative effect of a change in
accounting principle.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143 “Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations” which addresses financial accounting and
reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible
long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. The standard
applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived
assets that result from the acquisition, construction, development and
(or) normal use of the asset.

SFAS No. 143 requires that the fair value of a liability for an asset
retirement obligation be recognized in the period in which it is in-
curred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The fair
value of the liability ts added to the carrying amount of the associated
asset and this ~dditional carrying amount is depreciated over the life
of the asset. The liability is accreted at the end of each period through
charges to operating expense. If the obligation is settled for other than
the carrving amount of the liability, the Company will recognize a gain
or loss on settlement.

The Company is required and plans to adopt the provisions of SFAS
No. 143, effective October 1, 2002. To accomplish this, the Company
must identify all legal obligations for asset retirement obligations, if
any, and determine the fair value of these obligations on the date of
adoption. The determination of fair value is complex and will require
the Company to gather market information and develop cash flow
models. Additionally, the Company will be required to develop pro-
cesses to track and monitor these obligations. Because of the effort
necessary to comply with the adoption of SFAS No. 143, it is not prac-

(Euro in thousands, except where otherwise stated)
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ticable for management to estimate the impact of adopting this SFAS
at the date of this report.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”. SFAS No. 144 retains
the current requirement to recognize an impairment loss only if the
carrying amounts of long-lived assets to be held and used are not re-
coverable from their expected undiscounted future cash flows. How-
ever, goodwill is no longer required to be ailocated to these long-lived
assets when determining their carrying amounts. SFAS No. 144 requires
that a long-lived asset to be abandoned, exchanged for a similar pro-
ductive asset, or distributed to owners in a spin-off be considered held
and used until it is disposed. However, SFAS No. 144 requires the
depreciable life of an asset to be abandoned be revised. SFAS No. 144
requires all long-lived assets to be disposed of by sale be recorded at
the lower of its carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell and to cease
depreciation (amortization). Therefore, discontinued operations are
no longer measured on a net realizable value basis, and future operat-
ing losses are no longer recognized before they occur. The Company
is required to adopt SFAS No. 144 by October 1, 2002. The adoption
of SFAS No. 144 is not expected to have a material impact on the
Conpany’s financial statemients.

(3) AcQuisSImIoNs

On October 24, 2000, the Company exercised its option to purchase
the remaining interest in Semiconductor300 GmbH & Co. KG, Dres-
den, Germany (“SC300”) from Motorola for € 7,655, and has fully
consolidated the venture from that date. Previously, the Company had
accounted for its non-controlling interest under the equity method.
Other investors in the venture have a redeemable interest which has
been recorded as a long-term liability in the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet (see note 16). The carrying amount of this liability re-
presents their contributed capital and is increased by amounts repre-
senting accretion of interest, which could be payable under the
redemption feature, so that the carrying amount of the liability will
equal the redemption amount at any redemption date. Each of the
other investors can redeem their interest or the Company can purchase
their interest, at the earliest in 2004.

In September 2000, the Company entered into a letter of intent to
acquire Ardent Technologies, Inc. (“Ardent”). In April 2001, the
Company completed the transaction and issued 706,714 ordinary shares
with an aggregate value of € 39,122 in exchange for a 100 percent
interest in Ardent accounted for as a purchase, and accordingly, the
consolidated statement of operations include the results of Ardent
from that date. Ardent is a supplier of high-bandwidth integrated circuits
for Local Area Network (LAN) internet-based switching systems. Of
the total shares issued, € 13,498 (related to 372,654 shares) is recorded
as deferred compensation and is reflected as a reduction of additional
paid-in capital. These shares are contingent upon employment and/or
certain performance milestones, and the related deferred compensation
is being amortized, principally as research and development expense,
on a straight-line basis over the related employment or milestone periods
ranging from two to four years. The Company engaged an indepen-
dent third party to assist in the valuation of net assets acquired. As a
result of this valuation, € 12,220 is allocated to purchased in-process
research and development and expensed as research and development
in the year ended September 30, 200}, because the technological
feasibility of products under development has not been established
and no future alternative uses exist. The amount allocated to purchased
in-process research and development was determined through estab-
lished valuation techniques in the high-technology communications
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industry and related guidance provided by the SEC. The remaining
amounts allocated to goodwill and other intangibles are amortized on
a straight-line basis over a three to five year period. Due to significant
changes in the business climate in internet-related businesses, includ-
ing the market for LAN switching systems, Infineon, as a component
of its restructuring plan (see note 23) terminated a significant num-
ber of the Ardent employees, abandoned certain technology acquired
and materially reduced future R&D expenditures for the Ardent busi-
ness. As a result of reductions in projected future cash flows, manage-
ment concluded that the investment in Ardent was impaired and as a
result of independent valuations performed of the remaining intan-
gible assets recognized an impairment charge of € 13,996 as of Septemn-
ber 30, 2001.

In August 2001, the Company acquired all the shares of Catamaran
Communications, Inc. (“Catamaran”). This acquisition has been
accounted for by the purchase method of accounting and accordingly,
the consolidated statement of operations include the results of Cata-
maran from that date. Catamaran is a Silicon Valley based fabless
communications semiconductor company focused on integrated circuits
for the optical networking market. Infineon issued an aggregate of
06,573,435 shares to effect the business corabination as follcws: 5,225,883
shares (€ 246,067) represent purchase price, including 1,952,397 shares
exchanged for 1mearned shares of restricted stock and stock options of
Catamaran. The intrinsic valve of the unzarned shares (€ 24,884 is
accounted for as deferred compensation. Additional 404,985 shares
represent compensation to the employees upon continued employment
and the achievement of certain performance milestones and are
accounted for as deferred compensation at their intrinsic value (€ 5,852).
In addition, 642,569 shares represent contingent purchase considera-
tion payable to the shareholders of Catamaran upor: Catamaran

- achieving certain performance milestones. The shares representing
contingent purchase consideration and deferred compensation are
bath held in escrow. The shares representing contingent purchase
consideration are not reflected as issusd and outstanding shares in the
statement of shareholders’ equity. Should Catamaran achieve these
milestones, the purchase price will be adjusted to reflect the issuance
of the 642,569 shares at their fair value at the date the milestones are
achieved. The shares reflected as deferred compensation are shown as
a reduction of additional paid-in capital and are being amortized on
a straight-line basis over the related employment or milestone periods,
ranging from two to four years. The Company engaged an independent
third party to assist in the valuation of net assets acquired. As a result
of this valuation, € 57,052 is allocated to purchased in-process research
and development and expensed as research and development in the
vear ended Septerber 30, 2001, because the technological feasibility
of products under development has not been established and no future
alternative uses exist. 1 he amount allocated to purchased in-process

research and development was determined through established valua-

tion techniques in the high-tcchnology communication industry and
related guidance provided by the SEC. The remaining purchase price
was allocated to the core technology intangible of € 8,900, which

is being amortized over its useful life of five years, and goodwill of
€179,431, which pursuant to SFAS No. 141 is not amortized. Had
the goodwill been subject to amortization, an additional expense of
€ 2,991 would have been recorded in the consolidated statement of
operations for the vear ended September 30, 2001.

Proforma financial information relating to these acquisitions is not
material to the results of operations and financial position of the
Company and has been omitted.

in May 2001, the Company and Saifun Semiconductors Ltd. {“Saifun™)

formed a new company, Ingentix, to develop, manufacture and market
flash memory products based on Saifun’s patented Nitrided Read
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Only Memory (NROM) technology. Infineon acquired 51 percent
of the outstanding common stock of Ingentix in exchange for cash of
€ 18,833 and has consolidated the operations of Ingentix since its
formation.

(4) DIVESTITURES

On December 19, 2000, the Company sold the Image & Video busi-
ness unit, previously included in the Wireline Communications seg-
ment. This business generated net sales of € 122,845, €135,974, and

€ 38,251 for the years ended September 30, 1993, 2000 and 2001
(through the date of divestiture), respectively. Earnings (loss} before
interests, minority interests and taxes (“EBIT”) amountd to € 13,095,
€ 15,985, and € 9,659 for the years ended September 30, 1999, 2000
and 2001 (through the date of divestiture), respectively. The divestiture
of this business unit resulted in a net gain before tax of € 202,316,
and is reflected as other operating income in the accompanying consol-
idated statement of operations for the year ended September 30, 2001.

On July 27, 2001, the Company entered into a divestiture agreement
relating to its infrared components business. In connection w.th this
transaction, the Company transferred certain assets of its Malaysian
production facility relating to the infrared components business to a
new entity, Infineon Technologies Krubong Sdn. Bhd. (“Krubong”),
which will be responsible for the establishment of 2 new manufac-
turing facility in Malaysia for this business. Pursuant to the terms of
the agreement, the purchaser has acquired a 19 percent ownership
interest in Krubong, as well as immediately acquiring specified assets
related to this business in the United States and Germany. The agree-
ment also contains a put and call option, which is exercisable begin-
ning on january 1, 2002, dependent upon Krubong achieving specified
operational parameters. If the put or call option becomes exercisable
and is exercised by eithcr of the parties, the total transaction value will
approximate $ 120 million, subject to specified purchase price adjust-
ments. The purchaser has provided the Company with an initial
payment of $ 78 million and the remainder is due upon the exercise
of the put and call option. As of September 30, 2001, the Company
has recognized a gain of € 26,275 relating to the sale of the 19 percent
interest in Krubong as well as the sale of the United States and Ger-
man assets. The excess of the cash received over the allocated purchase
price related to the 19 percent interest and the related asset sales has
been recorded as a deferred gain as of September 30, 2001.

On August 14, 2001, the Company entered into an agreement to sell
its 49 percent share in the Ostam Opto Semiconductors GmbH & Co.
OHG joint venture (“Osram Opto”} for € 564,674 to Osram GmbH
(“Osram”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Siemens. Pursuant to the
provisions of Accounting Interpretation No. 39 of APB Opinion 16
“Transfers and Exchanges between Companies under Common
Control” transfers of long-lived assets between entities under common
control are to be accounted for at their historic costs and any excess

of consideration received should be accounted for as a capital contribu-
tion. Accordingly, the excess purchase price, net of tax, of € 392,310

is reflected as a direct increase to additional paid-in capital at Septem-
ber 30, 2001. The Company recorded equity in earnings related to

its investment in Osram Opto of € 7,786, € 9,027 and € 3,743, respec-
tively, in the 1999, 2000 and 200! financial years. The Company’s
purchases and sales of opto products are expected to continue under the
same terms and conditions that existed prior to the sale of the interest
in the joint venture.



(5) ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

The Company had issued 693,025,144 registered ordinary shares of
€ 2.00 notional value per share as of September 30, 2001. In connec-
tion with the acquisition of Catamaran (see note 3), 642,569 ordinary
shares represent contingent purchase price consideration and are held
in escrow subject to certain milestones being achieved. Accordingly,
at September 30, 2001, the Company had 692,382,575 ordinary shares
outstanding, excluding such contingent consideration.

Authorized and Conditional Share Capital

In addition to the issued share capital, the Company’s Articles of
Association authorize the Management Board to increase the crdinary
share capital with the Supervisory Board's consent by issuing new
shares. As of September 30, 2001, the Management Board may use
these authorizations through March 31, 2004 to issue new shares as
follows:

ma authorized share capital Il — in an aggregate amount of up to
€ 120,000 to issue shares to employees. The pre-emptive rights of
existing shareholders are excluded.

s authorized share capital I - in an aggregate amount of up to
€ 222,535 to issue shares in connection with business combinations
(contributi~ns in kind’. The pre-emptive rights of existing share-
holders are excluded.

The Company nas conditional capital of up to € 96,000 (conditional
share capital I) that may be used to issue up to 48 million new registered
shares in connection with the Company’s long-term incentive plan
(see note 27). These shares will have dividend rights from the begin-
ning of the fiscal year in which they are issued.

The Company has conditional capital of up to € 50,000 (conditional
share capital II) that may be used to issue up to 25 million new regis-
tered shares upon conversion of debt securities if those securities
have been issued before November 30, 2004. These shares will have
dividend rights from the beginning of the fiscal year in which they
are issued.

Capital Transactions

At the Formation, Infineon was capitalized through the issuance of
200,000,000 ordinary shares with a nominal value of € 400,000. At a
shareholders’ meeting on December 8, 1999, the shareholders au-
thorized the issuance of an additional 200,000,000 ordinary shares
with a nominal value of € 400,000 through a stock split in the form
of a stock dividend. At a shareholders’ meeting on February 9, 2000,
the shareholders authorized the issuance of an additional 200,000,000
ordinary shares with a nominal value of € 400,000 through a stock
split in the form of a stock dividend. These capital increases were
approved by the German Commercial Registrat on January 26, 2000,
and February 14, 2000, respectively, and have been reflected as if
they had occurred at the time of the Formation in the accompanying
financial statements. Accordingly, all applicable references to the
number of ordinary shares and per share information prior to the For-
mation have been restated to reflect the authorization and issuance
of 640,000,000 ordinary shares.

On March 13, 2000, Infineon successfully completed its initial public
offering {(“IPO”} of 16,700,000 ordinary shares, consisting of American
Depoasitory Shares which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange
and ordinary shares which are listed or. the Frankfurt Stock Exchange,
raising € 562,035, net of offering expenses.

(Euro in thousands, except where otherwise stated)
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In March 2000, pursuant to a private placement, the Company sold
7,592,430 ordinary shares to Intel Corporation (“Intel”), raising

€ 258,826. Under the provisions of the investment agreement, Intel
has agreed to limit the number of shares it would sell over a specified
period.

On April 25, 2000, the Company issued 1,209,077 ordinary shares
from authorized share capital IlI to acquire the net assets of Savan.

In March 2001, the Company issued 443,488 ordinary shares from
authorized share capital Il as partial consideration to acquire an
interest in Ramtron International Corp. (see ncie 11).

In April 2001, the Company issued 706,714 ordinary shares from
authorized share capital III to acquire Ardent (see note 3).

In July 2001, Infineon successfully completed a secondary public
offering of 60,000,000 ordinary shares, raising € 1,475,137, net, of
offering expenses. As a result of the offering, the authorized share
capital I has been fully utilized.

In August 2001, the Company issued 6,373,435 ordinary shares from
authorized share capitel Il ta acquire Catamaran (see note 3).

Under German Commercial Law (Aktiengesetz), the amount of divi-
dends available for distribution to shareholders is based on the level

of retained earnings of the ultimate parent, Infineon Technologies AG,
as determined in accordance with the HGB. At a shareholders’ meet-
ing on April 6, 2001, the shareholders authorized and the Company
subsequently paid a dividend of € 406,612 in respect of the eamings

for the year ended September 30, 2000 of Infineon Technologies AG.

On Octaber 13, 1999, ProMOS Technologies Inc., an Associated
Company, completed a public offering on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
of 150,000,000 primary shares. As a result of this offering, the Com-
pany’s interest in ProMOS was diluted while its proportional share
of ProMOS’ shareholders’ equity increased by € 51,212. Pursuant to
SEC SAB Topic 5:H, this increase is reflected as a direct addition
to shareholders’ equity, since the realization of the gain was not reason-
ably assured at the time of the transaction.
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(6) EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic eamings (loss) per share (“EPS”) is calculated dividing net
income (loss) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing
net income by the sum of the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding plus all additional ordinary shares that would have
been outstanding if potentially dilutive securities or ordinary share
equivalents had been issued.

The computation ot basic and diluted EPS for the years ended
Sepiember 30, 1999, 2000 and 2001, is as follows:

(7) MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Marketable securities at September 30, 2000 and 200! consist of the
following: ‘

1999 2000 2001
T T

Numerator

Net income (loss)

Denominator

Weighted-average shares
outstanding — basic

Effect of dilutive stock options

Weighted-average shares
outstanding — diluted

Earnings (loss) per share
(in €)

Basic and diluted

SEPTEMBER 30, 200C SEPTEMBER 30, 2001
FAIR UNREALIZED UNREALIZED FAIR UNREALIZED UNREALIZED
cosT VALUE GAIN LOSS €OST VALUE GAIN Loss
- T T T T T T T T

Cerman government securities

Foreign government securities

Floating rate notes

Other dept securities

Total debt securities

Equity securities

Total marketable securities

Reflected as follows:

Current asset

Non-current asset
{note 12)

Total marketable securities

Realized gains were € 521, € 20,238 and € 1485 for the years ended
September 30, 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively, and are retlected
as other income in the accompanying statements of operations.

Debt securities at September 30, 200] had the following remaining
contractual maturities:

COsT FAIR VALUE
T T

Less than | year

Between | and 5 years

More than 5 years

Actual maturities may differ due to call or prepayment rights.
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{8) ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

Accounts receivable at September 30, 2000 and 2001 consist of the
following:

Third party-trade

VAT and other taxes receivable

Miscellaneous

Total receivable

Allowance of doubtfull accounts
Total
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Activity in the allowance for doubtful accounts for the years ended (9) INVENTORIES

September 30, 2000 und 2001 is as follows:

Inventories at September 30, 2000 and 2001 consist of the following:

2001
T

Allowance for doubtful accounts

at beginning of year

Raw materials and supplies

Additions charged to bad debt expens

Work-in-process

Write-offs charged against
the allowance

Foreign currency effects

Fiuished goods

Total inventory

Allowance for doubtful accounts

at end of year

During the years ended September 30, 2000 and 2001, the Company

(10) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET

recorded inventory write-downs of € 40,013 and € 357,731, respectively.

A sumimary of activity for property, plant and equipment for the year

ended September 30, 2001 is as follows:

TECHNICAL OTHER PLANT
LAND AND EQUIPMENT AND OFFICE  CONSTRUCTION
BUILDINGS  AND MACHINERY  EQUIFMENT IN PROGRESS TOIAL
] T T 1 T

Cost . "
September 30, 2000 828,986
Additions 196215,
Disposals
Consolidations
Transfers

Foreign currency effects

September 30, 2001

L ;:1e,0‘5’1'=,5$5"‘; '  :

Accumulated depreciation

‘. ;.;(291)397)::

September 30, 2000

Additions (65,640)

Disposals 1698

Consolidations g (74)

Foreign currency effects 3495

Septeaber 3¢, 2001 " 1351,918)

Bonk value . e
September 30, 2000 Co 5375890 21361369
Book value

September 30, 2001

The company is the lessor of technical equipment and machinery
(see note 18) of € 220,912 and € 217,228 with related accumulated
depreciation of € 141,285 and € 162,486 as of September 30, 2000

and 2001, respectively.

(Euro in thousands, except where otherwise stated)
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(11) LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS, NET

A summary of activity for long-term investments for the year ended
September 30, 2001 is as follows:

INVESTMENT  INVESTMENT
LONG-TERM {N ASSOCIATED IN RELATED

INVESTMENTS, NET COMPANIES  COMPANIES
T T

Balance at
September 30, 2000
Additions

Disposals

{32;550)
(5,451

Impairments

Transfers

Equity in earnings

Share issuance

Consolidations

Foreign currency effects

Balance at
September 30, 2001

Investments in Related Companies principally relate to investment
activities aimed at strengthening Infineon’s future intellectual property
potential.

The following Associated Companies at September 30, 2001 are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting:

PERCENTAGE

NAME OF THE ASSOCIATED COMPANY OF OWNERSHIP

MICRAM Microelectronic GmbH, Bochum,
Germany (“MICRAM”)

ProMOS Technologies Inc., Hsinchu, Taiwan
(“ProMOS™)

ALTIS Semiconductor, France (“ALTIS™)

Aristos Logic Corp., Anaheim Hills, California, USA
("ARISTOS")

Cryptomathic A/S, Arkus, Denmark (“Cryptomathic”)

Enhanced Meniory System Ine., Wiltiingion Delaware,
USA ("EMS”)

Newlogic Technologies AG, Lustenau, Austia
(“Newlogic”)

Ramtron Intemational Corp., Colorado Springs,
USA (“Ramtron”)

UMCi Pte. Ltd., Singapore (“UMCI”")

Infineon has accounted for these investments under the equity method
of accounting due to the lack of unilateral control (sze note 2). The
above companies are principally engaged in the research and develop-
ment, design, and manufacture of semiconductors, integrated circuit
and related products.
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On January 12, 2001, the Company entered into an agreement to sell
74.9 percent of its interest in MICRAM Microelectronic GmbH
(former Infineon Technologies Mantel 6 GmbH) to MICRAM AG.

ProMQOS, a Taiwanese public Company, is owned primarily by Mosel
Vitelic, Inc. (“MVI”) and Infineon. The Company’s investment in
ProMOS is net of deferred license and technology transfer fee revenue
(see note 22). On May 22, 2000, ProMOS shareholders approved
the distribution of employee bonuses in the form of 50,683,800 shares.
As a result of this distribution, the Company’s interest was diluted to
33.0 percent, while its proportional share of ProMOS’ shareholders’
equity increased by € 53,425, which is reflected as non-operating
income in the year ended September 30, 2000. On May 14, 2001,
ProMOS shareholders approved the distribution of einployee bonuses
in the form of 47,299,535 shares. As a result of this distribution, the
Company’s interest was diluted to 32.5 percent while its proportional
share of ProMOS’ shareholders’ equity increased by € 11,165, which is
reflected as non-operating income in the year ended September 30, 2001.

ALTIS is a joint venture formed on July 12,1999, between Infineon and
IBM, with each having equal voting representation. Pursuant to the
ALTIS sharcholde:s’ agreement, Infineon made a cash contribution
of € 24,800 on December 31, 1999, in exchange for 2,480,000 shares,
which maintains the Company’s ownership interest in ALTIS at 50.1
percent.

Effective July }, 2001, the Company acquired a 25 percent interest in
Cryptomathic for € 10,000 in cash. This acquisition was made in con-
junction with the strategic formation of a Security Solutions Group.

On July 20, 2000, the Company acquired an 20.1 percent interest in
Aristos Logic Corp. for a total contribution of € 5,451. On March 26,
2001, the company exercised an option to convert a loan of € 4,717 to
equity which increased the Company’s ownership interest to 27.6
percent. Subsequently, the Company wrote off its investment in and
advances to Aristos.

During the year ended September 30, 2001, the Company acquired
an aggregate 25 percent interest in Newlogic for a total consideration
of € 21,429.

In March 2001, the Company acquired an 20 percent interest in Ramtron
for a total consideration of € 31,479, consisting of 443,488 ordinary shares
and cash of € 10,632. Ramtron is a leading developer of specialty
semiconductor memory products based in Colorado Springs, USA, and
listed on the NASDAQ exchange under the symbol RMTR. The
Company has accounted for its indirect interest in the shares of Infineon
held by Ramtron as treasury stock, amounting to € 4,215 at Septem-
ber 30, 2001.

On March 30, 2000, the Company entered into the UMC:i joint ven-
ture agreement with United Microelectronies Corporation (“UMC”)
to construct and operate a 300mm wafer semiconductor facility. The
Company has received a 27.3 percent ownership interest in exchange

for cash of € 65,567.

Included in the amount of long-term investments at September 30,
2001 is goodwill, net, of € 45,101 related to such investments.



The aggregate summarized financial information for the Associated
Companies for the fiscal years 1999, 2000 and 2001, is as follows:

19991 2000 20012
T T T
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A summary of activity for intangible assets for the year ended Septem-

ber 30, 2001 is as follows:

OTHER

GOQDWILL INTANGIBLES TOTAL
i

Cost

Sales

Gross profit September 30, 2000

: Additions

Net income
Impairments and write-offs
Disposals

Current assets Consolidations

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Shareholders’ equity

! Includes sales, gross profit and net loss of White Oak of € 385,339, € 35,085, and € (17,%46),
respectively.

2 Includes sales, gross profit ana net income of Gstam Opto of € 415,223, € 58,684 ard
€ 9,274, respectively.

(12) OTHER ASSETS

Other non-current assets at September 30, 2000 and 2001 consist of
the following:

2000 2001
T T

Intangible assets, net

Notes receivable

Marketable securites
(note 7)

Other, net

Total

(Euro in thousands, except where otherwise stated)

Foreign currency effects

September 30, 2001

Accumulated amortization

September 30, 2000

Additions

Disposals

Consolidations

Foreign currency effects

September 30, 2001

Book value

September 30, 2000

Book value

September 30, 2001

(13) ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Accounts payable at September 30, 2000 and 2001 consist of the

following:

2001
T

Third party ~ trade

VAT and other taxes payable

Other

Total

page 71



[Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements]

(14) ACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities at September 30, 2000 and 2001 consist of the
following:

Personnel costs

(17) peBT

Debt at September 30, 2000 and 2001 consists of the following:
2000 2001
T T

Short-term debt

Notes payable to banks,
weighted average rate 3.5%

Accrual for restructuring
(note 23)

Taxes

Warraniies and licenses

Other

(15) OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Othier current liabilities at September 30, 2000 arnd 200! censist of
the following;

2000 2001
T 1

Payroll obligations and other
liabilities to employees

Deferred income

~ Forward contracts payable
Other

(16) OTHER LIABILITIES

Other non-current liabilities at September 30, 2000 and 2001 consist
of the following:

2000 2001
T

T

Pension obligations (note 20)

Deferred government grants

Deferred license and technology
transfer fees (note 22)

Redeemable interest

Minoritv interest
Other

Current portion of long-term debt

Capital lease obligation

Total short-term debt and current maturities =

Long-term debt
Loans payable to banks

- Unsecured term loans, weighted average
rate 4.1 %, due 2001-2007

- Interest-free loan, due 2004

~ Secured term loans, weighted average
rate 6.6 %, due 2003

- Loans payable, weighted average rate 4.0 %,
due 2004

Notes payable, weighted average rate 4.0 %,
due 2003

Notes payable to governmental entity,
rate 2.4 %, due 2027-2031

Capital lease obligation

Total long-term debt

Short-term notes payable to banks consist primarily of borrowings
under the terms of short-term borrowing arrangements.

The interest-free loan, due 2004, consists of borrowings under an ar-
rangement whereby a governmental entity has agreed to pay all interest
thereon. Additionally, should Infineon meet certain stipulations, the
governmental entity has agreed to repay up to 75 percent of the out-
standing balance of the loan on behalf of Infineon. However, all amounts
outstanding under the loan are included as obligations of Infineon
until the stipulations are achieved, at which time the reported obliga-
tions are reduced by the amount to be paid by the governmental entity.

At September 30, 2001, the company had € 74,620 of unsecured
Industrial Revenue Bonds outstanding associated with the construction
at the infineon Richmond (previously White Oak) facility.

The Company has an € 729 millien syndicated multicurrency revolv-
ing credit facility. The amount of the facility is divided into two equal
tranches. The first tranche of € 375 million expires in March 2004.
The second tranche of € 354 million expires in March 2002. Drawings
under each tranche may be denominated in Euro or U.S. Dollar and
will bear variable market rates of interest based on applicable reference
rates plus a margin. This margin may vary based on the extent of the
facility’s utilization and the level of senior debt to earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortization (“senior debt ratio”).
At September 30, 2001, there were no amounts outstanding under
this facility.

The facility includes customary covenants including covenants, in-
cluding covenants regarding the maintenance of a minimum tangible
net worth, a senior debt ratio and an interest coverage ratio. The



Company was granted a waiver on the violation of certain financial
covenants through December 31, 2001. The Company and the syndicate
of financial institutions are currently negotiating amendments to the
financial covenants as well as an extension of the € 354 million com-
ponent of the facility, which expires in March 2002. There can be
no assurance that these negotiations will be satisfactorily concluded.
Accordingly, the revolving credit facility may not be available to the
Company subsequent to December 31, 2001 unless these negotiations
are satisfactorily concluded and the financial covenants are amended
(see note 31).

The Company has established independent financing arrangements
with several financial institutions in the form of both short- and long-
term credit facilities which are available for anticipated funding
purposes. These facilities (including the revolving credit facility of

€ 729 million) aggregate € 1,733 million, of which € 1,576 million was
available at September 30, 2001, and are comprised of three compo-
nents: The first component represents short-term facilities which are
subject to firm commitments by financial institutions, for working
capital, guarantees, and cash pooling purposes, aggregate € 937 million,
of which € 842 million was available at September 30, 2001. The
second componert represenis additional short-teim facilities which are
not subject to firm commitments by financial institutions, for working
capital purposes, aggregate € 329 million, of which € 329 million

was available at Septemher 30, 2001. The third compor.2nt represents
Tong-term facilities with a maturity date of at least one year, which are
subject to firm commitments by financial institutions, for working
capital and project finance purposes, aggregate € 467 million, of which
€ 405 million was available at September 30, 2001.

In March 2001, the Company executed a mandate agreement with a
financial institution for the arrangement of a € 450 million syndicated
credit facility, relating to the construction of the Dresden 300mm
manufacturing facility. The Company anticipates that the credit facility
will be supported by partial guarantees from governmental entities
and subject to specified financial covenants. The Company has received
commitment letters from the guarantors and financial institutions and
the closing of the facility is subject to the execution of documentation
satisfactory to the financial institutions as well as customary closing
procedures (see note 31).

Aggregate amounts of long-term debt including capital lease obligations
maturing during the next five years and thereafter are as follows:
2002, € 23,887; 2003, € 22,650; 2004, € 77,877, 2005, € 33,257; 2006,
€ 31,478 and thereafter € 83,714.

(18) RELATED PARTIES

Infineon has transactions in the normal course of business with Siemens
group companies and with Related and Associated Companies (together,
“Related Parties”). Infineon purchases certain of its raw materials,
especially chipsets, from and sells a significant portion of its products
to Related Parties. Purchases and sales to Related Parties are generally
based on market prices or manufacturing cost plus a markup.

(Euro in thousands, except where otherwise stated)
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Related Party receivables at September 30, 2000 and 2001 consist of
the following:

2000 2001
T

Siemens group - trade
Associated and Related Companies — trade

Siemens group - financial and other

Associated and Related Companies -
financial and other

Employee receivables

Related Party payables at September 30, 2000 and 2001 consist of the
following:

2000 2001
T T

Siemens group — trade

Associated and Related Companies — trade

Siemens group - financial and other

Associated and Related Companies —

financial and other

Related Party receivables and payables have been segregated (1),
between amounts owed by or to Siemens group companies and com-
panies in which Infineon has an ownership interest and (2) based
on the underlying nature of the transactions. Trade receivables and
payables include amounts for the purchase and sale of product.
Financial receivables and liabilities represent amounts owed relating
to loans and advances and accrue interest at interbank rates.

Transactions with Related Parties during the years ended September 30,
1999, 2000 and 2001 include the following:

1999 2000 2001
T T T

Sales to Related Parties:

— Siemens group companies

— Associated and Related
Companies

963,251

L 10,783
Purchases from Related Parties: " “
— Siemens group companies - .. 260,10
— Associated and Related
Companies

Interest income from
Related Parties

. 21,788
Interest expense to -

Related Parties : jv:15;§j:1.05 21,39
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Sales to Siemens group companies include sales to the Siemens group
sales organizations for resale to third parties of € 366,730, € 326,356
and € 88,676 for the years ended September 30, 1999, 2000 and 2001,
respectively. Sales to the Siemens group sales organizations for resale
to third parties are made at discounts of approximately 5 percent to

8 percent. In January 2001, the Company completed the renegotiation
of its compensation arrangements with the Siemens group sales organ-
izations to cease the practice of selling at a discount to them for resale
to third parties. Sales are principally conducted through the Company’s
own independent sales organization directly to third paities. Where
the Company has not established its own independent sales organiza-
tion in a certain country, a commission is paid to the Siemens group
sales organizations where they assist in making sales directly to third
parties.

In April 2001, Siemens provided the Company with an € 450 million
unsecured short-term loan, bearing interest.at 4.88 percent. The loan
was repaid in September 2001.

Technical equipment is leased to ALTIS (see note 10). The non-can-
celable future lease payments due under this lease at September 30,
20C1 amount to € 31,006 for the year 2002, € 27,384 “ur the year 2003,
and € 15,319 for the year 2004.

Prior to the Formation, Siemnens provided «zrvices to and incurred costs
on behalf of Iniineon. The cost of such services, including administra-
tive services, management information services, employee benefit
administration, legal administration, insurance, tax services, treasury
services, and accounting and reporting, were allocated to Infineon
and amounted to € 37,509 for the year ended September 30, 1999.
These allocations were based upon service contracts between the rele-
vant parties as well as upon methods that management believes are
reasonable, including the use of time estimates, headcount and trans-
action statistics, and similar activity-based data. In the opinicn of the
management, such expenses are indicative of the actual expenses that
would have been incurred if Infineon had been operating as an inde-
pendent entity.

(19) INCOME TAXES

Income (loss) before income taxes and minority interests is attributable

to the following geographic locations for the years ended September 30,
1999, 2000 and 2001:

2000 2001
T T T

118350

Germany (111,

Foreign
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Income tax (benefit) expense for the years ended September 30, 1999,
2000 and 2001 is as follows:

1999 2000 2001
T T

T

Current taxes

Germany

Foreign

Deferred taxes

Germany

Foreign

Income tax (benefit) expense

Genman corporate tax law applies a split-rate imputation system with
regard to the taxation of the income of a corporation and its shareholders.
In accordance with the tax law in effect for fiscal 1999, 2000 and 2001,
retained comorate income is initially subject to a federal corporate tax
rate of 40 percent in each of 1999, 2000 and 2001, plus a solidarity
surcharge of 5.5 percent for each year on federal corporate taxes payable.
Including the impact of the surcharge, the federal corporate tax rate
amounted to 42.2 percent for the years ended September 30, 1999,
2000 and 2001, plus trade tax, net of federal benefit, of 9.8 percent for
the years ended September 30, 1999, 2000 and 2001. Upon distribution
of retained earnings to shareholders, the corporate income tax rate
on such distributed earnings is adjusted to 30 percent, plus a solidarity
surcharge of 5.5 percent in 1999, 2600 and 2001 for a total of 31.65
percent in 1999, 2000 and 2001. This reduction is effected by means of
a refund for taxes previously paid, which is known as the dividend tax
credit.



A reconciliation of income taxes for the years ended September 30,
1999, 2000 and 2001, determined using the German corporate tax
rate plus trade taxes, net of federal benefit, for a combined statutory
rate of 52 percent for 1999, 2000 and 2001, is as follows:

2001

1999
T

2000
T

Expected provision (benefit) for :

income taxes

Dividend tax credit

Tax free income

Foreign .ax rate differential

Non-deductible expenses and
other provisions

Change in German tax rate -
effect on opening balance

Change in German tax rate ~
effect on current year

Change in valuation allowance i

In-process research and
developinent

Other

Actual provision (benefit) for
incorme taxes

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of Septeraber 30, 2000

and 2001 relate to the following:

Assets

Intangible assets

Investments

Inventories

Deferred income

105,092

Net operating loss and tax credit carry forwards

99308

Other items

96,819

Gross deferred tax assets

Valuz.ion allowances

(1576

Deferred tax assets

408,388

Liabilities

Property, plant and equipment

Accrued liabilities

Other items

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets, net

(Euro in thousands, except where otherwise stated)
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Net deferred income tax assets and liabilities are presented in the
accompanying balance sheets as of September 30, 2000 and 2001 as

follows:

2000 2001

Deferred tax assets Current &
Non-current 1

Deferred tax liabilities Current 5..:
Non-current

For purposes of the preparation of the accompanying financial state-
ments, Infineow: has prepared its tax provision as if it were a separate
entity for all periods prior to the Formation. Infineon recognized deferred
tax benefits of € 65,902 and € 494,380 for the years ended September
30, 1999 and 2001, respectively. These benefits are recognized to the
extent, it is considered more likely than not that such benefits will be
realized in future vears. These considerations include, but are not
limited o, the ability under Genman tax law lo carry forwaird incurred
tax losses indefinitely and thereby offset taxable income in future
years without limitation, tax planning strategies and estimates of future
taxable incoms. These henefits were recognized based on manage-
ment’s belief that it would have been more likely than not that such
benefits would have been utilized by Infineon in future years.

In 1999, Infineon incurred German tax losses in the amount of

€ 358,865. Such tax losses do not represent tax loss carry-forwards and
did not result in deferred tax assets for Infineon at September 30,
1999, as such losses were incurred when the German operations were
a division of Siemens, and therefore benefit Siemens. Accordingly,
the related deferred tax benefit of € 180,832 is reflected as part of equity
transactions with Siemens for the year ended September 30, 1999.
At September 30, 2001, Infineon had tax loss carry-forwards of

€ 769,734 and tax credit carry-forwards of € 95,493. Such tax loss and
credit carry-forwards from both German and non-German operations
are generally limited to use by the particular entity that generated
the loss or credit and do not expire under current law, except for tax

loss carry forwards of € 90,701 which expire in 2020 and 2021.

During the year ended September 30, 2001, valuation allowances
were established relating to the Malaysia operations for tax loss carry-
forwards which management believes that it is more likely than not
that they will not be fully utilized, due to the existence of tax credit
carry forwards.

Infineon did not provide for income taxes or foreign withholding taxes
on cumulative earnings of foreign subsidiaries for the years ended
September 30, 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively, because these eamnings
are intended to be indefinitely reinvested in those operations. It is
not practicable to estimate the amount of unrecognized deferred tax
liabilities for these undistributed foreign earnings.

The income tax (benefit) expense for 1999, 2000 and 200! was allocated
to continuing operations and accumulated other comprehensive income.
The aggregate amounts allocated to equity, for unrealized gains
(losses) on securities and minimum pension liabilities, was € {1,965),
€ 7,945 and € (15,625) for 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively.

In October 2000, the German government passed new tax legislation
which, among other changes, will reduce the Company’s statutory
tax rate in Germany from 40 percent on retained earnings and 30 per-
cent on distributed earnings to a uniform 25 percent, effective for
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the company'’s year ending September 30, 2002. The impact of the
various revisions in the new tax legislation was accounted for during
the year ended September 30, 2001, the period of the enactment of
the legislation, as required by SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income
Taxes”. The impact of the legislation, primarily reflecting the effect
of the tax rate reduction on the Company’s deferred tax balances at
September 30, 2000, was to increase income tax benefit of € 28,027
for the year ending September 30, 2001.

(20) PENSION PLANS

Infineon provides pension benefits to a significant portion of its hourly
and salaried employees. Plan benefits are principally based upon
years of service. Certain pension plans are based on salary earned in
the last year or last five years of employment while others are fixed
plans depending on ranking (both wage level and position).

Information with respect to Infineon’s pension plzns for the years

ended September 30, 1999, 2000 and 2001 is presented by German
{(“Domestic”) plans and non-German (“Foreign”) plans.

1999

DOMESTIC
PLANS
1

FOREIGN
PLANS
T

2000

DOMESTIC
PLANS
T

FOREIGN
PLANS
1

2001
DOMESTIC
PLANS

FOREIGN

PLANS

Change in projected benefit obligations:

1

Projected benefit obligations beginning of year

Service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial gains (losses)

Business combinations

Plan amendments

Settlement of pension obligations

Benefits paid

Foreign currency effects

Projected benefit obligations end of year

Change in fair value of plan assets

Fair value at beginning of year

Contributions and transfers

Actual return on plan assets

T

Foreign currency effects

Fair value at end of year

Funded status

Unrecognized actuarial gain

Unrecognized net obligation (asset)

Unrecognized prior service cost

Net liability récognized

“137,707)
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The above net liability is recognized as follows in the accompanying
balance sheets as of September 30:

DOMESTIC

[Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements]

2001
DOMESTIC

1999 2000

FOREIGN DOMESTIC FOREIGN FOREIGN

PLANS PLANS PLANS PLANS PLANS PLANS
1 Bl T 1 i i

Prepaid pension cost

Restricted cash

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Accrued pension liability

(137.707);

Net liability recognized

(137.707)

The assumptions used in calcularing the actuarial values for the prin-
cipal pension plans are as follows:

1999 2000 2001
DOMESTIC  FOREIGN  DOMESTIC  FOREIGN  DOMESTIC  FOREIGN
PLANS PLANS PLANS PLANS PLANS PLANS
— T L T T | T

Discount rate

Rate uf compensation inerease

Expected return on plan assets

The components of net periodic pension (cost) benefit for the years
ended September 30, 1999, 2000 and 2001 are as follows:

DOMESTIC

1999

2000
DOMESTIC
PLANS

2001
DOMESTIC
PLANS

FOREIGN
PLANS

FOREIGN
PLANS

FOREIGN

PLANS PLANS

Service cost

Interest cost

Return on plan assets

Amortization of prior service cost

Amortization of unrecognized gains

Amortization of unrecognized net obligation/asset

S01,736)

47

Net periodic pension (cost) benefit

C20415)5

{(1.573)

In connection with the Formation, certain employee groups exercised
theic right to cmain in the Siemens pension plan. As a result of this
election, the projected benefit obligation was reduced by € 33,001
and is shown as a settlement of pension obligations. No gain or loss
was recognized on the transfer.

Prior to 1999, Infineon was required to purchase investments to fund
certain foreign pension payments. In March 1999, Infineon settled
these pension obligations for € 18,573, resulting in a net gain of € 4,388.

On September 25, 2000, the Company established the Infineon
Technologies Pension Trust (the “Pension Trust”) for the purpose of
funding future pension benefit payments for employees in Germany.
The Company contributed € 154,696 of cash and marketable debt
and equity securities, which qualify as plan assets under SFAS No. 87,
to the Pension Trust for use in funding these pension benefit obliga-
tions, thereby reducing accrued pension liabilities (see note 16).

(Euro in thousands, except where otherwise stated)

As of result of the employee terminations, in connection with the
Company's restructuring plan (see note 23), it is anticipated that cer-
tain of the Company’s defined benefit plans may be required to be
accounted for as a partial curtailment pursuant to the provisions of
SFAS No. 88 “Employers Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments
of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits.” How-
ever, as of September 30, 2001, the extent of the effect of the curtail-
ment on the Company’s pension obligations is not presently quantifiable
as the identification of specific employees subject to the involuntary
termination plan has not been completed. Accordingly, the impact of
any potential defined benefit plan curtailment gain or loss will be
recognized upon the ultimate indemnification of specific employees
effected by the plan of termination and the completion of the actuar-
ial re-measurement of the related pension obligation.
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(21) GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES

Infineon has received economic development funding from various
governmental entities, including grants for the construction of manu-
facturing facilities, grants to subsidize research and development
activities, employee training and interest expense. Grants and subsidies
included in the accompanying financial statements during the years
ended September 30, 1999, 2000 and 2001 are as follows:

1999 2000 2001
T

Inciuded in the statements of
operations

Interest subsidies

Research and development
Other
Total

Construction grants deducted
from the cost of fixed assets

(22) LICENSE AND TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER FEES

During the years ended September 30, 1999, 2000, and 2001, Infineon
recognized revenues related to license and technology transfer fees
of € 46,343, €175,759 and € 88,228, respectively, which are included
in net sales in the accompanying statements of operations. Infineon
received payments of € 144,984 from ProMOS through 1999, which
have been recorded as deferred revenue and are offset against the

- related investment (see note 11) in the accompanying balance sheets.
In March 2000, the Company entered into new technology transfer
agreemenrts with ProMOS and restructured existing agreements with
MV, the majority sharehclder of ProMOS. As part of these agreements,
previously unrecognized license fees of $108 million due from MVI
were rescheduled and will be recognized as revenue over the life of
the new contracts. In conjunction with the restructured agreements,
license fees previously received but deferred of € 138,045 were recog-
nized as revenue in the year ended September 30, 2000, since the
Company had fulfilled all of its obligations and all such amounts were
realized.

(23) RESTRUCTURING

In the quarter ended September 30, 2001, in response to continued
weakness in the technology sector worldwide, Infineon approved plans
to restructure the organization and reduce costs. Infineon is imple-
menting changes to streamline its procurement and logistics processes
as well as reduce information technology and manufacturing costs.
These changes are intended to improve operational efficiencies and
improve the entire management of the product procurement and
order fulfillment cycles. Accordingly, the Company announced plans
to reduce worldwide headcount by approximately 5,000 employees.
As of September 30, 2001, the Company has signed termination agree-
ments with approximately 2,000 personnel.

Restructuring charges of € 116,505 were expensed during the year
ended September 30, 2001. This charge is comprised of € 56,835 relat-
ing to involuntary employee terminations, € 43,420 relating to both
previously capitalized expenditures (€ 27,145) and related exit costs
(€ 16,275) associated with the discontinuance of a worldwide informa-
tion technology project and € 16,250 of other exit costs.

Components of the restructuring charge and amounts paid during the
period and the remaining accrued liability as of September 30, 2001,
are as follows:

RESTRUCTURING
CHARGE
I

ACCRUED

PAYMENTS LIABILITY
T T

Employee terminations

Other exit costs

Write-off of IT project
costs

Total charge

Infineon anticipates completing the remainder of the headcount
reduction and all exit activities associated with the restructuring by
September 30, 2002.

(24) SUPPLEMENTAL OPERATING COST INFORMATION

The costs of services and materials are as follows for the years ended
September 30:

1995 2000 2001
T

Raw materials, supplies and
purchased goods

FL1701,610-
i i"'.;:‘656,>8_95 S
Total 073587505,

Purchased services

Personnel expenses are as follows for the years ended September 30:

1999 2000 2001
T T T

910,713
139478
Pension expense 721,988
Total 1,072,179 714

Wages and salaries

Social levies

The number of employees by geographic region is as follows as of
September 30:

1999 2000 2001
T T T

12,8530

Germany

Other Europe 2842
UsA e 2563
Asia/Pacific 0752
Other R

Total 87T

As of September 30, 2001, approximately 3,000 employees are to be
terminated in connection with the restructuring (see note 23).
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(25) SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

1999 2000 2001
T

Cash paid for

Interest

Income taxes

Non-cash investing and :
financing activities

Contributions from (to) Siemens |

Deferred tax benefits transferred
to Siemens

Equipment transferred to
Associated Company

The proceeds from the sale of the Company’s interest in Osram Opto
(see note 4) is reflected under net cash provided by financing activities
as a capital contribution. The excess purchase price of € 392,310 is
net of deferced tax of € 140,510.

(26) DTHER COMPREHENSIVE 1MCOME (LOSS)

The changes in the components of other comprehensive income
(loss) for the years ended September 30, 1999, 2000 and 2001 are as

follows:
1999 2000 2001
TAX TAX TAX
PRETAX EFFECT NET PRETAX EFFECT NET PRETAX EFFECT NET
T T T T T T T T T

Unrealized gains (losses) on securities

Unrealized holding gains (losses) (3;698
Reclassification adjustment for (gains) losses T
included in net income (loss) D182
Net unrealized gains (losses) -{3;880)

Additional minimum pension liability

Foreign currency translation adjustment 149,106

Other comprehensive income (loss) 45226

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) - 7 R
beginning of year £(48,418) ©

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) --

end of year 3 :(3,]92) 4.

(Euro in thousands, except where otherwise stated)
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(27) STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Fixed Stock Option Plan

In 1999, the shareholders approved a share option plan (“LTI 1999
plan”), which provided for the granting of non-transferable options to
acquire ordinary shares over a future period. Under the terms of the
LTI 1999 Plan, the Company may grant options over a five-year period

to members of the Management Board for up to 2.25 million ordinary -

shares, directors of subsidiaries and affiliates for up to 6 million ordi-
nary shares, and other eligible empleyees for up to 39.75 million ordi-
nary shares. The exercise price of each option equals 120 percent of
the average closing price of the Company'’s stock during the five trading
days prior to the date of grant. Options vest at the latter of two years
from: the grant date or the date on which the Company’s stock reaches
the exercise price for at least one trading day. Options expire 7 years
from the grant date.

On April 6, 2001, the shareholders approved the Intenational Long-
Term Incentive Plan (“LTI 2001 Plan”), which replaces the LTI 1999
Plan. Options previously issued under the LTI 1999 Plan remain
unaffected as to terms and conditions. Pursuant to the provisions of
the LTI 2001 Pla, an aggregate of 51.5 mnillion options can be granted
within a five-year period. Options, once granted, have a vesting period
of at least two years and can be exercised within seven years of the
grant date at an exercise price of 105 percent of the averaze market
price of the Company’s shares over a specified period preceding the
grant date.

Under the LTI 2001 Plan, the Supervisory Board will decide annually
within three months after publication of financial results how many
options to grant to the Management Board. The Management Board
will, within the same three-month period, decide how many options
to grant to eligible employees.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following
weighted-average assumptions used for grants in 2000: dividend
vield of 0 percent; expected volatility of 45 percent; risk-free interest
rate of 5.46 percent; and expected life of 4.5 years. Weighted-average
assumptions used for grants in 2001 are as follows: dividend yield

0 percent; expected volatility 50 percent; risk-free interest rate of
5.35 percent; and expected life of 4.5 years.

A summary of the status of the LTI 1999 Plan and the LTI 2001 Plan
as of September 30, 2000 and 2001, and changes during the year then
ended is presented below:

SEPTEMBER 30, 2000 SEPTEMBER 3@, 2001
WEIGHTED AVERAGE WEIGHTED AVERAGE
SHARES EXERCISE PRICE SHARES EXERCISE PRICE
bt 1 T T T

Outstanding at beginning of year

Granted

Exercised

Forfeited

Outstanding at end of year

The weighted average fair value of each option granted during the
vear ended Septerber 30, 2001, was € 24.18.
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The following table summarizes information about stock options out-
standing at September 30, 2001:

RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES

[Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE
REMAINING
CONTRACTUAL LIFE

WEIGHTED AVERAGE
EXERCISE PRICE

QUTSTANDING
1

€27:54

€42.00

€4.95-€47.34

€53.26-€55.87

€90.85

No options were exercisable at September 30, 2001.

As described in note 2, the Company applies APB Opinion 25 and
related interpretations in accounting for stock-based compensation.
Accordingly, no compensation expense has been recognized for the
LTI 1995 and 2001 Plans. Had compensation expense been deter-
mined based on the fair value provisions of SFAS No. 123, the Com-
pany’s net income (loss) and earnings (loss) per share wonld have
heen reduzed to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

2000 2001
T

Net income (loss)

As reported

Pro forma

Basic and diluted eamings (loss) per share

The Euro equivalent notional amounts and fair values of the Com-
pany’s derivative instruments as of September 30, 2000 and 2001 are
as follows:

2000 2001
NOTIONAL FAIR NOTIONAL FAIR
AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALWE

T T T T
Forward contracts soid

U.S. Dollar

Japanese Yen

Singapore Dollar
British Pound

Forward contracts purchase

As reported

Pro forma

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In connection with the IPO on March 13, 2000, as part of an employee
offering, employees could purchase shares pursuant to a preferential
allocation mechanism. Employees purchased 7,540,448 shares at an
average discount of 5 percent of the offer price. The Company has
recognized compensation expense related to this employee offering

of € 2,992 during the year ended September 30, 2000.

In May 2001, the Company implemented a worldwide emplovee stock
purchase plan in accordance with the provisions of United States
Internal Revenue Code Section 423, which generally provides the
c¢mployees with a discount of 15 percent for purchases of ordinary
shares up to a maximum of 80 shares per employee subject to a one
year holding period. Pursuant to the provisions of this plan, employees
purchased 11,892 shares. :

(28) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Infineon periodically enters into derivatives including foreign currency
forward and option contracts. The objective of these transactions is to
reduce the market risk of exchange rate fluctuations to its foreign cur-
rency denominated net future cash flows. Infineon does not enter into
derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.

(Euro in thousands, except where otherwise stated)

U.S. Dollar

Japanese Yen

Singapore Dollar
British Pound

Other currencies

Option contracts sold

U.S. Dollar £ 450,000
Option contracts purchased e s
U.S. Dollar 4470:219:4(39.402

Cross currency interest
rate swap

U.S. Dollar

As of September 30, 2000 and 2001, the carrying amounts and the fair
values of the forward and option contracts are the same.

Gains related to foreign currency derivatives and foreign currency trans-
actions amounted to € 41,613, €183,589 and € 34,323, for the years
ended September 30, 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively. Gains and
losses on derivative financial instruments are generally included in
determining net income, with those related to operations included
primarily in cost of goods sold, and those related to financial activities
included :n other income or expense.

Fair values of financial instruments are determined using quoted mar-
ket prices or discounted cash flows. The fair value of Infineon’s unse-
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cured term loans and interest-bearing notes payable approximate their
carrying values as their interest rates approximate those which could
be obtained currently. Due to the restrictions in the transferability
under the interest free arrangement, a fair value other than the carry-
ing value of the interest-free loan is not meaningful. The fair values of
Infineon’s cash and cash equivalents, receivables, related party receiv-
ables and payables and other financial instruments approximate their
carrying values due to their short term nature. The fair values of mar-
ketable securities are provided in note 7.

(29) Risks

Financial instruments that expose Intineon to credit risk consist
primarily of trade receivables and currency derivatives. Concentrations
of credit risks with respect to trade receivables are limited by the large
number of geographically diverse customers and Infineon’s credit
approval and monitoring procedures. The concentration of credit risk
with respect to foreign currency derivatives is limit=d by transactions
with multiple banks up to pre-established limits. Related Parties
account for a significant portion of sales and trade receivables.

In order to remain competitive, Infinean must continue to make
substantial investments in in-process technology and research and
development. Portiens of these investments rnight not be recoverable
if these research and development efforts fail to gain market accep-
tance or if markets significantly deteriorate.

A portion of the intellectual property rights transferred to Infineon by
Siemens is restricted. Infineon cannot use such intellectual property
rights outside its current business or license them to third parties with-
out the prior approval of Siemens. Siemens has retained the right to
license such intellectual property rights to third parties, which include
certain intellectual property rights critical to Infineon. Siemens has
agreed to not engage in or carry out research or development production
or distribution of semiconductor devices per se, except to the extent
that the company is unable or unwilling to provide these devices to
Siemens.

As a subsidiary of Siemens, Infineon benefits under a number of patent
cross licenses, technology licenses and purchasing agreements. The
benefits of such agreements will be lost once Siemens’ direct and in-
direct ownership in Infineon falls below 50 percent. Infineon has suc-
cessfully negotiated certain replacement contracts and is negotiating
further replacement and new contracts with third parties.

On August 10, 2000, Siemens issued a guaranteed exchangeable note
in an aggregate nominal amount of € 2,500,000 (representing 4 per-
cent of the Company’s ordinary share capital), which is divided into
bearer notes with a nominal amount of € 100 each. The notes bear a

1 percent fixed annual interest rate and are to be redeemed by Siemens
on August 10, 2005. Each note can be exchanged, in certain circum-
stances, through Auvgust 10, 2005, for 1,000 Infineon shares.

(30) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

On August 7, 2000 and August 8, 2000, Rambus Inc. (“Rambus”), filed
separate actions against the Company in the United Staies and Germany.
Rambus alleges that the Company has infringed patents owned by
Rambus that relate to the SDRAM and DDR DRAM products. The
SDRAM product is a significant component of the Company’s DRAM
product line. If the Company were to be enjoined from producing
SDRAM and DDR DRAM products, the Company’s financial position

and results of operations would be materially and adversely affected,
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as the Company would have to discontinue the SDRAM and DDR
DRAM product lines or enter into a licensing arrangement with
Rambus, which could require the payment of substantial licensing
fees. The affected products currently constitute substantially all of
the products of the Memory Products segment. On May 4, 2001, and
May 9, 2001, the Federal District Court for the Eastemn District of
Virginia dismissed all of Rambus’ patent infringement claims against
the Company. In addition, the court found that Rambus committed
fraud by its conduct in the standard setting organization of JEDEC and
awarded damages to Infineon. Should Rambus appeal, the Company
cannot conclude as to the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome on
appeal or whether the Company will ultimately prevail in the matter.

The initial hearings on the German action commenced in May 2001.
In its brief on February 9, 2001, Rambus amended its initial injunctive
relief complaint to include a request for payment of damages for
alleged infringement of the patents. No amount of damages have vet
been declared. The initial hearing took place on May 18, 2001, at
which time the Court noted the decisions of the parallel infringement
suit in the United States. The Court is currently in the process of
appointing a technical expert to assist in deciding upon the infringe-
ment issue. The Company believes that it has meritoricus defenses
and intends to vigorously defend itself in this matter.

In October 1999, Deutsche Telekom AG (“DT7) notified the Company
of a potential contractual warranty claim in respect of chips supplied
by the Company for DT calling cards. The claim relates to damages
allegedly suffered by DT as a result of such cards being fraudulently
reloaded by third parties. DT originally alleged damages of approxi-
mately € 90,000 as a result of these activities, reflecting damages suf-
fered and the cost of remedial measures, and sought compensation
from both Siemens and the Company. In September 2001, however,
DT brought an action in court against Siemens alone, and increased
the alleged amount of damages to approximatelv € 125.000. Should
Siemens be found liable, the Company could be responsible for pay-
ments to Siemens in connection with certain indemnifications provided
to Siemens at the Formation. The Company has investigated the DT
claim and believes that it is without merit. The Company does not
anticipate that a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial
position, results of operations or cash flows will result in connection

with the DT claim.

The Company is subject to various other lawsuits, claims and proceed-
ings related to products, patents, and other matters incidental to its
businesses. Liabilities including accruals for significant litigation costs
related to such matters are recorded when it is probable that a liability
has been incurred and the amount of the assessment and/or remediation
can be reasonably estimated. Based upon information presently known
to management, the Company does not believe that the ultimate
resolution of such other pending matters will have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s financial position, although the final reso-
lution of such matters could have a material effect on the Company’s
results of operations or cash flows in the year of settlement.

In connection with the Formation, Siemens retained certain facilities
located in the United States and certain related environmental liabil-
ities. Businesses contributed to the Company by Siemens have con-
ducted operations at certain of these facilities and, under applicable
law, could be required to contribute to the environmental remedia-
tion of these facilities despite their retention by Siemens. Siemens has
provided guarantees to certain third parties and governmental agen-
cies, and all involved parties have recognized Siemens as the respon-
sible party for all applicable sites. No assessments have been made of
the extent of environmental remediation, if any, that could be re-
quired, and no claims have been made against the Company in this



regard. The Company believes.its potential exposure, if any, to liability
for remediating the U.S. facilities retained by Siemens is therefore low.

Since 1994, Infineon has received an aggregate of approximately

€ 498,203 in government grants and subsidies related to the construction
and financing of certain of its production facilities. These amounts
are recognized based on the attainment of specified milestone criteria,
and where the fulfillment of the total project requirements is reasonably
assured through planned and committed spending levels, employment
and other factors. The Company is committed to meeting these re-
quirements; nevertheless, should the total project requirements not
be met, a portion of these subsidies could be refundable.

Infineon has entered into capacity reservation agreements with certain
silicon foundries for the manufacturing and testing of semiconductor
products. These agreements generally have a standard length of one
to two years and are renewable. Under the terms of these agreements,
Infineon has agreed to purchase certain minimum quantities at speci-
fied prices. Additionally, under product purchase agreements with
ProMOS and ALTIS, Infineon has agreed to buy 38 percent (on a
net basis) and 50 percent of their respective total annual production
cutput based, in part, on market prices. With respect to PreMOS, the
agreed capacity refers to substantially all production based on the
Company’s licensed technology, net of the portion sold to MVI. Upon
the completion of the installation of 300mm manufacturing equipment
at ProMOS, Infineon’s commitment to purchase production output
will be increased to 48 percent. Purchases under these agreements
are recorded as incurred in the normal course of business. The Com-
pany assesses its anticipated purchase requirements on a regular basis
to meet customer demand for its products. An assessment of losses
under these agreements is made on a regular basis in the event that
either budgeted purchase quantities fall below the specified quantities
or market prices for these products fall below the specified prices.

In March 2000, the Company entered intc a commercial agreement
and a memory supply agreement with Intel. These agreements require
the commissioning of the Company’s new 300mm facility by April 1,
2003, and the availability of capacity and product to Intel. If the new
facility is not commissioned by that date, Intel would be entitled to a
portion of the Company’s then existing production capacity and mone-
tary damages of $ 5C million if the Company’s average share price fell
below a stipulated value after April 1, 2003. The facility is currently
scheduled to be commissioned in the first half of calendar year 2002.

As a result of the Formation, the Company has agreed to indemnify
Siemens against any losses relating to certain guarantees of financing
arrangements that were transferred to the Company. At September 30,
2001, these arrangements include:

ms u guarantee of a letter of credit in the amount of € 313,400 issued
to cover contingent liabilities to repay government grants in re-
spect of the Dresden facility;

ws a guarantee of indebtedness of ProMOS in the amount of $ 145
million which indebtness contains a cross-default provision to
another credit agreement.

On September 7, 2001, ALTIS executed a bridge loan facility with a
financial institution in the amount of € 450,000 with a maturity date

of December 28, 2001, of which € 370,000 was outstanding at Septem-
ber 30, 2001. ALTIS is in negotiations with a syndicate of financial
institutions to refinance the bridge facility prior to its maturity date.
Pursuant to this facility, the shareholders of ALTIS, IBM and Infineon,
have guaranteed the repayment of any amounts outstanding under
the bridge facility if a refinancing is not completed by December 28,

(Eura in thousands, except where otherwise stated}
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2001. The Company’s share of this guaranty was € 185,000 as of Sep-
tember 30, 2001. There can be no assurances that the negotiations to
refinance the bridge facility will be successful.

In connection with the formation of the UMCi joint venture, the
Company has provided UMC with an irrevocable proxy to vote one-
half of its ownership interest on specified governance and operational
matters, and agreed to contribute, in periods subsequent to Septem-
ber 30, 2001, specified technology and aggregate cash capital contri-
butions of approximately $ 481 million. Additionally, the Company
has entered into a foundry capacity agreement with the UMCi joint
venture which provides for certain minimum purchase volume com-
mitments.

Total rental expenses under operating leases amounted to € 128,692,
€ 131,348 and € 181,302 for the years ended September 30 1999, 2000,
and 2001, respectively. Future minimum lease payments under non-
cancelable operating lease agreements with initial or remaining terms
in excess of one year at September 30, 2001 are as follows: 2002,

€ 83,976; 2003, € 72,794; 2004, € 49,634; 2005, € 46,612; 2006,

€ 20,987, and € 94,036 for the remaining years.

(31) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On November 28, 2001, the European Commission announced an
inquiry into whether proposed subsidies (aggregating € 219,000)
applied for, but not yet received, by the Company with the Federal
Republic of Germany and another governmental entity relating to
the expansion of the Dresden manufacturing facility are in accordance
with European Union directives. The Company recognizes such sub-
sidies only when received. The Company believes that its application
for such subsidies is appropriate and that the ultimate resolution

of the inquiry will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations.

Through November 29, 2001, the Company received commitment let-
ters and agreed on documentation for a € 450,000 syndicated credit
facility relating to the expansion of the Dresden manufacturing facility.
The credit facility is supported by a partial guarantee of the Federal
Republic of Germany and another governmental entity. The Company
does not believe that this guarantee will be impacted by the aforemen-
tioned European Commission inquiry. The proceeds of the credit facility
are to be utilized to fund advances previously made by the Company to
construct a new 300mm manufacturing facility at Dresden. The credit
facility contains specified financial covenants, provides for annual pay-
ments of interest and matures on September 30, 2005. The credit facility
is subject to customary closing procedures.

On November 29, 200!, the Company received commitment letters for
€ 580,000 from a syndicate of financial institutions participating in the
Company's existing revolving credit facility (see note 17), authorizing
an amendment to the facility. The amendment extends the maturity
date of the short-term tranche of the facility (previously € 354,000) from
its original maturity date of March 2002 to November 2002. Additio-
nally, the amendment provides for revised financial covenants. The
amendment is subject to execution of documentation satisfactory to the
financial institutions and customary closing procedures. The Company
is further negotiating with the remaining financial institutions in the
existing syndicate, and, if necessary, additional financial institutions,
for commitments to participate in the syndicated facility to increase
the tctal amount of the facility to its original amount of € 750,000.
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(32) OPERATING SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

Infineon has reported its operating segment and geographic informa-
tion in accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosure about Segments
of an Enterprise and Related Information”.

Infineon operates primarily in five major operating segments, four of
which are application focused: Automotive and Industrial, Wireline
Communications, Wireless Communications, and Security and Chip
Card ICs, and one of which is product focused: Memory Products.
Further, certain of Infineon’s remaining activities for product lines
sold as well as new business activities also meet the SFAS No. 131
definition of an operating segment, but do not meet the requirements
of a reportable segment as specified in SFAS No. 131. Accordingly,
these segments are combined and disclosed in the “Other Operating
Segments” category pursuant to SFAS No. 131,

Prior to the 2001 financial year, the Security and Chip Card ICs segment
did not meet the requirements of a reportable segment. For the 2001
financial year, the Security and Chip Card ICs segment is identified
as a reportable segment and, due to its continuing significance, is re-
porled separately pursuant to the requirements of SFAS No. 131, with
prict period segment information restated for comparative purposes.

The Company reorganized certain of its business units during the
2001 financial year to better reflect its customer and market profiles.
Effective October 1, 2000, the Other Operating Segment includes the
results of certain activities previously reported under Corporate and
Reconciliation, the Image & Video and the Infrared Components Busi-
nesses (both previously reported under Wireline Communications) as
well as the gains on their disposals. The segment results for the 1999 and
- 2000 financial years have been reclassified to be consistent with the
reporting structure and presentation of the 2001 financial year, and to
facilitate analysis of current and future operating segment information.

Each of these segments has a segment manager reporting directly to
the Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer, who have
been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (*CODM").
The CODM makes decisions about resources to be allocated to the
segments and assesses their performance using revenues and earnings
before interest, minority interests and taxes. Infineon does not iden-
tif or allocate assets to the operating segments nor does the CODM
evaluate the segments on these criteria on a regular basis, except that
the CODM is provided information regarding certain inventories on
an operating segment basis.

The accounting policies of the segments are substantially the same
as described in the summary of significant accounting policies (see
note 2). As stated above, fixed assets are not identified by individual
operating segments for management reporting purposes on a regular
basis and accordingly are not allocated to the operating segments.
Infineon does, however, allocate depreciation expense to the operating
segments based on production volume and product mix using stand-
ard costs in order to obtain a measure of earnings before interest and
taxes on a segment basis.

Information with respect to Infineon’s operating segments follows:
Automotive and Industrial

The Automotive and Industrial segment designs, develops, manufac-
tures and markets semiconductors and complete systems solutions for

use in automotive and industrial applications.

Wireline Communications
The Wireline Communications segment designs, develops and markets
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semiconductors and complete systems for use in a wide variety of
narrowband and broadband communication applications.

Wireless Communications

The Wireless Communications segment designs, develops and markets
semiconductors and complete systems solutions for a range of wireless
applications, including cellular telephone systems, cordless telephone
systemn and devices used in connection with the “GPS” global position-
ing system.

Memory Products

The Memory Products segment designs, develops and manufactures
semiconductor memory products with various.packaging and configu-
ration options, architectures and performance characteristics for use
in standard memory applications.

Security and Chip Card ICs

The Security and Chip Card ICs segment develops, manufactures and
markets security controllers, security memories and other semicon-
ductors and system solutions for use in applications requiring special
security features such as banking, telecommunications, access con-
trol, identification and other securily-sensitive applications.

Other Operating Segments

Certain remaining activities for product lines sold as well as new
business activities are included in the Other Operating Segments.
In August 2001, the company sold its interest in Osram Opto to
Osram (see note 4).

The following tables present selected segment data for the years
ended September 30, 1999, 2000 and 200!}:

19]99 20]00 20101
Net sales . .
Automotive and Industrial e ,‘665,405,i
Wireline Communications ’ "'498‘,536'
Wireless Communications 864,993
Memory Products | 1,405,885 ¢
Security and Chip Card ICs 7 '276,408 374
Other Operating Segments 446,845 -0

Corporate and Reconciliation

79,2218

4,337,293 1:7,282,59%

Total

1999

Earnings (loss) before interest,
minority interests and taxes

T T

L 22,7780

Automnotive and Industrial

Wireline Communications ‘21,643

Wireless Communications ‘181,897'
Memory Products ‘(237,854) 133
Security and Chip Card ICs 24,237 H9S
Other Operating Segments 33,928

Corporate and Reconciliation

59,670y % (1

Total

L A(13,041) 16695




1999 2000 2001
T T T

Depreciation and Amortization

Automotive and Industrial 40100,469 -

Wireline Communications

3550

Wireless Communications

Memory Products

Security and Chip Card ICs

Other Operating Segments

Corporate and Reconciliation

Total

573,069,

1999 2000 2001
T T

Equity in eamings of associated
companies

Automotive and Industrial

Wireline Communications

Wireless Communications i

Memory Products

Security and Chip Card ICs

Other operating Segments

7.786

[Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements]

In 2001, the Company revised its method of reporting excess capacity
costs for segment reporting purposes. Previously, all excess capacity
costs, if any, were allocated to the segments based on the variance
between originally forecasted purchases and actual purchases. The
Company has revised the method to allocate excess capacity costs based
on a foundry model, whereby such allocations are reduced based upon
the lead time of order cancellation or modification. Any unabsorbed
excess capacity costs will be included in Corporate and Reconciliation.
This change did not affect prior periods. The Company believes that
this method better reflects the responsibilities of the segment manage-
ment and is consistent with the practices of independent foundries,
and more appropriately reflects the segment operating results.

Certain items are included in Corporate and Reconciliation and are
not allocated to the segments. These include corporate headquarters’
cost, certain incubator and early stage technology investment costs,
non-recurring gains, and specific strategic technology initiatives.
Additionally, legal costs associated with intellectual property are recog-
nized by the segments when paid, which can differ from the period
originally recognized by Corporate and Reconciliation. For the year
ended September 30, 2001, Corporate and Reconciliation includes
unallocated excess capacity costs of € 27,001, restructuring charges
of € 116,505, corporate information technology development costs
and charges of € 71,200.

The following is a summary of operations by geographic area for 1999,
2000 and 2001:

1999 2000 2001
T T

Corporate and Reconciliation S 2;515"’: 2 !
Total 33763 0 30 Net sales o RSP
- SRR Germany 1,241,375
Other Europe © 1,203,106
1999 2000 2001 T o B
T T T USA 826;824 .
Inventories — Asia/Pacific - '899,320;
Automotive and Industrial 82,625 Other : 65,668 :
Wireline Communications 16,599 54,936 Total - 4,237,293 ," 5
Wireless Communications 78,075 . S
Memory Products 303,502 1999
Secuity and Chip Card IC 12,782 % ‘

LTy s Lp A o Long-lived assets ) NI
Other Operating Segments - 18,629 = Germany ‘ 1,686‘,5‘14 s
Corporate and Reconciliation 164,760 ; Other Europe 651188 T
Total 676,972 I g
—= USA 1031691 L3

Asia/Pacific < 128,867 3
Due to the specific application and product-based nature of the Other T 46100
operating segments, there are no sales transactions between operating — - ;
segments. Accordingly, net sales by operating segment represents Total : 3»544}61 L

sales to external customers.

Raw material and work-in-process of the common logic production
front-end facilities, and work-in-process of the common back-end
facilities are not under the control or responsibility of any of the
operating segment managers, but rather of the site management. The
site management is responsible for the execution of the production
schedule, volume, and units. Accordingly, this inventory is not atiributed
to any operating segment, but is included in the Corporate and
Reconciliation column. Only raw material of the back-end facilities
(“chip stock”) and finished goods are attributable to the operating
segments and included in the segment information reported to the

CODM.

(Euro in thousands, except where otherwise stated)

Revenues from external customers are based on the customers’ billing
location. Accordingly, there are no sales transactions between operating
segments. Long-lived assets are those assets located in each geographic
area,

Except for sales to Siemens, which are discussed in note 18, no single
customer accounted for more than 10 percent of Infineon’s sales
during the years ended September 30, 1999, 2000 and 2001. Sales to
Siemens are made primarily by the Wireline Communications and
Wireless Communications segments.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO THE U.S. GAAP CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO HGB SECTION 292A

SIGNIFICANT DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GERMAN GAAP AND U.S. GAAP

Introduction

Infineon Technologies AG, as a German holding company, is subject
to the German Commercial Code (“Handelsgesetzbuch”, or “HGB"),
which principally requires the Company to prepare consolidated
financial statements in accordance with the HGB accounting principles
and regulations (“German GAAP”). Pursuant to HGB Section 292a,
the Company is exempt from this requirement, if consolidated finan-
cial statements are prepared and issued in accordance with a bedy of
internationally accepted accounting principles (such as U.S. GAAP).
Accordingly, the Company has prepared its consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the U.S. GAAP. The following is a de-
scription of the significant differences between Gerrnan GAAP and
U.S. GAAP.

Fundamental Differences

The emphasis of U.S. GAAP is to provide all relevant information to
investors in urder to facilitate future investment decisions. Additionally,
asan U.S. listed entity, the Company must adhere to certain account-
ing and reporting requirements as prescribed by the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission. The primary difference between Ger-
man GAAP and U.S. GAAP is that they are based on different con-
cepts. German GAAP is oriented towards the protection of creditors
and an emphasis on the prudence concept.

Basis of Presentation of Financial Statements

Under U.S. GAAP, the financial statenents prior to the legal formation
of the Company reflect the combined historical financial statements
of all semiconductor businesses transferred from Siemens to Infineon
assuming that Infineon has existed in its current form as a separate
legal entity for all periods presented prior to its legal formation. This
includes the recognition of certain revenues and expenses related to
assets, liabilities and operations, including North Tyneside, which
were not contributed to Infineon by Siemens. Under German GAAP,
consolidated financial statements would be presented on a pro forma
basis and only include those entities directly or indirectly controlled
by the reporting entity.

Financial Statement Presentation

The balance sheet presentation under U.S. GAAP is based on the
planned realization of assets and the maturity of liabilities in the normal
course of business. The balance sheet presentation under German
GAAP is principally defined in HGB section 266, and is based on enter-
prise’s planned holding time for the respective asset, hability or
equity.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue recognition is generally the same under German and U.S.
GAAP. whereby revenue is recognized when realized and earned.
Differences in the timing of recognition can exist in transactions when
the Company retains on-going financial, operational or performance
commitments or the contractual amounts are not objectively verifiable.

Marketable Securities

Under German GAAP, marketable debt and equity securities are
valued at the lower of acquisition cost or fair market value as of the
balance sheet date. Under U.S. GAAP, the Company’s marketable
securities are classified as available for sale and valued at fair market
value as of the balance sheet date. Unrealized gains and losses are
reported in other comprehensive income net of deferred taxes.
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Inventories

Inventory valuation is based on manufacturing costs under both
German and U.S. GAAP. Manufacturing costs under U.S. GAAP
are defined as production costs on a full absorption basis, whereby
manufacturing overhead is included together with material and other
direct manufacturing costs. Under German GAAP, certain overhead
costs can be excluded from the valuation of inventory.

Goodwill

Under U.S. GAAP, pursuant to SFAS No. 141, “Business Combina-
tions”, in connection with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and other Intan-
gible Assets”, goodwill arising from business combinations accounted
for as a purchase after June 30, 2001, is no longer amortized. Under
German GAAP, such goodwill is amortized over its estimated useful

life.

In-process Research and Development

Under German GAAP, in-process research and development projects
acquired in a business combination are not specifically identified
but rather included as part of goodwill. Under U.S. GAAP, acquired
it-process research and development is specifically identified, valued,
and charged to expense zt the date of acquisition.

Financial Instruments

Under German GAAP, derivative financial instruments are not record-
ed on the balance sheet. Unrealized gains are not recognized and
unrealized losses are accrued. Under U.S. GAAP, derivative financial
instruments are recorded on the balance sheet at their fair value.
Changes in fair value are recorded in current earnings or other com-
prehensive income, depending on whether the derivative financial
instrument is designated as part of a hedge transaction and the type of
hedge transaction.

Deferred Taxes

The main difference in accounting for deferred taxes relates to the
fact that under German GAAP deferred tax assets are not recorded for
net operating losses. Under U.S. GAAP, deferred tax assets are recorded
for net operating losses and a valuation allowance is established when
it is deemed “more likely than not” that the deferred tax asset will not
be realized.

Pension Provisions and Similar Obligations .

Under U.S. GAAP, pension obligations are recognized based on the
projected benefit obligation using the projected unit credit method.
This is also permitted under HGB. Under U.S. GAAP, establishing
and funding a trust, independent of the company, results in a corres-
ponding reduction in pension obligations from the balance sheet.
Under German GAAP, pension assets and obligations are recorded
gross on the balance sheet until such obligations are legally settled.

Stock-based Compensation

Under German GAAP, the company recognizes as expense the differ-
ence between the fair market value of the Infineon shares and the
exercise price of the stock options, if the fair market value is higher.
Under U.S. GAAP, the company accounts for stock-based compen-
sation on the intrinsic value method pursuant to APB Opinion 25
which does not result in a compensation charge if the fair market
value of the stock does not exceed the exercise price of the option on
the measurement date.

Equity Offering Costs

Under German GAAP, direct costs incurred in connection with equity
offerings are expensed, while under U.S. GAAP such costs are charged
to additional paid-in capital.



Accrued Liabilities

Under German GAAP, certain costs can be accrued for anticipated
future events in certain circumstances. Under U.S. GAAP, recognition
of an accrued liability represents an existing liability to third parties or
must meet very specific recognition criteria.

Foreign Currency Translation

Under German GAAP, foreign currency denominated assets and
liabilities are recorded at spot rate on the transaction date, with only
unrealized losses reflected in income at the balance sheet date.
Under U.S. GAAP, foreign currency denominated assets and liabili-
ties are translated at the spot rate at the balance sheet date, with both
unrealized gains and losses reflected in income.

Government Subsidies

Under German GAAP, non-taxable investment subsidies and interest
subsidies can he recognized in income when received. Under U.S.
GAAP, these amounts are deferred and recognized in income during
the periods in which the related expense is incurred.

Equity Method Accounting

Urder German GAAPD, consolidated financial stalements could include
the equity in eamings of Associated Companies based on the local
accounting principles. Under U.S. GAAP equity in earnings is deter-
mined pursuant to 11.S. GAAP

Gain on Associated Company Share Issuance

Under German GAAP, a capital increase of an Associated Company
which increases the proportional valuation of the Company’s invest-
ment is reflected in income. Under U.S. GAAP and specific SEC
regulations, income recognition is subject to additional criteria which, if
not met, requires recognition as an adjustment to shareholders’ equity.

Application of Exception Regulations

Pursuant to HGB section 264a, partnerships where the unlimited
liability is not held by a natural person or another partnership with
a natural person as the unlimited liability partner are required to
prepare financial statements similar to a limited liability corporation.
Pursuant to HGB section 264b, such partnerships are exempt from
preparing separate financial statements if they are included in the
consolidated financial statements of the holding company, and
such consolidated financial statements are registered with the trade
register of the respective partnership. ’

Infineon utilizes the exemption in respect of the following companies:

w== COMNEON GmbH & Co. OHG, Nuremberg
== Intineon Technologies Dresden GmbH & Co. OHG, Dresden
==z Infineon Technologies SC 300 GmbH & Co. KG, Dresden
am Ingentix GmbH & Co. KG, Munich
== EUPEC Europiische Gesellschaft fiir Leistungshalbleiter
mbH & Co. KG, Warstein-Belecke
e [nfineon Technologies Immobilien Regensburg GmbH & Co. KG

Infineon Ventures GmbH, Munich, has entered into a profit-transfer
agreement with Infineon Technologies AG and also utilizes the
exemption pursuant to HGB section 264 par 3.

[Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements]
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Board of Directors*

The remuneration of the Supervisory Board for the year ended Sep-
tember 30, 2001 was 463,000 Euro. In addition, the members of the
Supervisory Board receive 1,500 share appreciation rights each. The
total remuneration of the Management Board for the year ended Sep-
tember 30, 2001 consists of fixed salary of 1,164,000 Euro and 345,000
stock options granted in connection with the LTI 1999 Plan. The fair
value of each stock option and stock appreciation right at their grant
date was 25.20 Euro. The provision for variable bonus of the Manage-
ment Board at September 30, 2000 was not fully utilized and an
amount of 512,000 Euro was released in the current financial year.

The members of the Management and Supervisory Boards of Infineon
Technologies AG are listed below:

(Including membership of the Management Board and other comp-
arable governing bodies during the year ended September 30, 2001.)

MANAGEMENT BOARD INFINEON TECHNOLOGIES AG

Dr. Ulrich Schumacher
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

External positions

Member of Supervisory Board

— Deutsche Bahn AG, Berlin

Company positions

Chairman of Boards of Directors

— Infineon Technologies Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd., Singapore

- Infineon Technologies Japan K K., Tokyo, Japan

— Infineon Technologies North America Corp., Wilmington,
Delaware, USA

Chairman of Supervisory Board

- Infineon Technologies Austria AG, Villach, Austria

Peter Bauer
Executive Vice President and Chief Sales and Marketing Officer

External positions

Member of Supervisory Board

— Siemens VDO Automotive AG, Munich

Company positions

Deputy Chairman of Board of Directors

— Infineon Technologies Japan K.K., Tokyo, Japan

Member of Boards of Directors

~ Infineon Technologies Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd., Sirgapore

~ Infineon Technologies North America Corp., Wilmington,
Delaware, USA

- Infineon Technologies Savan Lid., Netanya, Israel

- Infineon Technologies U.K. Ltd., Bracknell, Great Britain

" ® Actual figures.
** until sale of Infineon’s interest to Osram in August 2001
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Peter J. Fischt
Executive Vice .President and Chief Financial Officer

Company positions

Member of Boards of Directors

- Infineon Technologies Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd., Singapore

- Infineon Technologies Japan K.K., Tokyo, japan

- Infineon Technologies North America Corp., Wilmington,
Delaware, USA

Member of Supervisory Board

- Infineon Technologies Austria AG, Villach, Austria

Member of Board of Shareholders’ Representatives

- Osram Opto Semiconductors GmbH & Co. OHG,
Regensburg**

Dr. Sénke Mehrgardt
Executive Vice President and Chief Technology Officer

External positions

Member of Supervisory Boards

— Loewe AG, Kronach

- Loewe Opta GmbH, Kronach

Company positions.

Chairman of Board of Shareholders’ Representatives
- Infineon Technologies Orion GmbH, Munich

Dr. Andreas von Zitzewitz
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer

External position

Member of Supervisory Board

— Steag Hamatech AG, Sternenfels

Company positions

Member of Boards of Directors

— Infineon Technologies Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd., Singapore

- Infineon Technologies — Fabrica de Semicondutores Portugal S.A,,
Vila do Conde, Portugal

- Infineon Technologies Richmond Limited Partnership,
Wilmington, Delaware, USA

- ProMOS Technologies Inc., Hsinchu, Taiwan

Chairman of Shareholders’ Representatives

~ Infineon Technologies Dresden GmbH & Co. OHG, Dresden

- EUPEC GmbH & Co. KG, Warstein-Belecke

President (representing Infineon Technologies AG)

— Infineon Technologies France S.A.S, Saint-Denis, France

- Infineon Technologies Holding France S.A.S., Saint-Denis, France



SUPERVISORY BOARD INFINEON TECHNOLOGIES AG

Dr. Eng. h.c. Volker Jung1.2.3

Chairman

Age: 62, Term expires: 2005

Member of the Management Board of Siemens AG

Additional positions

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of EPCOS AG, Munich

Member of the Supervisory Boards of:

- Direkt Anlage Bank AG. Munich

— MAN AG, Munich

—~ Messe Miinchen GmbH, Munich

Company positions

~ Chairman of the Board of Administration of Siemens A.E.,
Athens, Greece

~ Deputy Chairman of the Board of Administration of Siemens Litd.,
Johannesburg, South Africa

~ Member of the Board of Siemens Information and Communication
Networks Inc., Boca Raton, Florida, USA

Alfred Eibl* 1. 2.3

Deputy Chairman

Age: 52, Term expires: 2004**

Member of the Works Council Munich Balan-/St.-Martin-Strasse .

Dr. h.c. Martin Kohthaussent

Deputy Chairman

Age: 65, Term expires: 2005

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of Commerzbank AG
Additional pcsitions

Member of the Supervisory Boards of:

— Bayer AG, Leverkusen

- Heraeus Holding GmbH, Hanau

- HOCHTIEF AG, Essen

- KarstadtQuelle AG, Essen

- Linde AG, Wiesbaden

- Schering AG, Berlin

— ThyssenKrupp AG, Dusseldorf

- Verlagsgruppe Georg von Holtzbrinck GmbH, Stuttgart

Ender Beyhan*

Age: 33, Term expires: 2004**

Member of the Central Works Council
Member of the Works Council, Munich-Perlach

[Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements])

Johann Dechant*
Age: 36, Term expires: 2004**
Member of the Works Council, Regensburg West

Dr. Joachim. Faber

Age: 51, Term expires: 2005

Member of the Management Board of Allianz AG
Additional positions

Member of the Supervisory Boards of:

- Berlinwasser Holding AG, Berlin

— Societa Metallurgica Italiana S.p.A., Florence, ltaly
Company positions

Chairman of the Supervisory Boards of:

— Allianz Asset Management GmbH, Munich

- Allianz Bauspar AG, Munich

— Allianz Vermégens-Bank AG, Augsburg

Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board of
Universal-Leasing-GmbH, Augsburg

Member of the Supervisory Board of Allianz Capital
Partwers GmbH, Munich

Deputy Chairman of the Board of Administration of Allianz Risk
Transfer, Zurich, Switzerland

Member of the Roards of Administration of

- IRC International Reinsurance Company S.A., Luxembourg
~ RASBANK S.p.A., Milan, Italy

Heinz Hawreliuk*

Age: 54, Term expires: 2004**

Head of the Company Codetermination Department of IG Metall
Additional positions

Member of the Supervisory Boards of:

- Astrium GmbH, Ottobrunn

~ DaimlerChrysler Aerospace AG, Munich

- DaimlerChrysler Luft- und Raumfahrt Holding AG, Munich

- Eurocopter Deutschland GmbH, Donauwérth

- Siemens AG, Berlin and Munich

Klaus Luschtinetz*
Age: 58, Term expires; 2004**
Chairman of the Central Works Council
Chairman of the Works Council, Munich Balan-/St.-Martin-Strasse
Additional positions
~ Member of the Board of Administration of Siemens
Employees Health Insurance, Munich

Member of the Executive Committee

Member of the Mediation Committee

Member of the Investment and Finance Committee

Mr. Ruth was legally appointed to replace Stefan Radloff upon his resignation in

early 2001

Employee representative

** Unless replaced earlier by another member elected in an election held by the employees

PO,
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Heinz-Joachim Neubuerger 2.3

Age: 48, Term expires: 2005

Member of the Management Board of Siemens AG

Additional positions

Member of the Supervisory Boards of:

- Allianz Versicherungs-AG, Munich

- Bayerische Bérse AG, Munich

- HVB Real Estate Bank AG, Munich

Member of the Board of Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc., New York, USA
Vice Chairman of the Advisory Board of Minchener Handelsverein
Holding GmbH & Co. KG, Munich

Company positions

Chairman of the Supervisory Boards of:

- Atecs Mannesmann AG, Dusseldorf

~ Mannesmann Demag Krauss-Maffei AG, Munich

- Siemens Kapitalanlagegesellschaft mbH, Munich

- TELA Versicherungs AG, Munich

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of Siemens Corporation,
New York, USA

Member of the Board of Siemens Ltd. China (SLC), Beijing, China
Chairman of the Advisory Board of Siemens Real Estate

GwibH & Co. 6HG, Munich

Managing Director of Siemens Western Finance N.V., Willemstad,
Curagao

Stefan Radloff* 4

(until january 31, 2001)

Age: 52

Senior Vice President, Accounting and Financial Reporting;
Representative of senior management

- Dr. Eberhard Rauch

Age: 53, Term expires: 2005

Member of the Management Board of HypoVereinsbank AG
Additional positions

Chairman of the Supervisory Boards of:

- INVEOS AG, Hamburg

- Kennametal Hertel AG, Fiirth

Member of the Supervisory Boards of:

- ADA-HAS IT Management AG, Willich

- Bionorica Arzneimittel AG, Neumarkt

- Koenig & Bauer AG, Wiirzburg

Member of the Board of Directors of Clearstream International S.A.,
Luxembourg

Company positions

Chairman of the Supervisory Boards of:

- DAB bank AG, Munich

- Norisbank AG, Nuremberg

- PlanetHome AG, Munich

Member of the Supervisory Boards of:

- Bank Austria AG, Vienna, Austria

— Vereinsbank Victoria Bauspar AG, Munich
Chairman of the Board of Administration of

HVB Informations-Verarbeitungs-GmbH, Munich
Member of the Board of Administration of Adfincon GmbH
Hamburg

)
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Univ.-Prof, Dr.-Ing. ingolf Ruge

Age: 66, Term expires: 2005

Professor at the Technical University Munich

Additional positions

Chairman of the Supervisory Board of WorkX AG, Hofolding
Member of the Supervisory Boards of:

- Schneider Electronics AG, Tiirkheim

— Schneider Laser Technologies AG, Gera

- Schneider Technologies AG, Tiirtkheim

Michael Ruth* 4

(since February 2, 2001)

Age: 41, Term expires: 2004**

Vice President, Business Adininistration, Wireless Solutions;
Representative of senior management

Gerd Schmidt* 2

Age: 47, Term expires: 2004**

Deputy Chairman of the Central Works Council
Chairman of the Works Council, Regensburg West

Sibylle Wankel*

Age: 37, Term expires: 2004**

District Secretary of IG Metall, Bavaria
Additional positions

Member of the Supervisory Boards of:

~ Vaillant GmbH, Remscheid

— ZEPPELIN GmbH, Garching near Munich

Prof. Dr. Claus Weyrich

Age: 57, Term expires: 2005

Member of the Management Board of Siemens AG
Additional positions

Member of the Supervisory Board of Heraeus Holding GmbH,
Hanau

Company positions

Chairman of the Board of Siemens Corporate Research,
Princeton, NJ, USA

Dr. Ing. Klaus Wucherer

Age: 57, Term expires: 2005

Member of the Management Board of Siemens AG
Additional positions

Member of the Supervisory Board of Deutsche Messe AG, Hanover
Company positions

Member of the Supervisory Board of BSH Bosch und
Siemens Hausgerite GmbH, Munich

Chairman of the Boards of Administration of:

~ Siemens Ltd., Peking, China

- Siemens E&A, Atlanta, GA, USA

- Siemens K.K,, Tokyo, Japan

- Yaskawa Siemens Automation & Drives/YSAD, Tokyo, Japan
Member of the Boards of Administration of:

- Eviop-Tempo, Athens, Greece

- Siemens Building Technologies, Zurich, Switzerland

- Siemens Ltd., Mumbai, India

Member of the Executive Committee

Member of the Mediation Committee

Member of the Investment and Finance Committee

Mr. Ruth was legally appointed to replace Stefan Radloff upon his resignation in

early 2001

Employee representative

** Uniess replaced earlier by another member elected in an election held by the employees

PO,

.



SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2001

Name and Location of Company

EUPEC Europiische Gesellschaft fiir Leistungshalbleiter
mbH & Co. KG, Warstein-Belecke, Germany

Infineon Technologies Dresden
GmbH & Co. OHG, Dresden, Germany

Infineon Technologies SC 300
GmbH & Co. KG, Dresden, Germany

Infineon Technologies Austria AG,
Villach, Austria

Infineon Technologies — Fabrico de Semiconductores,
Portugal S.A., Vila do Conde, Portugal

Infineon Technologies France SAS.,
Saint-Denis, France

Infineon Technologies Holding B.V.,,
Rctterdam, The Netherlands

Infineon Technologies Trutnov s.r.o.,
Trutnov, Czech Republic

Infineon Technologies U.K. Ltd., Bracknell, UK.

Infineon Technologies Holding North America Inc.,
Wilmington, Delaware, USA

Infineon Technologies North America Corp.,
Wilmington, Delaware, USA

Infineon Technologies Richmond LP,
Richmond, Virginia, USA

Infineon Technologies Asia Pacific Pte. Ltd., Singapore

Infineon Technologies (Integrated Circuit) Sdn. Bhd.,
Malacca, Malaysia

Infineon Technologies Japan K.K., Tokio, Japan

Infineon Technologies (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.,
Malacca, Malaysia

ALTIS Semiconductor S.N.C, Essonnes, France

ProMOS Techuologies Inc., Hsinchu, Taiwan

100%

100 %

87%

100 %

100 %

100 %

100 %

100 %

100%

160 %

100 %

100 %

100 %

100 %

100%

100%

50.1%

325%

An extended list of Subsidiaries and Associated Companies is on
file at the Commercial Register of Munich, Germany, under the

number HRB 126 492.

[Significant Subsidiaries and Associated Companies]
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

INFINEON TECHNOLOGIES AG

Established April 1, 1999
Headquarters St.-Martin-Str. 53, 81669 Munich,
Germany

Phone: +4989 234-0

October lst to September 30th
KPMGQG Deutsche
Treuhand-Gesellschaft AG
Wirtschaftspriifungsgeselischaft
Berlin and Frankfurt am Main

Financial Year
independent Auditors

Stock Listing

On March 13, 2000, our company successfully completed its initial
public offering of its securities in Germany and in the United
States. Since then, Infineon shares have been officially listed on
the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (ticker symbol: IFX, German securi-
ties code number 623100) and is traded in Germany via Xetra and
on the stock exchanges in Berlin, Bremen, Dusseldorf, Frankfurt,
Hamburg, Hanover, Munich, and Stuttgart. Options on the share
trade on the German-Swiss options exchange Eurex and on other
exchanges. The Infineon share is also traded on the New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE) under the ticker symbol “IFX” in the form of
American Depositary Shares (ADSs) - with each ADS representing
one share. The depositary for the ADSs is Morgan Guaranty
Trust Company (60 Wall Street, NY 10260 New York, USA). On
September 30, 2001, there were a total of 693,025,144 shares out-
standing.

Contact for Investors and Analysts

Email Irvestor.Relations@infineon.com
Phone/Fax +49(0)89234-26655/-7184 84

Media Contact
Email
Phone/Fax

Media.Relations@infineon.com
+49(0)89234-28480/-28482

Visit us on the Web at  www.infineon.com

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2002*

Monday or Tuesday, January 21/22

Publication of first quarter 2002 results

Tuesday, January 22

2002 Shareholders” Annual General Meeting 10 am. CET
in Munich, Olympiahalle (Olympic Hall)

Tuesday, April 23

Publication of second quarter 2002 results

Tuesday, July 23

Publication of third quarter 2002 results

Tuesday, November 12

Publication of preliminary fourth quarter 2002 results and
preliminary figures for the 2002 financial year

* Preliminary dates

[Shareholder Information]

IMPRINT FINANCIAL REVIEW 2001

Published by
Infineon Technologies AG, Munich

Project Management
Achim Schneider

Editorial Staff
Katja Buerkle, Frangois Eksteen, Leonhard Mayr

Designed by
OgilvyOne worldwide GmbH & Co. KG, Frankfurt am Main

Printed by
Kunst- und Werbedruck GmbH & Co. KG, Bad Oeynhausen

The following are REGISTERED NAMES, TRADE NAMES AND/OR
TRADEMARKS of Infineon Technologies AG: Infineon and the
Infineon Technologies logo, 10BaseS, AliDD, AUDO, BlueMoen,
CoolMOS, CoolSET, HITFET, Infineon FingerTIP, M-GOLD,
OptiMOS, PAROLI, PRCFET, SMARTI, Socrates und TriCore.

The BLUETOOTH trademarks are used by Infineon under license.

All other trademarks used in this financial report are trademarks or
trade names, of which the use thereof by third parties may violate
the rights of the respective owners.

If you would like to ORDER ADDITIONAL COPIES of the Financial
Review 2001 or the company’s Strategic Review 2001 documents
either in German or in English, or if you would like to view this
reports and the latest investor information online, please visit us
on the Internet at: www.infineon.com/investor. Shareholders and
other interested investors may also obtain free copies by calling or
writing to Investor Relations.
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